
 

 

 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 

 
10.00 AM - DYDD MAWRTH, 26 MAWRTH 2024 

 
CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, PORT TALBOT A 

MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
RHAID GOSOD POB FFÔN SYMUDOL AR Y MODD DISTAW AR 

GYFER PARHAD Y CYFARFOD 
 

Gweddarlledu/Cyfarfodydd Hybrid:  
Gellir ffilmio’r cyfarfod hwn i’w ddarlledu’n fyw neu’n ddiweddarach drwy 

wefan y cyngor. Drwy gymryd rhan, rydych yn cytuno i gael eich ffilmio ac 
i’r delweddau a’r recordiadau sain hynny gael eu defnyddio at ddibenion 

gweddarlledu a/neu hyfforddiant o bosib 
 
 Rhan 1 

 
1.  Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd   

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   

 
3.  Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol  (Tudalennau 7 - 8) 

 
4.  Gwneud cais am ymweliad(au) safle gan y ceisiadau a gyflwynwyd   

 
 Adroddiad/au gan Bennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd 

 
 Adran A - Materion i'w Penderfynu 

 
 Ceisiadau Cynllunio wedi'u hargymell ar gyfer Cymeradwyaeth 
 
5.  Rhif y cais: P2023/0858 - Crown Wharf, Dociau Port Talbot  

(Tudalennau 9 - 96) 
Dymchwel adeileddau presennol ac adeiladu cyfleuster cynhyrchu 

Tanwydd Hedfanaeth Cynaliadwy (SAF), gan gynnwys cynhyrchu 

AGENDA 



hydrogen gwyrdd a diesel cynaliadwy, ffagliad amgaeedig ar y tir, 

tanciau storio, gosod gwaith pibellau a chyfarpar cyfleustodau a 

phrosesu trydanol, gweinyddiaeth, storfa ac adeiladau labordy, 

mynediad newydd, maes parcio ac isadeiledd trafnidiaeth gan 

gynnwys ardal llwytho tryciau a gwaith cysylltiedig, tirlunio caled a 

meddal, ardaloedd dros dro ar gyfer gosod cyfarpar adeiladu a 

datblygiad cysylltiedig yn Crown Wharf, Dociau Port Talbot, Port 

Talbot SA13 1RA 
 
6.  Rhif y cais: -2024/0057 - 18 Heol Darwin  (Tudalennau 97 - 104) 

Garej sy'n gysylltiedig â 18 Heol Darwin, Sandfields, Port Talbot 
SA12 6BS 
 

 Adran B - Materion Er Gwybodaeth 
 

7.  Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd Arnynt - 4 Medi 2023 - 18 Mawrth 2024  
(Tudalennau 105 - 114) 
 

8.  Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd - 4 Medi 2023 to 18 Mawrth 2024  
(Tudalennau 115 - 120) 
 

9.  Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig - 11 Awst 2023 to 18 Mawrth 2024  
(Tudalennau 121 - 222) 

 
10.  Eitemau brys   

Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag 
Adran 100BA(6)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i 
diwygiwyd) 

 
11.  Mynediad i gyfarfodydd   

Mae hynny'n unol ag Adran 100A(4) a (5) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth 
Leol 1972, ac eithrio'r cyhoedd am yr eitemau canlynol o fusnes a 
oedd yn ymwneud â datgelu gwybodaeth wedi'i heithrio'n debygol 
fel y'i diffinnir ym Mharagraff 16 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A o'r Ddeddf 
uchod. 
 

 Rhan 2 
 

12.  Llety dros dro - Sefyllfa Rheoleiddio (Yn eithriedig dan Baragraff 16)  
(Tudalennau 223 - 230) 
 
 

 



K.Jones 
Prif Weithredwr 

 
Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot Dydd Mercher, 20 Mawrth 2024 
 
 
Aelodaeth Pwyllgor:  
 
Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd J.Jones 

 
Is-Gadeirydd: 
 

Y Cynghorydd T.Bowen 
 

Aelodau: 
 

Cynghorydd S.Paddison, D.Keogh, R.Davies, 
H.Davies, C.James, C.Jordan, S.Thomas, 
R.Mizen, P.Rogers a/ac A.R.Aubrey 
 

Aelod Cabinet: Cynghorydd W.F.Griffiths 
 
Gwneud cais i siarad yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
 
Mae gan y cyhoedd hawl i fynd i'r cyfarfod ac annerch y pwyllgor yn unol â 
gweithdrefn gytunedig y cyngor sydd ar gael yn www.npt.gov.uk/planning.   
 
Os hoffech siarad yn y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ynghylch cais yr adroddwyd 
amdano i'r pwyllgor hwn, mae'n rhaid i chi: 
 

       Gysylltu â'r Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn ysgrifenedig, naill ai 
drwy'r post yn: Y Ganolfan Ddinesig, Port Talbot SA13 1PJ, neu'n 
ddelfrydol drwy e-bostio: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk. 

       Sicrhau eich bod yn gwneud eich cais i siarad ddau ddiwrnod gwaith 
cyn dyddiad y cyfarfod fan bellaf (erbyn 2pm ar y dydd Gwener 
blaenorol os yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth).  

       Nodi’n glir rif yr eitem neu'r cais rydych am siarad amdani/o a 
chadarnhewch a ydych yn cefnogi'r cais neu’n ei wrthwynebu. 

       Rhoi eich enw a'ch cyfeiriad (a fydd ar gael i'r cyhoedd oni bai fod 
rhesymau penodol dros gyfrinachedd). 

 
Sylwer, dim ond un person sy’n gallu siarad ar ran pob 'categori' ar gyfer 
pob cais h.y. y gwrthwynebydd, y cefnogwr, yr ymgeisydd/asiant, y 
Cyngor Cymuned/Tref. Ceir manylion llawn yng ngweithdrefn gytunedig y 
cyngor. 
 

http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


Yn ogystal, os yw gwrthwynebydd yn dymuno siarad, hysbysir yr 
ymgeisydd/asiant gan y cyngor. 
 
Os ydych yn dymuno trafod unrhyw agwedd ar siarad cyhoeddus, 
ffoniwch dîm y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01639 763313. 

Cyflwyno sylwadau ar geisiadau cynllunio yr adroddir amdanynt i'r 
pwyllgor 

Os ydych yn dymuno cyflwyno sylwadau ar gais a gyflwynir i'r Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio hwn, sylwer bod rhaid i'r Adran Gynllunio dderbyn y rhain erbyn 
2.00pm ar y dydd Gwener cyn cyfarfod y pwyllgor fan bellaf (yn seiliedig 
ar y cyfarfod dydd Mawrth arferol). Os nad yw'r cyfarfod ar ddydd Mawrth, 
dylid eu derbyn erbyn 2.00pm ar y diwrnod gwaith olaf ond un cyn y 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio fan bellaf.  

Caiff sylwadau a dderbynnir yn unol â phrotocol y cyngor eu crynhoi a, lle 
y bo'n briodol, gwneir sylwadau arnynt ar ffurf Taflen Ddiwygio, a 
ddosberthir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio drwy e-bost ar y noson cyn 
cyfarfod y pwyllgor, a'i chyflwyno ar ffurf copi caled yn y cyfarfod. 

 
 
 



PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
 

(CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR PORT, TALBOT A  
MICROSOFT TEAMS) 

 
Aelodau’n bresennol:  Dydd Mawrth, 12 Medi 2023 
 
 
Cadeirydd: Aelod J.Jones 

 
Is-gadeirydd: Aelod T.Bowen 

 
Cynghorydd: S.Paddison, R.Davies, H.Davies, C.James, 

C.Jordan, S.Thomas, N.Goldup-John a/ac 
R.Mizen 
 

Aelod CDU/CDLl: Aelod  W.F.Griffiths 
 

Aelodau Lleol: Aelod C.James (Briton Ferry East;) 
 

Swyddogion yn 
bresennol: 
 

C.Morris, C.Davies, G.White, R.MacGregor, 
D.Thomas, S.Evans, J.Griffiths, R.Shoemark, 
J.King a/ac C.Plowman 

 

 
1. CYHOEDDIAD Y CADEIRYDD  

 
Croesawodd y Cadeirydd bawb i'r cyfarfod. 
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU  
 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiannau. 

 
3. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL  

 
Cymeradwywyd cofnodion y cyfarfodydd a gynhaliwyd ar 1 Awst 
2023 a 22 Awst 2023 fel cofnod cywir. 

 
4. GWNEUD CAIS AM YMWELIAD (AU) SAFLE O'R CEISIADAU A 

GYFLWYNWYD  
 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw geisiadau am ymweliad(au) safle. 

 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda3



 

Dydd Mawrth, 12 Medi 2023 

5. CAIS RHIF P2023/0461 - 65 CWRT SART  
 
Darparodd Swyddogion gyflwyniad i’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio ar y cais 
hwn (Newid o ddefnydd preswyl (Dosbarth C3) i HMO (Dosbarth C4) 
yn rhif 65, Cwrt Sart, Llansawel SA11 2SR) fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.  
 
Roedd yr Aelod Ward Lleol wedi gofyn i’r cais gael ei benderfynu gan 
y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ac roedd yn bresennol i roi ei sylwadau yn y 
cyfarfod. 
 
Yn unol â phrotocol siarad cyhoeddus cymeradwy'r cyngor, 
anerchwyd y Pwyllgor Cynllunio gan wrthwynebydd i’r cais. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cais Rhif P2023/0461, yn unol ag 
argymhellion swyddogion, yn amodol ar yr amodau a nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd. 

 
6. CYFLWYNIAD AR Y CAIS  

 
Derbyniodd aelodau gyflwyniad ar y cais oedd wedi’i gynnwys ar 
agenda'r cyfarfod hwn. 
 

7. APELIADAU Y PENDERFYNWYD ARNYNT - 11/08/2023 I 
04/09/2023  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd arnynt o 11 
Awst 2023 i 4 Medi 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod yr adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 
 

8. APELIADAU A DDERBYNIWYD - 11/08/2023 I 04/09/2023  
 
Nododd yr Aelodau'r rhestr o Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd o 11 Awst 
2023 i 4 Medi 2023. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod yr adroddiad yn cael ei nodi. 

 
9. EITEMAU BRYS  

 
Ni dderbyniwyd unrhyw eitemau brys. 
 
 

CADEIRYDD 

Tudalen6



  Page 1 of 87 

 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval  

 

APPLICATION NO: P2023/0858 DATE: 13-11-2023 

PROPOSAL:         Demolition of existing structures and erection of a Sustainable 
Aviation Fuel (SAF) production facility, including the production 
of green hydrogen and sustainable diesel, enclosed ground 
flare, storage tanks, installation of pipework and electrical 
processing and utility equipment, administration, warehouse 
and laboratory buildings, new access, car parking and 
transport infrastructure including a truck loading area and 
associated works, hard and soft landscaping, areas for 
temporary construction laydown and associated development.  

 

LOCATION:          Crown Wharf, Port Talbot Docks, Port Talbot, SA13 1RA 
 

APPLICANT:         Lanzatech Ltd 
 

TYPE:                    Major Development, EIA Development.  
 

WARD:                  Margam and Taibach 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is a major development proposal accompanied by an 
Environmental Statement and is reported to the Planning Committee for this 
reason.  
 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The Site is located within Port Talbot in the Associated British Ports operational 
docks area and adjoins the Tata Steel industrial area. The site context is shown 
in Figures 1 and 2.  
 

Tudalen7

Eitem yr Agenda5



  Page 2 of 87 

 

 
Figure 1: Site location and surroundings, with proximity to road, rail and sea 
access. The site is within the Celtic Freeport Area.  
 

 
Figure 2: Aerial view of Port Talbot showing the site of development.  
 
Given the extent of the Site, it has been split into a number of parcels (linked to 
their proposed function), as follows (as shown in figure 3): 
 
• Primary parcel of land for the location of the proposed production facility 
(approximately 9.1ha), comprising bare land adjacent to Crown Wharf (Port 
Talbot) (referred to as the ‘Production Development Zone [PDZ]’); 
• Three discrete parcels of land located within the wider Port Talbot Docks, 
(approximately 7.44ha) (referred to as ‘Temporary Construction Areas [TCA] 1, 
East and West’). TCA West is separated into two parcels.  
• Approximately 0.87km of Phoenix Way (port road), running adjacent to the 
northern boundary of the PDZ; and 

Tudalen8



  Page 3 of 87 

 

• An extent of marine environment of Port Talbot Docks, located to the north of 
the PDZ and Phoenix Way.  

 
Figure 3: Application plan showing the location of Temporary Construction 
Areas and the Production Development Zone.  
 
The above terms are used throughout the applicant’s Environmental Statement 
(ES) and other documents and are adopted for the purposes of this committee 
report.  
 
The PDZ is currently unused and vacant land which has been colonised by 
vegetation. At TCA East there are a number of buildings and structures 
associated with historic and on-going industrial/commercial activities. The 
applicant notes that a number of these structures are in a poor / unusable 
condition and vacant. Whilst others support on-going commercial activities / 
tenants, including a crane hire firm, a welding services company, a scaffolding 
company and oil tankage facilities. It is understood that these companies are in 
the process of re-locating locally. TCA 1 and TCA West comprise vacant land 
colonised by vegetation.  
 
Both the PDZ and TCA1 were ‘created’ as part of the development of Port 
Talbot Docks in the early 20th Century, with the focus of utilisation as a working 
dock and has been subject to previous development. The supporting 
information to the application identifies that the site has a long history of 
industrial uses and by 1940, the entire site is recorded to have been infilled, 
with multiple buildings and infrastructure (including railway sidings, tanks, 
settling tanks, travelling cranes, overhead pipes, chimneys, reservoirs, 
conveyors, hoppers and Margam Wharf) of the wider Margam (Iron and Steel) 
Works site. Margam Wharf is shown to be present along the western site 
boundary. All buildings on the PDZ and TCA1 appeared to have been 

Tudalen9



  Page 4 of 87 

 

demolished as of 2009. TCA West and TCA East also featured significant 
industrial development.  
 
Crown Wharf, which defines an extent of dock wall of Port Talbot Docks, is 
located to the north-east of the PDZ. Phoenix Wharf, another extent of dock 
wall, is located immediate north of the PDZ. In the surrounding area there are 
further industrial facilities to the south, residential dwellings in Port Talbot to the 
east and agricultural land beyond that, residential dwellings to the north west, 
and Swansea Bay to the west. 
 
As part of the application supporting information a topographical survey of the 
PDZ was completed, this shows higher ground towards the southern boundary, 
with ground elevations ranging mostly between 8-9m Above Ordnance Datum 
(AOD), with a maximum of 9.64m AOD in the south-western portion. Along the 
northern boundary of the PDZ levels are lower, ranging between 7-8m AOD 
with a low of 8.86m AOD at the central northern boundary of the PDZ, closest 
to Phoenix Way.  
 
The applicant notes that based on NRW LiDAR information that TCA 1 is 
relatively flat with levels ranging from 7.3-8.1m AOD at their maximum extents. 
Levels within TCA East and TCA West range from 7.7 – 8.4m AOD and 7.5 – 
8.3m AOD respectively. LiDAR data also shows that ground levels for TCA East 
and TCA West naturally drain towards the dock road system and the Port Talbot 
Docks. 
 
As outlined above the PDZ is contained in the docks area owned by Associated 
British Ports (ABP). Port Talbot Docks is an existing and working docks. The 
applicant’s planning statement indicates that the docks handle around 6.6 
million tonnes of cargo every year and over £760 million of trade. In addition, 
the Port Talbot Docks does support recreational uses, including fishing, sailing 
and rowing as part of the Port Talbot Sea Cadets (North Wharf), as well as other 
water sports through the Port Talbot YMCA Water sports facility (North Wharf). 
Afan Boat Club are located on the River Afan, near to Port Talbot Docks, with 
associated slipway and moorings. Beyond the docks are the extensive areas of 
Port Talbot Town Centre, with the Harbourside strategic regeneration area (as 
defined in the Local Development Plan in policy SRA2). To the north of the TCA 
East are areas of residential development separated by Harbour Way. Across 
Port Talbot docks to the North are existing industrial and dock related 
development and beyond this the extensive residential development of 
Sandfields. 
 
As Local Planning Authority the jurisdiction of the Authority extends to the Mean 
low water which is the ‘seaward’ extent of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 regime. Planning permission is not required for the marine aspects of the 
Crown Wharf Works, as these sit below the mean low water mark and mean 
high water spring tide. Mean high water is the limit of the area covered by 
marine licensing. The applicant’s agent has indicated that a Marine Licence will 
be applied for, for these works. These works would form part of a single project 
for EIA purposes and the Marine Licence is regulated by separate EIA 
regulations. 

Tudalen10



  Page 5 of 87 

 

 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
A detailed 35 page specification for the development is provided within the 
Environmental Statement Chapter 4. Additionally the design aspects of the 
proposal are explained in detail within the supporting Design and Access 
Statement and also the supporting Planning Statement.  
 
This section of the report is a summary of the main aspects of the development 
proposed.  
 
The proposal is for the demolition of existing structures and erection of a 
Sustainable Aviation Fuel (SAF) production facility, including enclosed ground 
flare, storage tanks, installation of pipework and electrical, processing and utility 
equipment, administration, warehouse and laboratory buildings, new access, 
car parking and transport infrastructure including a truck loading area and 
associated works, hard and soft landscaping, areas for temporary construction 
laydown, and associated development. 
 

- The Alcohol to Jet Fuel process 
The application proposal will deliver a SAF production facility, transforming 
sustainably sourced ethanol into SAF and sustainable diesel, using the 
applicant’s propriety technology. The applicant states that they will use ethanol 
that complies with the requirements of the proposed UK SAF Mandate 5, which 
is currently being finalised. This requires that ethanol is made from sustainably 
produced wastes or residues (biomass or Recycled Carbon Fuels) or low 
carbon electricity (renewable or nuclear). The SAF supplied must also meet 
strict sustainability requirements. The applicant states that the proposed 
development has been developed to meet these requirements. 
 
The applicant states that the proposed development will be fed by ethanol from 
industrial waste gases at other sites at which the applicant has established its 
gas fermentation technology around the world. Alternatively, the applicant 
states they may purchase sustainably sourced ethanol on the open market, 
such as ethanol made from waste starch. The applicant notes that the Green 
House Gas (GHG) emissions associated with the production and transport of 
the ethanol have been taken into account in the Life Carbon Assessment (LCA) 
assessment of the carbon intensity of the SAF produced.  
 
The applicant outlines the process as shown in figures 4 and 5 and table 1 
below.  
 
 

 

Tudalen11



  Page 6 of 87 

 

 
Figure 4: Alcohol to Jet Fuel wider Process. (from applicants planning 
statement) 
 

 

 
Figure 5: Alcohol to Jet Fuel Process. (from applicants design and access 
statement) 
 

Stage of Process Summary 

Step 1 – Sustainability 
sourced ethanol 

Sustainably sourced ethanol is routed to the site 
by ship and transferred via pipe to ethanol 
storage tanks within the site. 

Step 2 – Splitting to 
produce water and 
ethylene 

The ethanol is transferred via pipe from the 
tanks to the process modules along the site’s 
southern boundary, where it goes through a 
process of dehydration and splitting to create 
ethylene and water. 

Step 3 – Oligomerisation Ethylene molecules are combined into long 
chains. This process takes place within the 
process modules at the south of the site. 

Step 4 – Hydrogenation  This process saturates the oligomerised 
molecules with hydrogen. This process takes 

Tudalen12



  Page 7 of 87 

 

Stage of Process Summary 

place within the process modules at the south 
of the site. 

Step 5 – Fractionation The resulting product goes through a process of 
fractionation. This separates grades of fuel 
using temperature (different boiling points). This 
step also takes place within the process 
modules. 

Step 6 – Output of SAF 
and sustainable diesel 

The outputs are transferred via pipe and stored 
on-site in the respective SAF storage tanks and 
sustainable diesel storage tanks as identified on 
the proposed layout plan. SAF will then be 
piped to a wharf loading facility and distributed 
via ship. Sustainable diesel will be piped to the 
truck loading area and loaded onto tankers for 
distribution via road. 

Table 1: Stepwise alcohol to jet fuel process. (from applicant’s planning 
statement)  
 
Some of the main process inputs and outputs are as follows: 
 
Inputs: 
 
• Ethanol – 100,000 – 160,000 litres per annum (this is the primary feedstock 
and will be brought in by ship) 
 
• Raw Water – 700,000 – 800,000 m3 per annum (extracted from Port Talbot 
Docks) 
 
• Other inputs to the process include electricity, mains gas, nitrogen, caustic, 
sulphuric acid, product additives, water treatment chemicals, and catalysts / 
resins / absorbents.  
 
Outputs:  
 
• Sustainable Aviation Fuels – 79,100 tonnes per annum (this is the main 
product to be generated by the development and will be stored on site in four 
storage tanks and transported from site by ship) 
 
• Renewable Diesel – 8,800 tonnes per annum (this is another product 
produced in the applicants process and will be stored on site in three tanks and 
shipped from site by road tanker) 
 
• Treated Effluent Water – 320,000 m3 per annum (Concentrate generated from 
stages within the process, such as reverse osmosis of combined raw water and 
recycled treated process water, which is then discharged to Port Talbot Dock, 
via a new discharge point) 
 
• Other outputs include on site effluent treatment which results in a variety of 
solids, liquids and gases. Flue gas will be discharged and there will be a flare 

Tudalen13



  Page 8 of 87 

 

on site. The applicant notes that the composition of the gas will vary and it will 
be monitored for emissions of CO, NOx, SOx and particulate matter (PM) and 
will be subject to an Environmental permit. The site will also produce Spent 
catalysts, resins & absorbents. Spent catalyst is decontaminated prior to 
transport by road and where practical the applicant states that the supplier will 
be responsible for onward processing.  

 
 
The application states that the facility will produce approximately 90% 
sustainable aviation fuel and 10% sustainable diesel that would be sold as a 
sustainable road fuel. The proportion of SAF versus sustainable diesel is 
flexible and can change up to a 'maximum’ sustainable diesel scenario of 25% 
sustainable aviation fuel and 75% sustainable diesel.  
 

- Demolition  
Demolition will be required to accommodate the TCAs proposed. These are low 
level industrial buildings which are masonry, concrete and steel with around 
4,526sqm of floorspace.  
 

- Proposed Development 
As outlined above there are three primary areas:  
 
• Production Development Zone (PDZ): The PDZ comprises all permanent 
buildings, structures, plant and equipment associated with the proposed 
development. 
• Proposed Access: Phoenix Way will provide the access points to the site. 
• Temporary Construction Areas: Surrounding land to be utilised as temporary 
laydown. 
 
Production Development Zone (PDZ) 
The PDZ is broadly split into three areas (see Figures 4 and 5), these are 
identified as follows: 
 
• Administration Area. 
• Industrial Process Area, including the Enclosed Ground Flare. 
• Truck Loading Area 
 

Tudalen14



  Page 9 of 87 

 

 
Figure 4: Plan showing the areas within the PDZ - Yellow – industrial process 
area; Green – Lorry loading area; Blue – Administrative area. (from applicant’s 
planning statement) 
 
 

 
Figure 5: Diagrammatic representation of site layout (from design and access 
statement) 
 
The administration area is situated at the main entrance to the site. It comprises 
development along the eastern boundary of the PDZ and includes: 
 
• Gatehouse 1 – 35 sqm (GIA). The gatehouse will control entry into the 
administration building and car park and into the industrial process area. 
• Administration building – 342 sqm (GIA). This is the primary building for use 
by employees and visitors. This is segregated from the wider industrial process 
area and further buildings to the south for operational and safety reasons. 
• Amenity shelters – covered outside space for employees. 
• Cycle stand – comprising eight bicycle parking spaces and two motorcycle 
spaces. This will accommodate sustainable transport choices and potential 
future improvements to surrounding port infrastructure. 
• Car parking – 57 parking spaces, including disabled parking spaces. 25% of 
the spaces proposed will accommodate active electric vehicle (EV) charging 

Tudalen15



  Page 10 of 87 

 

points (14 spaces). This level of parking will accommodate staff parking during 
each shift change over and parking for any visitors or maintenance staff who 
may be present onsite. 
• Electrical switchroom. 
• Area of landscaping/biodiversity provision. 
 
Further buildings accessed through the industrial entrance and separated from 
the main admin building and car parking area by a proposed 2.4m high palisade 
fence, comprising: 
 
• The process control room – 700 sqm (GIA). This is a dedicated control centre 
for the industrial process. 
• Laboratory – 84 sqm (GIA). This will monitor the quality of feedstock materials, 
partially processed materials and finished products. 
• Workshop – 337 sqm (GIA). This will be used for the repair and maintenance 
of items in the industrial process. 
• Warehouse – 399 sqm (GIA). This will be used for the storage of spare parts 
and consumables for the industrial process. 
• Electrical substation – 15m in height and connecting to the wider industrial 
process area and substation.  
 
The proposed building heights across the administration area range from 10 to 
15 metres. Several buildings will be single storey. 
 
The industrial process area comprises the primary equipment associated with 
the Alcohol To Jet fuel (ATJ) process. The processing, storage and utility zones 
are located centrally within the PDZ and will include all the 
processing/production plant, associated structures and pipework, and the 
storage of inputs and outputs. This includes tanks for the storage of ethanol, 
sustainable aviation fuel and sustainable diesel. Two buildings (compressor 
houses 1 and 2) are situated adjacent to the process modules in the southern 
extent of the site. The tallest structure (extending to approximately 50m in 
height) comprises Module E1 and E2 set within the process modules along the 
southern boundary of the PDZ. The remainder of the proposed development 
within the industrial process area will extend to a maximum height of 40m. The 
storage tanks throughout the industrial process area range in function and 
height from 5 to 20m. The smallest structures include pumps and engineering 
packages at 3m in height. The application indicates that there will be piled 
foundations for this part of the development.  
 
An enclosed ground flare is proposed. The supporting information outlines how 
this is a required safety feature for the facility. During normal operations, the 
flare will only burn a minimal number of ‘pilot’ gases to support the safe 
operation of the facility. 
 
The ground flare will be situated in the western extent of the PDZ and within the 
industrial process area. The enclosed ground flare will extend up to 20m in 
height from the proposed ground level (i.e., in line with other equipment located 
within the industrial process area). 
 

Tudalen16



  Page 11 of 87 

 

During an interruption to the process (such as a power cut), the flare will need 
to be used to recover the facility and safely shut it down. The flare will also need 
to be used to start up the plant. The supporting information to the application 
sets out that the applicant will seek to minimise both the amount and duration 
of any flaring event. Intensive use of the flare is expected to be limited and not 
common practice.  
 
The truck loading area is situated along the north western boundary of the PDZ. 
This will include a gate house parking bays, a layby waiting area, entrance, 
loading facilities, landscaping and weighbridge.  
 

- PDZ-wide Development Proposals 
Detailed drainage proposals are provided. The drainage proposals are 
reflective of the sites potential contamination risk. Drainage will be managed 
through a clean water and contaminated drain. The clean water drain will drain 
through a SuDs system from areas where there are low and medium hazard. 
The contaminated drain will drain high hazard areas comprising storage and 
processing areas at the site. The contaminated water is transferred to an onsite 
effluent treatment plant and re-used on site in the process.  
 
The SuDS system will comprise rain gardens, trapezoidal ditches (gravel-based 
swales) and permeable paving. Biodiversity and amenity benefits are limited 
due to the industrial nature of the site and the consideration of health and safety 
and the COMAH Regulations. A separate SAB’s consent will be required for the 
drainage works (see Table 2 for all associated consents and permits). Foul 
flows will be accommodated in the public combined system which drains to the 
Afan New Works Wastewater Treatment Works.  
 
The application is supported by a comprehensive Green Infrastructure and 
Landscape Strategy and Arboricultural survey assessment. The main proposed 
habitat created for the proposed development is flower-rich grassland and 
pioneer vegetation. This will be established on nutrient-poor substrate features 
that should be equivalent to habitats of biodiversity value in the wider dock. The 
applicant has also negotiated the provision of off-site biodiversity mitigation 
which is discussed further in the relevant section of the report.  
 
The site will require levelling to accommodate the proposed development. 
Existing topography across the PDZ ranges from 6.86m to 9.64m AOD. In 
response to current and future flood levels, the applicant proposes to undertake 
a proportionate balance of cut and fill to allow for a good working substrate and 
minimising earthwork movements off- site, a flat working surface of circa 8.1m 
AOD is proposed across the site. 
 
Perimeter and internal fencing will comprise: Perimeter fencing: 2.4m steel 
palisade fence with security topping; Internal fencing between administration 
building and industrial processes: 2.4m; steel spiked palisade fencing (without 
security topping); and Specific areas within the industrial processing area (such 
as substations): 2.4m chain-link fencing.  
 

Tudalen17



  Page 12 of 87 

 

The application is supported by an exterior lighting strategy. The applicant 
outlines that the lighting strategy reflects the operational industrial nature of the 
site. The proposed lighting strategy includes the following: Pole mounted 
streetlights (8m mounting height); Pole mounted floodlights (10m mounting 
height); Bracket mounted floodlights (6m mounting height); Pendant mounted 
highway lighting (5.5m and 8.5m mounting height); and  Handrail pole mounted 
linear lighting (3m mounting height). 
 
The lighting proposed in the operational areas is a combination of normal and 
emergency lighting. The normal lighting will be controlled by a timer and photo 
electric cell, so that the lights can only come on during set hours and only if it is 
dark enough for artificial lighting to be required. These lights will only come on 
(if required) between 11pm and 6am. 
 
Emergency lighting comprises 30% of the lighting required for the operation of 
the site and is backed-up by an emergency diesel generator. It is proposed that 
it is made available for 24 hours a day (if it is dark enough for artificial lighting 
to be required). 
 
Streetlights and carpark lighting are to be controlled by a timer and photo 
electric cell. Lights can only come on during set hours and only if it is dark 
enough for artificial lighting to be required for safe movement around the PDZ. 
A manual override switch integral to the distribution board will also be 
incorporated to control the exterior lighting in the event of an emergency. High-
level platform, module and tank lighting will have the capability of being dimmed 
and manually switched off when not required.  
 
The applicant outlines that the material palette for the industrial process area 
will be operationally led and reflective of the surrounding area. This will include 
metal, galvanised steel and aluminium. Materials include insulated panels 
(used mainly on functional buildings), with grey bricks used on administration 
buildings. Feature colours are used sparingly. The storage tanks will be white, 
the racking and stairs will be galvanised steel. Some health and safety features 
such as hand rails will be yellow. Buildings are a mixture of textured insulated 
panels / built up insulated cladding systems. The administrative building 
includes feature stonework.  
 

Tudalen18



  Page 13 of 87 

 

 
Figure 6: Visualisation of entrance to site with administrative building, car 
parking and production area behind.  
 
Proposed Access 
The site will be accessed from Phoenix Way the private road at the north of the 
application site. Three new vehicular access points are proposed. Two access 
points are located at the northeast of the site and lie adjacent to Phoenix Way. 
The main site entrance will be used for the administrative area (to be used by 
staff and visitors). The industrial entrance will be used to access the process 
area. Both access points will be controlled by a gatehouse for security. 
 
Vehicles collecting and exporting products from the site will enter and exit the 
site from a new access point at the truck loading area. This is located at the 
northwest of the site. Internal site roads are proposed across the Industrial 
Process Area to allow the transportation of materials and the daily operation of 
the site. This will also ensure that all modules and equipment can be accessed 
for maintenance purposes. All roads will be one-way with external lighting. 
 
There is an additional emergency access point in the northwestern corner of 
the site. This will only be used in emergency situations. 
 
Ethanol and SAF will be transferred to and from the PDZ respectively via pipe 
rack from the wharf/unloading and loading facility, to be located within the 
adjacent dock area owned by ABP. The relevant marine elements of these 
works (which fall outside of this planning application) will be subject to a 
separate marine licence. This will enable the transportation of ethanol and SAF 
via pipe to the dock and on to a ship. 
 
Temporary Construction Areas 
The scale of development at the site requires additional land in proximity to the 
PDZ for use as temporary construction areas. As the proposal is for an EIA 
development the temporary construction areas form part of the application 
submission. They are identified as three separate areas of land TCA 1, TCA 
East and TCA West.  

Tudalen19



  Page 14 of 87 

 

 
The application states that the full extent of use necessary for the TCAs has not 
been fully identified and will be when the contractor is appointed. The TCAs are 
to be used in the following ways: An area to house the main principal contractor 
compound and associated amenities/welfare facilities; Car parking; Material 
delivery, drop off and storage; Potential pre-fabrication; and Satellite 
compounds, if required. 
 
The applicant has suggested construction working hours of 07:00 to 19:00, 
Monday to Friday and 07:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. They have also identified 
that it is likely that some construction activities will be required to operate for 24 
hours at certain times. Construction is estimated to last for two and a half years. 
They intend to commence in 2024 with completion in 2026.  
 
The details submitted highlight impacts upon residential receptors from 24 hour 
working. The application suggests that working during these periods would be 
at a lower intensity but is modelled as showing noise impacts higher than would 
be acceptable at nearby residential receptors. Suitably worded conditions can 
be used to control hours of operation at the site, as discussed below. 
 
The application supporting information notes that where appropriate, temporary 
drainage requirements for the TCAs will be provided and will be addressed 
through the separate SAB process. The TCAs which comprise existing 
hardstanding which will retain and use the existing drainage systems serving 
these areas. TCA1 (North) will utilise the slope of the area to drain to proposed 
ditches with drainage pumps to manage any runoff or build-up of materials 
associated with temporary construction. The application states that they intend 
to provide full details of associated construction lighting and temporary 
enclosures in a detailed CEMP, which will be developed from the Framework 
CEMP (which forms part of this application submission).  
 
The Framework CEMP sets out the Site and Surrounding Context, Proposed 
Development and Key Construction Considerations and Challenges; Roles, 
Responsibilities and Communications; Construction Programme and 
Methodology; Framework CEMP Strategies; and Implementation, Monitoring 
and Updating 
 
Operating Hours and Staffing 
The site will operate 24 hours a day, seven days a week. The application 
supporting information states that when operating the development would 
generate approximately 85 FTE jobs. Staff will work in shifts, as detailed below, 
and supported by six remote support staff: 
• Day Support Staff: Nine staff working 08:00-17:00. 
• 12 staff working 00:00-08:00. 
• 41 staff working 08:00-16:00. 
• 17 staff working 16:00-00:00 
 
Utilities and off-site Infrastructure 
The applicant has stated that they are in discussions with Dwr Cymru Welsh 
Water and that they have confirmed capacity for foul drainage and potable 

Tudalen20



  Page 15 of 87 

 

water. They also state that National Grid has confirmed capacity and that they 
are in on going discussions regarding a new grid connection agreement to the 
Pyle substation. National Grid will secure any consents required for this 
connection outside the application boundary. Similarly the applicant states that 
they are in discussion with Wales and West Utilities regarding provision of a 
gas connection to the site.  
 
Associated Consents, Permits and Licensing 
Reflecting the nature of the proposal additional consents, permits and licenses 
(beyond the planning process) will be required to support the operation of the 
scheme. The application provides the following table (Table 2) to aid 
understanding of the required additional consents.  
 
 

Permit / Consent /  
License / Other  
Approval 

Description  Determining Authority 

Environmental Permit  An environmental 
permit is required for 
the main production 
activity, in accordance 
with the Environmental 
Permitting Regulations 
(England and Wales) 
2016 (as amended). 

NRW 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Permit 

The scheme will 
exceed relevant 
thresholds and will 
require a Greenhouse 
Gas Permit to operate 
under the UK 
Emissions Trading 
Scheme. 

NRW 

Water Abstraction 
License 

Required for the 
volume of water 
expected to be 
abstracted from docks. 

NRW 

Hazardous Substances 
Consent 

Required for the 
handling of hazardous 
substances and 
exceedance of 
controlled quantities in 
the Planning 
(Hazardous 
Substances) (Wales) 
Regulations 2015. 

NPTC in consultation 
with the Health and 
Safety Executive (HSE) 
and NRW 

Control of Major 
Accident Hazards 
(COMAH) 

Required due to the 
handling of hazardous 
substances exceeding 

HSE and NRW 

Tudalen21



  Page 16 of 87 

 

Permit / Consent /  
License / Other  
Approval 

Description  Determining Authority 

the Upper Tier COMAH 
threshold. 

Marine Licence A marine licence will 
capture all marine 
works associated with 
the wharf 
loading/unloading 
facility, in accordance 
with legal advice. 

NRW in consultation 
with NPTC as statutory 
consultee 

Sustainable Drainage 
Approval Body (SAB) 

In accordance with 
Schedule 3 of the Flood 
and Water 
Management Act 2010, 
the proposed 
development requires 
SAB approval. 

Authority: NPTC 

Table 2: List of associated consents and permits.  
 
NEGOTIATIONS: 
 
The Authority has undertaken extensive pre-application discussions with the 
applicant and their representatives. Specialist officers have fed into the scope 
of the environmental statement and the overall design and layout of the 
development that has come forward for determination. 
 
Since submission the application has not been amended.  
 
Additional clarification has been provided in a number of areas at the request 
of consultees: 
 

1. Clarification note on air quality  
2. Clarification note on noise 
3. Updated Water Framework Directive Assessment 

 
A green infrastructure assessment was submitted reflecting the new policy 
context provided by the updated Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12) discussed 
further below. Information on habitat management of the off site ecological 
mitigation has also been received for use in an accompanying S106 agreement.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
This is an extensive site which has a history of planning applications related to 
dockside and industrial uses. However, there are no applications that would be 
significantly material to this proposal. Prior to submitting this application the 
applicant submitted a request for an EIA scoping opinion (P2023/0436) for this 
development, this application was withdrawn prior to the submission of this 
application.  

Tudalen22



  Page 17 of 87 

 

 
CONSULTATIONS 
 

Consultee Response 

Natural Resources 
Wales 

Concerns that can be addressed through conditions 
securing a detailed lighting plan; construction 
environmental management plan; and to secure 
contaminated land remediation. No objections subject to 
these conditions. 

South Wales Trunk 
Roads  

No response (see WG Transport Directorate below) 

Swansea Council 

Does not appear to raise any issues potentially 
impacting upon Swansea’s administrative area and 
therefore no objections are raised to the proposed 
development. 

NPT EHO (noise + 
air quality) 

Noise Consultant – ES reviewed and following 
clarification, conclusions agreed with.  

Air Quality Consultant – ES reviewed and following 
clarification, conclusions agreed with.  

NPT CLO 

Ground Investigation reviewed and its recommendations 
that further investigations are undertaken are accepted 
and conditions recommended to secure this, 
remediation and verification. (recommended additional 
works are targeted ground investigation to provide 
additional site specific data; and Additional investigation 
testing within the northern site area) 

NPT Drainage SAB required 

NPT Economic 
Development  

Support the proposal (as detailed in the socio-economic 
section of the report below) 

NPT Ecologist No objections  

NPT Forward 
Planning 

No response to date 

NPT Highways No objection subject to condition 

NPT Sustainable 
Transport 

Request for developer contribution to active travel to the 
Newbridge Project (188,960.65) 

NPT Tree Officer No objection 

SWP Advice on security 

Fire Authority No comments or objections. 

Wales & West 
Utilities 

Plan provided of infrastructure (medium pressure gas 
main along Phoenix Way to north of site). 

Cadw No objection 

WG Transport 
Directorate 

Welsh Government as highways authority responsible 
for the M4 advise they do not issue a direction.  

Tudalen23



  Page 18 of 87 

 

Consultee Response 

Dwr Cymru Welsh 
Water 

No objection subject to condition (provision of potable 
water supply scheme) 

Swansea Bay Port 
Health Authority  

No comments to date 

Network Rail 
No objection – advise an asset protection agreement is 
required. 

HSE No objection 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Application Publicity 
The application was publicised as a major development and as a development 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement as defined under the Town and 
Country Planning (General Development Management) (Wales) Procedure 
Order 2012 and The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017. The application publicity gave 30 days 
to respond to the proposal. 
 
The application publicity was as follows: Placing six site notices in various 
locations near to the site. Nearby properties were consulted by post and an 
advert was placed in the South Wales Evening Post. 
 
Following publicity the following representations were received:  
 
One letter was received that expressed objections, as summarised below: 
 

- Concern regarding additional atmospheric pollution in an area which 
already suffers from pollution.  

- Query whether the ethanol feedstock will need to be transported by train 
and the risk of explosions and the sustainability of moving the fuel.  

- Concern the process will involve benzene a highly flammable 
carcinogen.  

- Concern about transporting the fuel produced and the risk to the local 
population.  

- Concern that the job creation figures are inflated.  

- The risk of the development should not be outweighed by the provision 
of additional jobs.  

 
Letters of support were received from the following: Associated British Ports; 
Davies Crane Hire; JES Group; the Head of Net Zero & Sustainability at Wales 
and West Utilities; the Chief Executive of Net-Zero Industries Wales; Port of 
Milford Haven (Celtic Freeport Partner) and Stephen Kinnock MP. The letters 
of support referred to the green credentials of the development and also the job 
creation and economic benefit of the development.  
 
Pre-Application Consultation (PAC) 

Tudalen24



  Page 19 of 87 

 

The application was supported by the submission of the necessary Pre-
application Consultation (PAC) Report.  The report states that the Pre-
application Consultation exercise was carried out in accordance with the 
requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure)(Wales) Order 2016 (as amended) for the mandatory pre-application 
consultation process for a minimum of 28 days prior to the submission of a 
major planning application.  The report states that the relevant information was 
made available online and substantial efforts were made to publicise the 
application. This included distributing postcards to 9,234 addresses, 
undertaking two social media campaigns (the first campaign reached 14,955 
people and the second 12,333 people). Hosting an online webinar and three in-
person drop-in consultation events, where Project information was made 
available. Attending two existing community events and distributing posters 
advertising the pre-application consultation. Notices required statutorily were 
placed around the site and a copy provided.  
 
The PAC report provides a full review of the feedback received during the pre-
application consultation process and the applicant’s response to the feedback. 
A number of key areas of interest were identified: Interest in jobs and 
opportunities for local businesses through the construction phase; Support for 
the need for the Project; Questions around the impacts of the Project; and 
Questions around SAF storage and safety.  
 
The PAC report has been reviewed and is considered to be sufficient to meet 
the statutory requirements.  

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 

National Legislation, Planning Policy and Guidance 

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 (WFGA 2015) 

The WFGA 2015 places a duty on the Council to take reasonable steps in 
exercising its functions to meet its sustainable development (or wellbeing) 
objectives. This report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty 
and the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 2015 Act. In 
reaching the recommendation set out below, the Council has sought to ensure 
that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 

Future Wales and Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, 2024) 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12) was revised in February 2024 to include a 
revised chapter 6 Distinctive and Natural Places. This followed a previous 
comprehensive revision and restructuring in 20021 which coincided with 
publication of, and to take into account the policies, themes and approaches 
set out in, Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and to deliver the vision for 
Wales that is set out therein.  

Tudalen25

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf


  Page 20 of 87 

 

Future Wales now forms part of the Development Plan for all parts of Wales,  
comprising a strategy for addressing key national priorities through the planning 
system, including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving 
decarbonisation and climate-resilience, developing strong ecosystems and 
improving the health and well-being of our communities. All Development 
Management decisions, strategic and local development plans, planning 
appeals and all other work directed by the development plan need to accord 
with Future Wales. The following policies within Future Wales 2040 are 
considered significantly material to the determination of this application: 

Policy 1 Where Wales will grow. 
Policy 2 Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic 

Placemaking. 
Policy 8 Flooding. 
Policy 9 Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure. 
Policy 19 Strategic Policies for Regional Planning. 
Policy 28 National Growth Area – Swansea Bay and Llanelli 
 
Outcome 11 of Future Wales states that “decarbonisation commitments and 
renewable energy targets will be treated as opportunities to build a more 
resilient and equitable low carbon economy”. Future W aims to ensure that the 
planning system will help Wales “lead the way in promoting and delivering a 
competitive, sustainable decarbonised society”. 
 
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes 
towards the delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 and the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015. 
 
PPW11 takes the seven Well-being Goals and the five Ways of Working as 
overarching themes and embodies a placemaking approach throughout, with 
the aim of delivering Active and Social Places, Productive and Enterprising 
Places and Distinctive and Natural Places. It also identifies the planning system 
as one of the main tools to create sustainable places, and that placemaking 
principles are a tool to achieving this through both plan making and the decision 
making process. 

The following sections of PPW is of particular relevance in the assessment of 
this planning application: 

• Paras 3.3 to 3.17 (Good Design Making Better Spaces)  
• Paras 3.19 and 3.23 (Promoting Healthier Places)  
• Paras 3.49 to 3.52 (Accessibility)  
• Paras 3.55 and 3.56 (Previously Developed Land)  
• Paras 4.1.9 to 4.1.18 (Sustainable Transport)  
• Paras 4.1.36 to 4.1.39 (Public Transport)  
• Paras 4.1.49 to 4.1.54 (Car Parking)  
• Paras 4.1.55 and 4.1.56 (Transport Assessments)  
• Paras 5.8.1 to 5.8.3 (Sustainable Buildings)  

Tudalen26



  Page 21 of 87 

 

• Paras 5.11.1 to 5.11.3 (Making Best Use of Material Resources and Promoting 
the Circular Economy)  
• Para 5.12.1 (Design Choices to Prevent Waste)  
• Para 5.12.6 (Design in Locally Sourced, Alternative or Recycled Materials)  
• Para 6.2.1 to 6.2.3 (Green Infrastructure)  
• Para 6.2.5 to 6.2.10 (Green Infrastructure Assessments) 
• Para 6.2.11 to 6.2.14 (Integrating Green Infrastructure and Development) 
• Para 6.3.12 to 6.3.17 (Characteristics of Local Landscapes)  
• Para 6.4.11 to 6.4.17 (Step-wise approach) 
• Para 6.4.31 (Protection for Non-statutory Designations) 
• Para 6.4.35 (Protected Species) 
• Paras 6.6.8, 6.6.17 to 6.6.20, 6.6.24, 6.6.25 and 6.6.27 (Water and Flood Risk) 
• Paras 6.7.6 and 6.7.8 (Framework for Addressing Air quality and Soundscape)  
• Paras 6.9.16 to 6.9.21 (Land Contamination) 
 
Technical Advice Notes 

PPW is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes (TANs), 
of which the following are of relevance: - 

 TAN 5: nature conservation and planning (30 September 2009) 

 TAN 11: noise (31 October 1997) 

 TAN 12: design (31 March 2016) 

 TAN 14: coastal planning (24 November 2021) 

 TAN 15: development and flood risk (20 July 2004) 

 TAN 18: transport (31 March 2007) 

 TAN 23: economic development (28 February 2014) 

 TAN 24: the historic environment (30 May 2017) 
 
Welsh National Marine Plan   

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/welsh-national-
marine-plan-document_0.pdf 

 
This Plan extends up to the level of mean high water spring tides and the waters 
of every estuary, river or channel, so far as the tide flows at mean high water 
spring tide. In comparison, land-use planning boundaries generally extend to 
mean low water spring tides. This Plan therefore overlaps physically with 
terrestrial plans, helping to facilitate integration between land and sea planning 
and management. 

 
Vision and objectives  - The vision for the Welsh inshore and offshore marine 
plan regions is: Welsh seas are clean, healthy, safe, productive and biologically 
diverse:  

 
• Through an ecosystem approach, natural resources are sustainably managed 
and our seas are healthy and resilient, supporting a sustainable and thriving 
economy;  

 

Tudalen27

https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-5-nature-conservation-and-planning
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-11-noise
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-12-design
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-14-coastal-planning
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-15-development-and-flood-risk-2004
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-18-transport
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-23-economic-development
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-note-tan-24-historic-environment
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/welsh-national-marine-plan-document_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/welsh-national-marine-plan-document_0.pdf


  Page 22 of 87 

 

• Through access to, understanding of and enjoyment of the marine 
environment and maritime cultural heritage, health and well-being are 
improving;  
 
• Through Blue Growth more jobs and wealth are being created and are helping 
coastal communities become more resilient, prosperous and equitable with a 
vibrant culture; and  
 
• Through the responsible deployment of low carbon technologies, the Welsh 
marine area is making a strong contribution to energy security and climate 
change emissions targets. 
 
Developments are categorised into bands depending on the risk of the 
development to the marine environment. The following policies are considered 
to be material to this proposal:  
 
GEN_01: Planning policy There is a presumption in favour of the sustainable 
development of the plan area in order to contribute to Wales’ well-being goals.  
GEN_02: Planning policy Relevant public authorities should take a 
proportionate, risk-based approach to application of relevant marine planning 
policies in decision making. 
ECON_01: Supporting economically sustainable activities 
ECON_02: Supporting coexistence 
SOC General Policy – Ensuring a Strong, Healthy and Just Society 
ENV General Policy – Living within Environmental Limits 
GOV General Policy – Promoting Good Governance 
SCI General Policy – Using Sound Science Responsibly 
Sector Policy – Ports and Shipping 
Sector Policy – Tourism and Recreation 

Local Planning Policy and Guidance 

Overview 

The development plan for the purposes of section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 is the Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan 2011 - 2026 (Adopted January 2016) (hereafter LDP). When considering 
the grant of planning permission the plan should be considered as a whole, 
within the LDP the following policies are of particular relevance. 

Strategic Policies 

 Policy SP1  Climate Change 

 Policy SP2  Health 

 Policy SP3   Sustainable communities 

 Policy SP4  Infrastructure 

 Policy SP5  Development in the Coastal Corridor Strategy Area 

 Policy SP11  Employment Growth 

 Policy SP15  Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Policy SP16  Environmental Protection 

 Policy SP19  Waste Management 

Tudalen28

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7321/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf?v=20170727124344
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7321/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf?v=20170727124344


  Page 23 of 87 

 

 Policy SP20  Transport Network 

 Policy SP21   Built Environment and Historic Heritage 

Topic Based Policies 

 Policy SC1  Settlement limits 

 Policy I1  Infrastructure Requirements 

 Policy SRA2  Harbourside Strategic Regeneration Area 

 Policy OS1  Open Space Provision 

 Policy EC1   Employment Allocations 

 Policy EC3   Employment Area Uses  

 Policy EC4   Protection of Existing Employment Uses  

 Policy EN6  Important Biodiversity and Geodiversity Sites  

 Policy EN7   Important Natural Features 

 Policy EN8   Pollution and Land Stability  

 Policy EN9   Developments in the Central Port Talbot Area  

 Policy RE2   Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New 
Development 

 Policy W3   Waste Management in New Development 

 Policy TR2   Design and Access of New Development  

 Policy TR3   Safeguarding of Disused Railway Infrastructure  

 Policy TR4   Safeguarding Freight Facilities 

 Policy BE1   Design  

 Policy BE2   Buildings of Local Importance  

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 Planning Obligations (October 2016) 

 Parking Standards (October 2016) 

 Pollution (October 2016) 

 Open Space & Greenspace (July 2017) 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (July 2017) 

 Design (July 2017) 

 Landscape & Seascape (May 2018) 

 Biodiversity and Geodiversity (May 2018) 

 The Historic Environment (April 2019) (incl. Schedule of Buildings of 
Local Importance and SPG: Schedule of Designated Canal Structures) 

 
EIA and HRA Screening 
 
The proposed development falls in either Schedule 1.6a – Integrated chemical 
installations for the production of basic organic chemicals or alternatively 
Schedule 2.6a – Chemical industry, treatment of intermediate products and 
production of chemicals as defined by The Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017.  
 
The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement. As the 
application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement, under regulation 

Tudalen29

https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=63
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=64
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=73
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=73
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=75
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=82
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=84
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=85
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=85
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=88
https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_planning_obligations_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_pollution_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7239/spg_open_space_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7241/spg_renewable_energy_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9004/spg_landscape_seascape_may18.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9003/spg_biodiversity_geodiversity_may18.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11629/spg_historic_environment_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11630/spg_bli_schedule_april19.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/11633/spg_canal_schedule_april19.pdf


  Page 24 of 87 

 

25 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
(Wales) Regulations 2017, when determining an application the Authority must: 
 
(a) examine the environmental information; 
(b) reach a reasoned conclusion on the significant effects of the proposed 
development on the environment, taking into account the examination referred 
to in sub-paragraph (a) and, where appropriate, their own supplementary 
examination; 
(c) integrate that conclusion into the decision as to whether planning permission 
or subsequent consent is to be granted; and 
(d) if planning permission or subsequent consent is to be granted, consider 
whether it is appropriate to impose monitoring measures. 
 
Officers of the Authority, informed by consultees and specialist consultants 
have considered the ES and consider that is sufficient to meet the requirements 
above. 
 
The potential impact of the development on any SPA, SAC, CSAC or Ramsar 
sites is considered in detail in the Environmental Statement and the supporting 
assessments. These determined that there was no likely significant effect on a 
European Protected Site and this opinion is accepted by the Authority. This 
issue is considered in more detail in the relevant section below.  
 
Issues 
Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate 
to the principle of development; together with the impacts upon the socio-
economics; the impact upon the landscape and visual amenity; the impacts 
upon the heritage and archaeological assets; the impact upon residential 
amenity; the impact of noise and vibration; the impact on air quality; the impact 
of light pollution; the impact upon parking and access requirements and their 
impact upon highways and pedestrian safety; the impact upon land, hydrology, 
drainage and flood risk; the impact upon biodiversity and health and safety risk 
to human health and the impact upon waste management.  
 
Principle of Development 
As outlined above, the site of development is within the existing Port Talbot 
Docks area. It is brownfield land with a long history of industrial use. Planning 
policy strongly supports the re use of vacant and under utilised brownfield land. 
The site is situated in an area where there are existing industrial uses such as 
the Tata Port Talbot Steelworks to the south, the Hanson Cement plant to the 
north and industrial uses seen through the wider Port Talbot docks.  
 
Future Wales supports growing the economy in a sustainable manner, creating 
and sustaining communities and making best use of resources. The proposal 
is considered to be reasonably in accordance with these policies. This view is 
taken as the proposal will introduce an industrial development which will 
promote economic activity and sustainable growth. The aim of the proposal is 
to deliver on the Government’s support for more sustainable fuel supplies. The 
application sets out that when operational the proposal will employ 85 FTE jobs. 

Tudalen30



  Page 25 of 87 

 

The proposal will also make use of land that is brownfield, underutilised and in 
need of re-development.  
 
The application site is identified within a wider area of land to which Policy TR4 
of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (hereafter the LDP), applies. 
Policy TR4 envisages the development of the land for the transportation of 
freight. It is outside the Settlement Limit of Port Talbot as defined by Policy SC1 
of the LDP and associated Proposals Maps. The site of development has not 
come forward for freight / port related development as the LDP envisioned. This 
proposal will utilise the existing harbour for the transportation of feedstock and 
products. The proposal will involve improvement to the wharf and will support 
the continued use of Port Talbot as a working harbour. It is considered that the 
proposal as set out clearly supports the continued use of the harbour. There 
would be considerable areas of land remaining which could be used for the 
freight use envisaged in the policy, some of these areas would have improved 
utility following development with the TCAs being retained for use by ABP 
following development. It is noted that ABP have written in support of the 
proposal and are the land owner of the TCAs and the site as a whole. Harbour 
features would be improved at Crown Wharf or would remain available, the 
proposal does not impact on railway sidings or similar. Continuing to safeguard 
this land in its current form will it is considered not support the sustainable 
regeneration of the site and wider docks. Industrial uses complementary to the 
harbour location, which are deliverable and viable in this location such as this 
proposal, would continue to support the use of the dock and harbour assets. 
 
The submitted Environmental Statement (ES) examines the alternatives to the 
proposed development. This was a multi stage process and includes a ‘Do 
nothing’ scenario.  The ES states that there are a number of different sites that 
have been considered by the applicant for the development. This includes 
consideration of alternative development design (including size and scale); the 
justification for the current proposal is based on the need to meet engineering 
and health and safety requirements which are outlined in the ES. The do 
nothing scenario is also considered, it is noted the site would continue to 
change such as due to the continued growth of existing vegetation on site 
(including Japanese Knotweed). Alternative sites are also considered in detail 
with two sites identified with a site to the west of the proposed site within Port 
Talbot Docks considered and a site to the South of Margam Steelworks also 
identified. These two alternatives are considered against likely significant 
effects and the current proposal justified; noting that there is no particular 
reason to choose a site over another. The applicant has pursued this site 
predominantly based on commercial, viability and buildability (such as the 
presence of infrastructure to support long term operation, and application of 
policy considerations to environmental constraints) considerations. Alternative 
technologies are also considered and the ES outlines that the proposal will be 
required through environmental permitting to utilise best available technology.  
 
The proposed development is in reasonable compliance with the existing policy 
allocation and supports the delivery of a new employment use which will utilise 
existing dock infrastructure. In principle the development of this site as 
proposed is in reasonable accordance with policies of the LDP.  

Tudalen31



  Page 26 of 87 

 

 
Socio-economic impacts of development 
It is accepted that the proposals will make a positive contribution to sustainable 
economic growth and job creation in Neath Port Talbot. The proposal is 
considered to be in line with the vision set out in the Authority’s Decarbonisation 
and Renewable Energy Strategy (DARE) (May 2020). The proposal will 
contribute towards economic, social, health and environmental benefits of 
decarbonisation. It will also further Wales’ progress towards a low-carbon 
economy and provides an opportunity for Port Talbot to be at the forefront of 
this. 
 
The Authority’s Economic Development section supports the proposal and 
notes the following regarding the development: 
 
“Inward Investment: 
Lanzatech are an innovation company working in the areas of carbon recycling and 
reduction, turning carbon pollution into a resource, used for industry applications 
across various sectors. They are bringing forward a new approach and is said to be 
revolutionizing the way we think about carbon. Turning carbon into a “resource, not a 
liability.”  
 
Being able to secure a world leading innovation and substantial inward investment into 
the NPT area, is testimony of the strength of the NPT area, based on the strength of 
its industrial base and history, its connectivity and accessibility, and the wide range of 
development activities and opportunities that are progressing, one example being 
Freeport. This investment would reflect on the strengths of NPT and provide exposure 
to the global stage of what NPT area can achieve and its approach to net zero. 
Attracting industry investment, development of innovation around carbon reduction, 
while potentially providing a range of social and economic related benefits and impacts.   
 
This would also be the development and evolution of a new industry for Wales and the 
UK, coming forward from the NPT area, and such an investment is likely to also result 
in, and have potential of,  attracting more companies and investment into the area.  
With potential supply chain opportunities for local companies and services. NPT being 
chosen for the Lanzatech investment and location will be a strong sign of how the area, 
is evolving and looking for diversification of industry and attracting new innovations and 
investment.  
 
Having a ground-breaking commercial scale Alcohol-to-Jet facility that would supply 
around 1% of the UK’s jet fuel needs. The facility is expected to convert sustainable 
ethanol, via the LanzaJet Alcohol-to-Jet Process™, into sustainable aviation fuel which 
reduces the climate impact of flying by more than 70%.  Aviation being one of the most 
difficult sectors to decarbonise and, to accelerate the project, LanzaTech has received 
£25 million of support from the Department for Transport’s Advanced Fuels Fund.   
 
 
Net zero 
This development would strongly align to the new roadmap for net zero aviation by 
Sustainable Aviation. The report identifies sustainable aviation fuels as the key 
immediate opportunity to reduce aviation’s greenhouse gas emissions and as playing 
a major role in reaching net-zero aviation by 2050.  To try to limit the effects of climate 
change, the UK and Welsh governments have set legally-binding targets to achieve 
net-zero emissions by 2050. The aviation industry is one of the toughest sectors in 

Tudalen32



  Page 27 of 87 

 

which to reduce emissions. In order to tackle this, the Government will require the use 
of sustainable aviation fuel from 2025. The fossil fuels used today to make aviation 
fuels can be replaced by recycling waste carbon, such as from industrial sites, to make 
a sustainable aviation fuel.  The use of sustainable aviation fuel will reduce the climate 
impact of greenhouse gas emissions by more than 70% when compared with 
conventional fossil jet fuel. Sustainable aviation fuel also contains much lower levels 
of aromatic compounds than fossil jet fuel producing a much cleaner burn and causing 
far fewer soot particles and contrails that also heat the atmosphere. Sustainable 
aviation fuel can be used today without changes to existing aircraft engines (in blends 
of up to 50% alongside standard jet fuel), making it an immediate solution for the 
aviation industry.   
 
Building on the area’s industrial strength, this facility will enable Neath Port Talbot to 
play a leading role in creating carbon reduction industries and high skilled jobs that are 
critical to delivering the UK’s net zero economy and tackling the climate emergency. It 
will also align and supports the aims of NPT CBC – economic growth, job creation, net 
zero carbon reductions of our industrial base, new innovations developed in NPT and 
attracting investment into the area, and diversify our economy and industrial base. 
 
Economic Impacts 
 

 Result in significant jobs and GVA to the area 

 Potential of further employment in the supply chain across various areas and 
via suitable local contractors: 

 For example manufacturing and services to support the operational activity of 
the plant during the construction phase of the plant i.e. plant hire, related 
services etc water management, waste treatment and ship loading/unloading.  

 Additional investment into further carbon reduction new innovations which 
would result similar benefits noted in points above 

 Potential to support the decarbonisation of the steel industry going forward 
 
 
Alignment with: 
 

 UK Government key industrial and net zero strategies , polices and aims 

 Welsh Government key industrial and net zero strategies , polices and aims 

 NPT CBC aims and policy - economic growth, job creation, net zero carbon 
reductions of our industrial base, new innovations developed in NPT and 
attracting investment into the area, and diversify our economy and industrial 
base. 

 South Wales Industrial Cluster,  
 
Ongoing links with Economic Development activity: 
 
This project will also need to link into the following Economic Development Activity 

 Clean Growth Hub phase 2 – mapping and scoping 

 Supply chain development activity via the NPT Manufacturing forum 

 Provide information and have continued engagement  

 Provide profile of manufacturing supply chain opportunities for the local area 

 Links to schools development activity 

 Apprentices and skills developments 
 
This project is a key strategic project for NPT, that will secure investment into the area, 
create highly skilled and semi skilled well paid jobs, support the growth of the local 

Tudalen33



  Page 28 of 87 

 

economy, potential of local supply chain opportunities and attract more related 
companies into the area and deliver on net zero targets for NPT, Wales and UK as a 
whole.” 
 

It is accepted that the proposal will deliver economic benefits to Port Talbot and 
the wider region. The application is supported by a detailed assessment of the 
economic impact that the application proposal can deliver (within Chapter 9 of 
the ES). The anticipated total capital expenditure in the construction of the 
proposed development is up to £400 million. The applicant identifies the 
following benefits in summary within their Planning Statement:  
 
“• Total capital expenditure for the construction of the proposed development is 
in the order of hundreds of millions of pounds. 
• The creation of 85 new permanent (on-site) FTE jobs. 
• The proposed development has the potential to support up to 130 FTE jobs in 
the supply chain. 
• Use of local contractors where feasible, as well as use of local firms involved 
in activities such as water treatment, waste management, chemical 
management and ship loading/unloading, wherever possible. This makes use 
of specialist skills, of which there are a greater proportion in the area due to its 
industrial context.” 
 
The proposal will generate indirect benefits for the local economy. The 
application identifies that Gross Value Added for the project is calculated to be 
in the order of tens of millions of pounds per year over the operating life of the 
facility (minimum 20 years). It will generate considerable expenditure on 
construction materials, goods and other services which will be purchased from 
a wide range of suppliers. The applicant states that local firms will be used 
where possible. This expenditure will be beneficial to the economy as it passes 
through the supply chain.  
 
The ES assessment finds that a total of 405 net additional FTE positions could 
be generated each year across the wider impact area during the construction 
stage, inclusive of 220 jobs in the local impact area, these are summarised in 
Table 9.6 of the ES, as reproduced below (table 3). There is a detailed 
assessment in the ES which defines the local impact area as the Authority’s 
administrative area and the wider impact area is defined as Wales.  
 
Employment Generated  Local Impact Area Wider Impact Area 

(Inclusive of Local 
Impact Area) 

Person-years of employment  1,125 

Construction period (years) 2.5 

Gross FTE Employment 450 

Direct Net Additional FTE 
Employment 

175 270 

Indirect / Induced Net Additional 
FTE Employment  

45 135 

Total Net Additional FTE 
Employment  

220 405 

Table 3: Construction stage employment (ES Table 9.6) 

Tudalen34



  Page 29 of 87 

 

 
The proposal also estimates the operational stage employment, this estimates 
that the operational stage employment will be as summarised in ES Table 9.7 
reproduced below (Table 4):  
 
Employment Generated  Local Impact Area Wider Impact Area 

(Inclusive of Local 
Impact Area) 

Gross FTE Employment 85 

Direct Net Additional FTE 
Employment 

35 50 

Indirect / Induced Net Additional 
FTE Employment  

65 100 

Total Net Additional FTE 
Employment  

100 150 

Table 4: Operational stage employment (ES Table 9.7) 
 
TCA1 North is located on land that is identified as Existing Employment Land 
(Policy EC2/11 (Tata Steelworks)). It is accepted that the temporary 
construction areas are temporary and would not have a long term effect on the 
allocation and the establishing of an employment use in the future. The 
application does involve the removal of existing occupants who currently 
occupy land / buildings to be used as a temporary construction area. The 
applicant states that ABP as landowner are in discussions with the current 
occupiers and facilitating their relocation (within Port Talbot). The applicant has 
developing a social value strategy for the development and is engaging with 
occupants of the existing buildings to be demolished in TCA East. The Authority 
has not received objections from the occupiers and has received letters of 
support from some of the current occupiers (JES Group and Davies Crane 
Hire), who do not raise any concerns about the proposal. The proposal will 
facilitate development that provides significant investment in the County 
Borough and an increased level of direct and indirect employment opportunities 
and this is reasonably in accordance with Policy EC4. 
 
The supporting planning statement states that a wider Social Value Strategy 
forms part of LanzaTech’s commitment to investment in the area and has been 
developed in discussions with key stakeholders. It further states the application 
proposal provides an opportunity to provide high-skilled and well-paid 
employment opportunities in Port Talbot and to support upskilling and training 
amongst the local population. 
 
The information provided in support of the economic benefits of the proposal 
are such that it will provide a minor beneficial effect and not significant socio-
economic impact during construction and a moderate beneficial effect which is 
significant during operation. These beneficial effects are in line with the 
economic objectives of the LDP and National Planning Policy and Guidance 
and should be accorded weight during the determination of the application.  
 
 
 

Tudalen35



  Page 30 of 87 

 

Landscape and visual impact 
 
LDP objective 15 states the importance of conserving the boroughs important 
landscapes: 
“Conserve Neath Port Talbot’s important landscapes, countryside, 
undeveloped coast, important wildlife, habitats and geodiversity sites, ensuring 
that developments throughout the County Borough respect all landscapes and 
minimise adverse impacts.”  
 
Section 5.3.2 goes on to state:  
“Neath Port Talbot has a variety of distinctive and contrasting landscapes and 
seascapes. The Neath Port Talbot LANDMAP landscape assessment 
evaluates approximately half of the County Borough area as ‘high’ or 
‘outstanding’ for its geological landscapes, much of the visual and sensory 
aspect layer is evaluated as ‘moderate’ or of local importance with ‘high’ values 
applied to plateau and coastal areas, there are ‘high’ and ‘outstanding’ values 
for landscape habitats and the majority of the County Borough is ‘high’ or 
‘outstanding’ in terms of its cultural aspect layer.” 
 
Policy BE1 requires that development complements and enhances the 
character and appearance of the site; respects the context of the site and its 
place within the local landscape; utilises materials appropriate to its 
surroundings; and incorporates appropriate landscaping. Detailed design 
guidance relevant to visual amenity is provided in the Authority’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Design (July 2017). 
 
The application is supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
(LVIA). This is set out in Chapter 8 of the ES and in appendices.  
 
Considering the baseline landscape, the site is not within any designated 
landscape. The LVIA identifies special landscapes areas (as defined in policy 
EN2) and notes that the Margam Mountain SLA is 1.1km to the east of the PDZ. 
Margam Mountain Registered Landscapes of Outstanding and of Special 
Interest in Wales is also 1.1km to the east. Talbot Memorial Park is located to 
the North East and is Grade II under the Register of Historic Parks and Gardens 
Wales. 
 
In terms of the baseline landscape it is located within the docks area in close 
proximity to established industrial and maritime uses – the Hanson Cement 
works a large monolithic cream clad building and TATA steelworks being the 
most prominent features in close proximity. The site is vegetated and 
overgrown, there is a group Leyland cypress trees on the eastern boundary of 
the PDZ, the rest of the site comprises mainly self-seeded trees and shrubs, 
including Japanese Knotweed. Historically uses included coal works, railway 
lines, copper works, metal refinery works/steel ceilings factory, wagon repair 
shop and associated warehouses, depots and factory buildings. All buildings in 
the PDZ were demolished by 2009. There are warehouses, storage tanks and 
service yards in TCA East and a warehouse on TCA west that has recently 
been demolished. The site is relatively flat and forms part of the coastal plain 
where Port Talbot is located. To the east of the site across Port Talbot the land 

Tudalen36



  Page 31 of 87 

 

rises up to a series of hills. There is no public access to the site. Pheonix Way 
is a private road to the north of the site and is accessed by the ABP West Gate 
onto Harbour Way (A4241). The Llanwern Iron Ore Branch, is a disused railway 
track that abuts the PDZ to the south. The closest area with public access is 
the Harbour Way roundabout to the east of the Port Talbot Docks.  
 
In terms of local landscape character. The LVIA takes into account the 
published landscape character areas and also the Landmap landscape 
character areas and following fieldwork identified Local Landscape Character 
Areas (LLCAs), which were used to assess the landscape impacts of the 
development. The site is contained in character area LLCA1 Industrial 
Foreshore. Built form in this area is predominantly large in scale, with the 
majority of buildings being corrugated metal structures, owing to the industrial 
character of the area. The scale of buildings, road infrastructure and limited 
landscape features gives a feeling of exposure, vastness and a landscape 
which is not human in scale. The area has a low sense of tranquillity due to 
regular movement of large vehicles associated with the industrial area and 
sounds and sights produced by the steelwork process. LLCA1 does not form 
part of a designated landscape. The area has a low scenic quality and overall 
comprises a degraded landscape. LLCA1 has been assessed as having a low 
value. The application also identifies and describes other local landscape areas 
which may be impacted: LLCA2 – Port Talbot Town; LLCA3 - Margam, Emroch 
& Dinas Mountains; and LLCA4 – Swansea Bay. It identifies that LLCA 3 is of 
high value. These assessments are largely accepted. 
 
The LVIA also contains a Baseline Visual Amenity Assessment, this 
assessment is supported by a Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV), where areas 
of land where the development would potentially be visible are identified. The 
ZTV was produced for an area within a 5km radius of the PDZ. The LVIA 
accepts there are likely to be some more distant viewpoints beyond this from 
which the Proposed Scheme would be visible, but it would appear as a small 
feature in the background of the view, in the context of the industrial scale and 
character of Port Talbot’s industrial foreshore. It is agreed that visual impacts 
from this distance would not be significant to the decision-making process. The 
principal areas where the site and any proposed development within the PDZ 
would be visible are the areas around Port Talbot Docks to the north; sections 
of the M4 and Harbour Way, particularly as the latter passes closer to the PDZ 
and TCA1; other streets with vistas orientated towards the PDZ (Afan Way, 
Darwin Road, Aberavon Rd, Talcennau Rd, Abbey Rd); and potential glimpsed 
views from areas of public open spaces within the study area. The ZTV also 
indicates that views would be possible from sections of the Wales Coastal Path 
Route 4. The LVIA notes that the Hanson Cement Works is close to the site 
and is around 40m and gives a good indication of the height and scale of 
development within the PDZ 
 
Ten representative viewpoints have been identified and these are used to 
represent a set of visual receptors: road users on Harbour Way / A4241 (VPs 1 
& 2); users of the Wales Coast Path (WCP) north and west of Port Talbot Docks 
(VPs 1, 2, 3 and 7); users of the WCP on Margam Mountain (VP 6); Road users 

Tudalen37



  Page 32 of 87 

 

and pedestrians on Residential streets within Port Talbot and Margam (VPs 4, 
5, 8, 9 and 10).  
 
The LVIA identifies the effects of the proposal in detail including: the clearance 
of all vegetation at the site and site levelling; the proposed enclosed ground 
flare; the new structures on the PDZ up to 50m in height; the inclusion of normal 
and emergency lighting; the proposed landscaping and drainage features; the 
marine unloading / loading facility as well as the construction effects. Mitigation 
such as site hoardings and details that are to be agreed in a CEMP are 
identified.  
 
In respect to Landscape Character the following residual effects on landscape 
receptors arising from the Proposed Scheme during the construction stage 
have been identified:  
•LLCA1 – Industrial Foreshore: minor neutral  
•LLCA2 – Port Talbot Town: minor adverse  
•LLCA3 – Margam, Emroch & Dinas Mountains: negligible neutral  
•LLCA4 – Swansea Bay: minor neutral 
•Vegetation on Site: moderate adverse 
 
The following residual effects on landscape receptors arising from the Proposed 
Scheme during the operational stage have been identified: 
•LLCA1 – Industrial Foreshore: minor neutral  
•LLCA2 – Port Talbot Town: negligible to minor adverse 
•LLCA3 – Margam, Emroch & Dinas Mountains: negligible neutral 
•LLCA4 – Swansea Bay: minor neutral 
•Vegetation on Site: moderate adverse 
 
The following residual effects on key visual receptors arising from the Proposed 
Scheme during the construction stage have been identified: 
• Road users on Harbour Way / A4241: Varying from moderate-minor to 
negligible adverse 
• Users of the WCP, to the north and west of Port Talbot Docks: Varying from 
moderate to negligible adverse  
• Users of the WCP, on Margam Mountain: Varying from moderate to negligible 
adverse 
• Road users and pedestrians on Residential streets within Port Talbot and 
Margam: Varying from moderate-minor to negligible adverse  
• Residents of properties on Lower West End: moderate-minor adverse  
 
The following residual effects on key visual receptors arising from the Proposed 
Scheme during the operational stage have been identified.  
• Road users on Harbour Way / A4241: Varying from minor to negligible adverse 
• Users of the WCP, to the north and west of Port Talbot Docks: Varying from 
moderate to negligible adverse 
• Users of the WCP, on Margam Mountain: Varying from minor to negligible 
adverse 
• Road users and pedestrians on Residential streets within Port Talbot and 
Margam: Varying from minor to negligible adverse 
• Residents of properties on Lower West End: minor adverse 

Tudalen38



  Page 33 of 87 

 

 
Some extracts from the applicants LVIA and the supporting computer 
generated visualisations are provided below. In total there are ten viewpoints 
towards the site that form part of the LVIA assessment, Figures 7-9 provide a 
subset of these views, in each of the figures the existing and proposed view is 
provided.  
 
 

  
Figure 7a: Viewpoint 7 Wales Coastal 
Path / Mariner’s Point existing view 
towards site from west. 

Figure 7b: Viewpoint 7 Wales Coastal 
Path / Mariner’s Point proposed view 
towards site from west. 

 
 

  
Figure 8a: Viewpoint 2 from Harbour 
Way east of roundabout and east of 
site existing view. 

Figure 8b: Viewpoint 2 from Harbour 
Way east of roundabout and east of 
site proposed view. 

 

  
Figure 9a: Viewpoint 6 from east of 
site on footpath near Margam, 
Mynydd Brombil existing view. 

Figure 9b: Viewpoint 6 from east of 
site on footpath near Margam, 
Mynydd Brombil proposed view 

 

Tudalen39



  Page 34 of 87 

 

The adverse effects identified in the LVIA are agreed with and it is noted that 
there are significant landscape effects from the loss of vegetation at the site 
during and following construction. Also during operation to users of the Wales 
Coast Path to the north and west of Port Talbot Docks will have significant 
adverse impacts. While they are identified as significant, effects such as the 
removal of vegetation would be required in respect to any re-development of 
this site within the docks area. The extent of impacts on the users of the Wales 
Coast Path are also of limited duration on relatively short sections. Users of the 
Wales Coast Path at Margam Mountain will also have views obscured of the 
dock area during construction which was considered a significant effect, 
although it is acknowledged that this is reduced following construction as the 
TCAs would no longer be being used. Nonetheless there remain residual 
detrimental effects that will need to be considered in the planning balance when 
determining the application.  
 
Placemaking, design and built environment 
 
Policy SP21 seeks to ensure high quality design standards in all development 
proposals and to protect arterial gateways from intrusive inappropriate 
development. Policy BE1 requires that development complements and 
enhances the character and appearance of the site; respects the context of the 
site and its place within the local landscape; utilises materials appropriate to its 
surroundings; and incorporates appropriate landscaping. Detailed design 
guidance relevant to visual amenity is provided in the Authority’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Design (July 2017). 
 
The application is supported by a Design and Access Statement (D&AS) which 
has been prepared by the project architects. This outlines the functional nature 
of the development and how the scale, layout, appearance and landscaping of 
the proposal respond directly to the industrial processes and health and safety 
considerations of the development. The development is designed to allow for 
the effective and safe functioning of the facility. The D&AS responds to the 
requirements of TAN12 and Planning Policy Wales and provides details of how 
the design took into account: the different stages in the SAF production; the 
sites accessibility; modelling of fire hazards and risk; engineering and 
operational efficiency; safe movement and operation at the site; amenity by 
locating the larger structures to the south of the site further away from receptors; 
reducing equipment heights; and consideration of amenity issues such as noise 
generation.  
 
The design and access statement outlines that materials will be a dull and 
muted matte colours on larger equipment consistent with the surrounding 
materials. The proposed tanks are to be generally a PPC / PVF type finish in 
white colour, the racking and flare will have a galvanised steel appearance. 
Other buildings will have textured insulated panels, the administrative building 
will utilise a brown roof and other buildings will use metal cladding. The proposal 
is viewed to be well considered with the applicant taking significant steps to 
ensure that what is proposed is to a high design standard, within the limitations 
of what is possible within a scheme of this nature. The site is set in a dock side 

Tudalen40



  Page 35 of 87 

 

area and is not accessible to the public and the functional nature of the design 
is generally considered to be a typical of and appropriate to its context. 
 
Overall the proposal is viewed to be in accordance with LDP policy SP21 and 
BE1 and to be in accordance with Future Wales, Planning Policy Wales and 
Technical Advice Note 12: Design.  
 
Impact upon the historic environment 
Policy SP21 seeks to protect the heritage of the County Borough by 
safeguarding features of historic and cultural importance.  
 
The impact on cultural heritage assets was scoped out of the Environmental 
Impact Assessment. The application was supported by a standalone 
archaeology and heritage assessment prepared by specialist heritage 
consultants.  
 
This assessment concluded that the proposed development would have no 
direct impact on designated historic assets (such as listed buildings and 
scheduled monuments), because there are no designated historic assets 
located within the site and the site’s boundary does not take in or include any 
part of such an asset.  
 
The assessment similarly concluded it would not result in a loss of significance 
from any one of the designated heritage assets located within the site’s wider 
surroundings. This conclusion was reached on the basis that, the site may form 
part of the wider setting of heritage assets it would typically be a relatively small 
and peripheral aspect to their settings. It would be a change to the general 
surroundings of some of the designated assets distributed outside the site’s 
boundaries, this would not bear upon their significance and cause a loss of 
heritage significance and therefore ‘harm’. This view was supported by Cadw 
who accepted the conclusion that the proposal would not significantly impact 
on the wider setting of the single nearby scheduled ancient monument and 
would have no impact on the Talbot Memorial Park.  
 
In terms of ‘non-designated’ historic assets, the assessment does not identify 
any indirect effects to the Registered Landscape of Special Historic Interest. 
Whilst negligible changes to its setting are anticipated in terms of the distant 
views of the site looking outwards, the views outwards are already defined by 
the existing industrial development at Port Talbot and so as a result it is 
assessed that these negligible changes would not result in a loss of significance 
from the Landscape of Special Historic Interest. No harm would result from the 
proposals completion. 
 
In addition, it is assessed that the implementation of the proposed scheme for 
the site would have no more than a ‘minor adverse’ impact on buried 
archaeological remains at the construction stage and no further impacts in this 
respect are anticipated as being likely to occur subsequently during the 
development’s operational stage. 
 

Tudalen41



  Page 36 of 87 

 

This assessment is made on the basis that there is generally no more than a 
‘low’ potential for the proposed development to encounter and impact upon the 
conservation of significant archaeological sites, features and/or remains. Any 
horizons or deposits of earlier than postmedieval date, which might be of more 
than low significance, are expected to be deeply buried beneath deposits of 
modern made ground. Such deposits would therefore only potentially be 
encountered by the deepest elements of the proposed development, such as 
piled foundations. Any shallower horizons and deposits are very likely to derive 
from post-medieval and later activity at the site and be of no more than low or 
local significance, even though their conservation is more likely to be impacted 
by the implementation of the proposals. 
 
The assessment suggests that an appropriate and proportionate mitigation 
would comprise the completion of a watching brief during the open cut 
excavation for construction, or a programme of archaeological trial trenching, 
to identify and record any archaeological features, deposits or remains of 
interest that would be either destroyed or damaged by the implementation of 
the works. This would be agreed in advance with the local authority’s 
archaeological advisors at Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust (GGAT) and 
then detailed in a Written Scheme of Investigation (or WSI) submitted to and 
approved by GGAT as a condition of planning permission being granted for the 
development. This view is supported in the response by GGAT. While the above 
justifies the applicants approach, it should also be noted that the site is 
constrained for any pre-determination archaeological assessment due to the 
extensive areas of Japanese Knotweed.  
 
The application is supported by appropriately detailed information on the likely 
historic environment of the development. As outlined above the impact on the 
historic environment has been considered thoroughly and appropriate 
mitigation has been identified which can be secured through an appropriately 
worded planning condition. In view of this the proposal will have an acceptable 
historic environment impact and is in accordance with LDP policy SP21 in this 
respect.  
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Policy BE1(4) requires that development does not have a significant adverse 
effect on the amenity of local residents. The Authority has Supplementary 
Planning Guidance (adopted July 2017) on Design which provides specific 
advice on how to consider residential amenity impacts in determining planning 
applications. 
 
The closest residential properties to the site are Upper / Lower West End. Table 
5 shows the distance of the operational site from sensitive receptors. Upper / 
Lower West End are also close to TCA 1 and are separated from this part of 
the site by Harbour Way.  
 

Receptor Description Approx. Distance to nearest 
operational site boundary (m) 

Dwellings at Mariners Point 890 

Tudalen42



  Page 37 of 87 

 

Dwellings at Darwin Rd / Newbridge Road 900 

Dwellings on Isaac’s Place / Borough St 1090 

Dwellings on Green Park St 1050 

Dwellings on Water St / Blanco’s Hotel 1150 

Flats above shops on Station Road 990 

Dwellings on Talbot Road 745 

Dwellings on Lower West End 575 

Dwellings on St Albans Terrace 810 

Dwellings on Duke St 1000 

Port Talbot Magistrates Court 790 

 
Table 5: approximate distance from receptor to PDZ (Table 12.4 from ES) 
 
In relation to the proposed development’s more direct impacts through 
overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing, it is considered that due to the size, 
siting and design of the proposed development that there would be no adverse 
impacts upon the residential amenity of the occupiers of the nearest 
neighbouring properties.  
 
The potential impacts of the proposed development upon the residential 
amenity of the occupiers of the nearby properties through noise, vibration and 
air quality will be assessed within the following sections of this report.   
 
As outlined the proposal in terms of its direct impact on residential amenity 
would be acceptable and in accordance with policy BE1.  
 
Noise and Vibration. 
 
Policy SP16(1) seeks to protect the environment by ensuring that development 
does not have any significant adverse impact on pollution. Policy EN8 seeks to 
prevent proposals which would be likely to have an unacceptable adverse effect 
on health, biodiversity and/or local amenity or would expose people to 
unacceptable risk due to reduced noise pollution. 
 
Chapter 12 of the ES contains comprehensive information on noise and 
vibration impacts likely to arise from the development. It is supported by base 
line noise assessments and also operational and construction noise impact 
assessments. These have been prepared by a specialist acoustic consultant. 
The applicant has also provided clarification on the noise impact of the 
development on the determination of the application. The ES sets out the 
national and local legislative, policy and guidance considerations that were 
relevant during the EIA and discusses significant effects.  
 
In relation to construction noise the assessment considers the guidance within 
BS5228 – Code of Practice for Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and 
Open Sites. The applicants have modelled scenarios of anticipated noise levels 
and the modelling shows that the proposal can meet relevant standard weekday 
and Saturday working hours. The modelling also indicates that only against a 
worst-case 1-hour noise scenario are there exceedances of 5db at two 
receptors if works are undertaken outside these hours. The supporting 

Tudalen43



  Page 38 of 87 

 

assessment notes that it is anticipated that weekend or evening working would 
be at a reduced rate and would not fall in the works anticipated in the worst 
case scenario. This argument is accepted, however the limitations on working 
that would be required to lower noise to an acceptable level outside of the 
standard working hours have not been identified. It is considered that details 
would need to be provided of any activities and their likely noise and 
disturbance impact before the Authority could agree to extended hours. This 
requirement will be incorporated into a condition.  
 
The documents sets out the method of determining the significance of 
construction noise based on the change in ambient noise levels as well as the 
recommendations for basic methods of vibration control relating to construction. 
The documents also sets out the thresholds of significant effects at dwellings 
for both noise and transient vibration values. The requirement to meet these 
limitations can be incorporated into a planning condition.  
 
The applicants have submitted a draft Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) which would seek to minimise the impacts of the 
construction phase of the proposed development upon the immediate and wider 
surrounding area.  In addition to this, conditions are recommended for 
imposition which would seek a Piling Method Statement prior to the start of any 
piling works on site and restrict the hours of construction works. The Piling 
Method Statement is also requested to be imposed by NRW, although this is in 
respect to their remit for protecting controlled waters. 
 
The ES considers the impacts associated within the Operational Phase of 
development. The applicant has provided detail on their modelling of the 
development including how information for ships operating at the site was 
derived and details of source plant noise data. The scenarios for operational 
noise consider 24 hour operation and intermittent noise sources – this includes 
modelling the testing of diesel generators and flaring. Detailed information on 
the noise modelling is provided in the impact assessment and is for the following 
scenarios: Normal Operation; Normal Operations with Ship Movement (Day 
LAeq,1hr); Normal Operations with Ship Movement (Night LAeq,15mins); Ship Off-
Loading; Start-up Flare; Emergency Flare; and Generator Testing. 11 Sound 
Sensitive Receptor Locations were used in the modelling – 575m – 1150m from 
the site and listed in table 5 above.   
 
There are inherent mitigation measures in the design of the proposal. These 
include using an enclosed ground flare, enclosing compressor plant within 
compressor houses and enclosing high noise pumps.  
 
The ES based on the noise modelling does not identify any significant effects 
from the operational noise of the proposed development. The modelling 
demonstrates that predicted noise levels will fall well below existing background 
levels within the designated quiet areas. The ES sets levels of noise from the 
development that are acceptable and it is considered that a condition to manage 
noise complaints should be imposed on any permission. Taking into account 
the modelling it is considered that no unacceptable impacts will occur and the 
proposal is in accordance with LDP Policy EN10.  

Tudalen44



  Page 39 of 87 

 

 
The emergency flaring scenario will result in exceedance of noise limits at the 
closest receptors, this represents an exceptional circumstance that is 
anticipated to occur on average once in every 10 years. Flaring noise levels 
would also drop inline with start-up flaring after around 30 minutes. It is 
considered reasonable to allow for higher limits to be permissible during an 
infrequent, emergency scenario. 
 
In designated quiet areas, to which policy EN 10 applies, the modelling shows 
that the development when operating would not exceed current background 
levels.   
 
The ship off-loading process associated with the transfer of ethanol may take 
up to 18 hours. Where pump off-loading will run into the night, this has the 
potential to cause an adverse impact at two receptors SSR3 (Isaac’s Place) 
and SSR7 (105 Talbot Road). This would only occur once every 7-14 days. 
While noting this adverse effect it is noted that this aligns with LDP objectives 
and policy allocations to encourage port activity and freight movement in this 
area. The noise assessment notes that this would represent typical activity in a 
port area, where materials are being transferred.  
 
The noise and vibration information has been reviewed by a specialist 
consultant on behalf of the authority and following clarification of a number of 
points by the applicant they have concluded that the conclusions of the ES are 
robust. NRW has provided comments on Chapter 12 of the ES and the 
assessment of noise, they do note that they may request further assessment 
as part of a future Environmental Permit application. They do not object to the 
application and the applicant’s agent has been made aware of their comments.  
 
Overall construction and operational noise levels are generally in accordance 
with acceptable limits and reflective of the surrounding industrial and port 
operations. On-site mitigation including enclosures and design changes have 
occurred to support this. Sources of exceedances relate to less frequent or 
emergency scenarios. The proposed development is viewed to be in 
reasonable accordance with policies EN8 and EN10 in the LDP, as well as TAN 
11 (Noise), however the areas where there is exceedance should be given 
weight in considering if the development is acceptable on balance.  
 
Air Quality 
Policy SP16(1) seeks to protect the environment by ensuring that development 
does not have any significant adverse impact on air quality. Policy EN8 seeks 
to prevent proposals which would be likely to have an unacceptable adverse 
effect on health, biodiversity and/or local amenity or would expose people to 
unacceptable risk due to air pollution. 
 
Air quality modelling has been provided for the development by a specialist 
consultant and an assessment of impact forms part of the ES (Chapter 11 and 
Appendices 11.1-11.8). Revised Chapters of the ES were submitted to the 
Authority which reflected feedback from a consultant appointed by the Authority 
to review this aspect of the proposal which provided further clarification. 

Tudalen45



  Page 40 of 87 

 

 
The modelling undertaken provides an assessment of the study area which is 
justified within the ES. Human receptors and ecological receptors are identified. 
The human receptors used in the assessment are to the north of the site within 
Sandfields and then into the air quality monitoring area to the east of the site. 
In relation to ecological receptors four SINCs and two ancient woodlands within 
2km of the Site. In addition, three SACs have been identified within 10km of the 
Site. An explanation is given of how the impact of traffic in construction and 
operation has been assessed is given and it is noted that effected receptors 
from the M4 and Harbour Way are identified. Emission sources are identified 
modelling for air quality, these include on site boilers in different modes of 
operation; flare operation; firewater pumps and diesel generators. Nearby 
receptors are shown in figure 10 below.  
 

 
Figure 10: Air quality human health receptors. Blue squares are for point 
source modelling; green squares are for road traffic modelling; the light blue 
area is the Air Quality Management Area; and the red line site boundary. (Figure 
1.1 in the ES) 
 
The ES within Table 11.18 identifies the following residual effects and assesses 
whether they are significant, this table is reproduced below as (Table 6).  
 

Tudalen46



  Page 41 of 87 

 

Effect Receptor Residual effect Is this 
significant? 

Construction stage:  
Change to local air 
quality in terms of 
human health and 
ecology due to 
transport 
emissions including 
vehicle and shipping 
emissions 

Residential, 
community and 
educational 
facilities 
 

Negligible 
 

No 

Change to local air 
quality in terms of 
human health and 
ecology due to on-site 
emissions associated 
with general operation  
(SC1, SC2a, SC2b 
and SC2c) which 
represent the general 
day to day operation 
of the Site including 
testing regime for 
emergency 
generators and fire 
pumps 

Nearest 
sensitive 
human 
receptors 
(residential, 
educational, 
health 
facilities) 
located to 
the east, 
northeast,  
west, north, 
northwest and 
west 

Negligible 
 

No 

On-site 
receptors (i.e. 
workers) 

Minor  No 

Ecological 
Receptors –
Kenfig Special 
Area of 
Conservation 
(SAC), Crymlyn 
Bog SAC Cefn 
Cribwr SAC, 
SSSI, SINCS, 
AW, NNR and 
LNR 

Negligible No 

Change to local air 
quality in terms of 
human health and 
ecology due to 
transport emissions 
including vehicle and 
shipping emissions 

Nearest 
sensitive 
human 
receptors 
(residential, 
educational, 
health 
facilities) 
located 
adjacent to 
Harbour 
Road 

Negligible  No 

Tudalen47



  Page 42 of 87 

 

 Ecological 
Receptors – 
Kenfig 
SAC/SSSI 

Negligible No 

Table 6: Air quality residual effects and significance. 
 
The air quality modelling does show exceedance of nitrogen critical loads at the 
Kenfig SSSI (outside the Kenfig SAC). This is based on a scenario called SC1 
which is the long term operational scenario and includes HP Boiler (normal 
operation; normal operation liquid firing; operation during start up); Flare 
operation during start up; Flare operation during shut down; use of fire water 
pumps and diesel generators. It also includes operational traffic generated by 
the development. In this scenario there is exceedance in a narrow strip of the 
SSSI that is closest to the M4, this strip of land was assessed by the applicant’s 
ecologist who identified that there was no habitats likely to be effected by the 
modelled exceedance and therefore no detrimental impact to the SSSI. This 
was reviewed by the NPT Ecologist who supports this view. Notwithstanding on 
site workers other impacts to air quality are considered to be negligible.  
 
In respect to the construction and demolition the applicant is proposing to follow 
best practice mitigation to manage dust. These practices and measures will be 
agreed in a finalised Construction Environmental Management Plan secured by 
a planning condition.  
 
An odour briefing note has been prepared by the applicant and this confirms 
that the design of the plant will limit fugitive emissions. It outlines that no odours 
are expected from the gas or liquids used on site.  
 
The Authority has commissioned a specialist consultant to review the air quality 
assessment submitted by the applicant. They requested that additional 
modelling and verification was undertaken. Following this they were able to 
confirm that the conclusions of the ES are robust and can reasonably be used 
by the Authority in determining the application. NRW has provided comments 
on the modelling and the applicant has provided clarification. NRW in their final 
response do not offer an objection to the proposal, but they do note that it is 
likely that additional modelling will be required to show the acceptability of the 
proposal in order for it to receive an Environmental Permit. 
 
To summarise the proposal is supported by information to show that it would 
not give rise to any significant effects due to construction traffic, to fine particles 
(PM10) within the air quality management area; will have no significant impacts 
on human receptors; will have no significant effects on the local ecology; and 
will not lead to any breaches of any pollution standards for local properties.  
 
It is therefore considered that based on the submitted information within the 
Environmental Statement and supporting information, that the proposed 
development complies with policies SP16 and EN8 of the LDP, as well as the 
Pollution SPG (October 2016). 
 
 

Tudalen48



  Page 43 of 87 

 

Lighting  
 
Policy SP16(1) seeks to protect the environment by ensuring that development 
does not have any significant adverse impact on pollution levels. Policy EN8 
seeks to prevent proposals which would be likely to have an unacceptable 
adverse effect on health, biodiversity and/or local amenity or would expose 
people to unacceptable risk due to light pollution. 
 
The application is accompanied by a Lighting Assessment and Strategy that 
has been prepared by a specialist consultancy. 
 
The lighting assessment outlines that exterior lighting is required at the site to 
allow for safe access and use of the area by employees and visitors. The 
submitted drawings include the proposed external lighting to illuminate roads, 
paths, car parks and truck loading areas and task lighting for external areas 
associated with the modules and compressor houses. The assessment uses 
specialist light modelling software to derive conclusions on the impact of lighting 
at the site.  
 
This showed that the lighting design strategy largely contains light within the 
confines of the site and within the docks area. Pole lighting provides illumination 
to the designated areas predominantly without over-lighting, and equipment will 
create a distribution that drops below 1 lux within 45m from pole locations. The 
assessment notes that the lower aiming angle in the assessment area, and their 
distance from nearby trees/wooded areas, aids in minimising light reaching 
adjacent trees. 
 
The assessment concludes that no effects relating to light spill or glare upon 
residential receptors are anticipated. Low level indirect sky glow may be 
anticipated, but this is planned to be sufficiently mitigated using standard, easily 
applied measures, including luminaire shielding, careful consideration of 
luminaire positioning and orientation (aiming the fixtures downwards with a 
concerted intention to only illuminate areas that require light), by avoiding over-
lighting for the task, and by smart use of lighting controls (dimming and 
switching off) when particular areas are not in use. 
 
The applicant’s planning statement notes that no impacts to ecology are directly 
attributable to the new lighting conditions at the site. It further notes that results 
demonstrate that are no significant effects anticipated on ecological receptors 
outside the site boundary and no specific mitigation is therefore required. 
 
NRW has advised that they consider the proposed lighting at construction and 
operational phases will not have significant adverse impacts on bats or otters. 
In respect to bats the application identifies that there is a They agree with the 
mitigation proposed in the Lighting Assessment and Strategy and are satisfied 
that an acceptable detailed lighting plan can be secured by planning condition.  
 
In terms of lighting impact the proposed development, subject to agreement of 
a detailed lighting plan, accords with Policy EN8 of the LDP, as well as the 
Pollution SPG (October 2016) 

Tudalen49



  Page 44 of 87 

 

Traffic and Transport 
 
LDP policy SP20 is a strategic policy which includes criteria seeking to: restrict 
development which would have an unacceptable impact on highway safety; 
requires appropriate parking provision; and requires safe and efficient access 
and promotion of sustainable transport. LDP policy TR2 identifies that 
proposals will only be permitted where: there is no adverse impact on highway 
safety or unacceptable levels of traffic generation; there are appropriate levels 
of parking and cycling facilities provided. The development has to be accessible 
by a range of travel means, including public transport and safe cycle and 
pedestrian routes. The LDP is supported by a Parking Standards SPG (October 
2016), which gives guidance on the level of parking required from new 
development. PPW 12 states that “It is Welsh Government policy to require the 
use of a sustainable transport hierarchy in relation to new development, which 
prioritises walking, cycling and public transport ahead of the private motor 
vehicles”.  
 
A Transport Assessment (TA) has been prepared in support of the application.  
 
The site is located on land to the south of Port Talbot docks and west of the 
A4241 Harbour Way around 1.4km south of Port Talbot Town Centre. The site 
is currently accessed off a section of Phoenix Way, which fronts the northern 
site boundary and connects to the A4241 Harbour Way via North Road. The 
section of North Road between the A4241 Harbour Way / North Road 
roundabout and Phoenix Way is subject to a 30mph speed limit while Phoenix 
Way itself is subject to a 20mph speed limit. Access off North Road onto 
Phoenix Way is controlled via a security gate which benefits from two entry 
lanes. Phoenix way narrows to the west of the security gate and it is not 
sufficient to allow two HGVs to pass and give way arrangements are in place. 
Phoenix Way is well used by HGVs serving the existing industrial uses in the 
vicinity of the site.  
 
It is considered that the site is accessible by sustainable transport modes. 
Pheonix Way connects to the wider active travel network in Port Talbot. Access 
to the site on foot and by cycle is of a good standard and there are multiple 
transport connections within close proximity providing access to a range of local 
destinations. It is noted that due to health and safety requirements that internally 
within the ABP docks area pedestrians / cyclists are not permitted. The 
applicant has suggested that an EV shuttle from the entrance gate to the 
construction site would allow for construction workers to utilise alternatives to 
the private car in working at the site.  
 
The proposed access arrangements will be by the creation of three new access 
points onto Pheonix Way. This access route accommodates numerous large 
HGVs serving industrial uses such as ABP, Tata and Hanson Cement. The 
Local Highways Authority has not raised any objections to the proposed access 
arrangements.  
 
The trip generation in relation to construction has been assessed in the 
Transport Assessment (TA). This states that the contractor has confirmed that 

Tudalen50



  Page 45 of 87 

 

approximately 102 daily HGV movements (204 two-way daily HGV movements) 
are anticipated to be generated during the peak months of construction. The 
TA considers 120 daily HGV movements (240 two-way daily HGV movements) 
in order to allow for a robust assessment. In construction HGV movements 
would be needed for site preparation works including removal of soil and import 
of clean fill material, site establishment, delivery of equipment, delivery of 
material, removal of waste. HGVs will be arriving throughout the day (estimates 
up to 52 and 24 two-way HGV movements could be expected in the AM and 
PM peak hours respectively). The contractor estimates 450 staff will be required 
on-site. The applicant states that in order to limit the traffic impacts during the 
construction phase and to promote sustainable travel, the applicant / contractor 
has confirmed that car sharing and travel via minibus will be heavily encouraged 
 
The routes are predicted to operate within their capacity with the proposed 
additional traffic. However, existing capacity issues have been identified during 
peak hours of traffic in some areas. The impacts of the additional construction 
traffic was not determined to materially effect these capacity issues and no 
mitigation measures are required given the temporary nature of the impacts.  
 
The applicant has confirmed the following in relation to tanker / HGV 
movements when operational: 
• Approximately 7 fuel tankers per week are expected, which may increase to 
50 tankers per week depending on the operating mode, although this level of 
fuel export by truck would last no longer than 2 months. 
• The intent will be to utilize by-products within the plant as much as feasible. 
However, there may be reasons by-products need to go out as waste via truck, 
either on flatbed trucks with tote tanks or tanker truck. Between 0-4 HGV 
movements per week will be associated with the export of by-products. 
• During normal operation there are utility and process chemicals that will be 
needed to keep the facility operating properly. Some utility chemicals will be 
managed by the plant, others will be contracted out for chemical treatment and 
be shipped to the site under the guidance of the contracted organisation. 
Between 6-12 HGV movements per week will be associated with the delivery 
of chemicals. 
• There will also be requirements for routine delivery of equipment, spare parts, 
and other materials to support the continued operation, as well as shipment of 
materials out for servicing. Each of these could be on lighter delivery trucks or 
flatbed trucks with 1-2 trucks per day expected. 
 
The Transport Assessment goes on to say that having regard to the above and 
assuming all imports / exports take place Monday-Friday, the proposed 
development will generate between approximately 4-15 tanker / HGV 
movements per day (8-30 two-way tanker / HGV movements per day) in relation 
to road imports / exports. The processing facility will be operational 24 hours 
per day, however, assuming the imports / exports all take place in the 12-hour 
period of 07:00-19:00, then the proposed development will only result in circa 
1-3 additional two-way HGV movements in both the AM and PM highway peak 
hours. 
 

Tudalen51



  Page 46 of 87 

 

In terms of staff, there will be a total of 85 staff including 6 remote technical 
support staff, as detailed earlier. Based on the proposed shift patterns detailed 
earlier, the applicant expects circa 50 staff to be on site at any one time during 
the day, although up to 62 staff could potentially be on site at any one time 
during shift change over periods. In addition to the normal operating team, there 
will be up to 5 additional contractors on site primarily during the day to support 
with routine maintenance and servicing of equipment. When considering the 
staff shift patterns detailed earlier and assuming all staff travel in private cars, 
circa 50 staff are anticipated to arrive between 07:00 and 08:00, with no other 
arrivals and only 12 departures in the AM peak period, between 08:00 and 
09:00. There are not anticipated to be any arrivals in the PM peak period, 
although circa 41 departures are expected between 16:00 and 17:00 and 9 
departures are expected between 17:00 and 18:00. 
 
In the event of disruption to shipping supply chain, ethanol and SAF will be 
transported by trucks. The TA states that this would be for a 24 hour period 
which would occur with normal production rates for a maximum of two days, 
with 26 HGV movements per day anticipated (52 two-way HGV movements per 
day). If disruption occurs for more than two days the TA states that the 
production would ramp down to 50% for a maximum duration of two weeks, with 
13 HGV movements per day anticipated (26 two-way HGV movements), during 
operations shut down. It is accepted that this traffic increase is not considered 
significant, particularly given that shipping disruption is unlikely and will only be 
temporary.  
 
The trip generation from the development when operational is considered to not 
materially impact the highway network and this position has been agreed with 
the local highways authority and reflects the capacity of the highway network 
serving the site, which are major roads such as the A4241 Harbour Way and 
the M4.  
 
The proposal includes 57 car parking spaces which is sufficient to 
accommodate the operation of the site including shift changeover, accessibility 
requirements and visitors to the site. The application also includes motorcycle 
parking and safe cycle storage within the parking area close to the 
administrative building. The applicant is also proposing 25% of spaces to be 
electric vehicle charging points.  
 
The proposed development will utilise the marine loading/unloading facility to 
import ethanol feedstock and export SAF produced on-site, using ship tankers. 
The applicant states that the shipping will be operated by third parties or by the 
ethanol feedstock supplier and will be outside their direct control. This use of 
alternatives to road transport (e.g. rail or sea) is encouraged by Policy SP1 
(Climate Change) of the LDP. 
 
The Local Highways Authority has reviewed the information submitted and has 
no objections to the proposed development subject to planning conditions. The 
conditions suggested cover the submission of a construction method statement; 
the setting out of and provision of parking including EV charging spaces; 
internal directional signage for the site (which would be included as an 

Tudalen52



  Page 47 of 87 

 

informative); submission of a travel plan; and securing visibility splays. Similarly 
Welsh Government as the highways authority for the M4 have offered no 
objection or comment to the proposal.  
 
The Authority’s active travel officer has requested a contribution to the provision 
of active travel infrastructure in the locality. This contribution would be to the 
Newbridge Active Travel project, for which the Authority is expecting to receive 
UK Government part funding for or other active travel projects in Port Talbot. 
The Authority has agreed with the applicant a contribution of £188,960.65. To 
active travel which will need to be secured through an appropriately worded 
planning agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). The applicant has agreed to the principle of this and at the 
time of this report a draft agreement has been produced. 
 
Overall the proposal is accessible to a range of transport means and is also 
served by large capacity major roads. It contains appropriate levels of parking 
in accordance with the Authority’s standards. There are no objections to the 
application from the local highways authority and it is considered that the 
proposal is reasonably in accordance with Policies SP20 and TR2.  
 
Hydrology and Drainage 
 
This is an industrial development and water at the site will be managed to reflect 
this. Drainage at the site will be split in to two streams: a clean water drain 
utilising SuDS, which will discharge into the adjoining dock; and a contaminated 
drain flowing to an on site effluent treatment plant (for areas of highway hazard). 
 
The SuDS system will utilise rain gardens, gravel-based swales and permeable 
paving. The industrial nature of the development and the need to consider 
health and safety and the COMAH regulations, has limited the extent of 
biodiversity and amenity benefits of SuDS. These benefits are maximised in the 
administrative area where there is more scope for vegetation and biodiversity 
benefit.  
 
The application was referred to officers of the Authority’s drainage service, who 
have responsibilities covering SAB approval, land drainage and the Authority’s 
role as lead local flood authority.   
 
In their response they have indicated that the development will require separate 
approval under the sustainable drainage regulations. The Sustainable Drainage 
Approval Body (SAB) has not indicated in their response to the Local Planning 
Authority that the scheme is not capable of meeting the statutory standards 
(Surface water runoff destination; Surface water runoff hydraulic control; Water 
Quality; Amenity; Biodiversity; Design of drainage for construction, operation 
and maintenance). In light of this response it is considered that the appropriate 
disposal of surface water can be left through the SAB approval process. 
 
The applicants note that they do not intend to seek adoption of the drainage 
system by the SAB and will seek to self manage it. They also note that the 
drainage proposals are contained in the site of development and do not impact 

Tudalen53



  Page 48 of 87 

 

on third parties.  
 
The application supporting information indicates that foul flows will be diverted 
to the main sewer. The proposal has been referred to Dwr Cymru Welsh Water 
(DCWW). They have offered no objection in principle, subject to a standard 
condition, to the foul flow discharging to the public sewer. They also consider 
that the proposal can be connected to a potable water supply.  
 
The applicant intends to abstract water from the adjoining dock water body at a 
rate of 150m3/hr. NRW has commented on water abstraction in their response 
noting that there are constraints on this in Port Talbot Docks. They note that 
there are deficits in periods of low river flows, which leads to back pumping of 
water from the sea which has implications for industrial processes using the 
water. They note that this has led to ABP replacing the dock lock gates and the 
refurbishment of the Greenpark Weir. The applicant has been made aware of 
these comments and the NRW recommendation to discuss water abstraction 
issues with the Afan Water Management Group. Abstraction will be subject to 
separate consent for an abstraction licence which is dealt with by NRW and this 
system of control is considered adequate to ensure that abstraction is 
acceptable.  
 
The application will also be subject to a marine licence. NRW has commented 
on this and noted that they remain concerned about the applicant’s Water 
Framework Directive assessment. While noting their continuing concerns they 
advise that these concerns will be addressed under the marine licence and the 
Environmental Permitting Regulation (EPR) water discharge permit rather than 
the planning application.  

 
The application demonstrates that the proposed development meets the 
principles and requirements set out in TAN15 and the aims of Planning Policy 
Wales, as well as LDP Policy SP1 (Climate Change). 

 
Flood Risk 
The application site is located within Zone B and Zone C2 of the Development 
Advice Maps (DAMs) to TAN 15. The proposed PDZ is located in Zone B, 
Phoenix Way and supporting infrastructure and temporary construction areas 
are located in Zone B and Zone C2. The Flood Map for Planning (FMfP) is used 
in the draft TAN15. A small part of the PDZ is located in Flood Zone 2 (between 
a 0.1% and 1% chance of flooding in any given year) of the FMfP. The 
remainder of the PDZ is located in Flood Zone 1 (less than a 0.1% chance of 
flooding in any given year). The Phoenix Way Supporting Infrastructure is 
located in Flood Zone 1 with a small part of this area located in Flood Zones 2 
and 3. The Temporary Construction Area to the eastern extent of the red line 
boundary is located in Flood Zones 2 and 3. The remaining Temporary 
Construction Areas are located in Flood Zone 1. The developer was advised by 
NRW that as part of the site was in Flood Zone 3 the application must be 
supported by a Flood Consequences Assessment (FCA). As such an FCA has 
been provided and is written by an appropriate specialist consultant. The policy 
requirements for considering flooding issues in national policy are also reflected 

Tudalen54



  Page 49 of 87 

 

in the objectives of the LDP.  
 
The FCA notes that the PDZ is located in Zone B and that a justification is not 
required. The Temporary Construction Areas are within Zone C2 and flood 
zones of the FMfP, these areas would be used for a temporary period and would 
not involve the construction of permanent structures. The FCA indicates that 
this part of the development as a temporary construction area would not amount 
to new development as defined in Section 6 of TAN15. For completeness the 
FCA considers the proposal against the policy requirements in TAN 15 and 
summarises the compliance with policy in the following table (FCA table 3-2): 
 

TAN15 Justification Criteria Comments Achieved 

Its location is necessary to assist a 
local authority regeneration 
initiative or strategy, or contribute 
to key employment objectives, 
necessary to sustain an existing 
settlement or region. 

The proposed development 
will assist with the relevant 
policies listed in the Local 
Development Plan as well 
as supporting the overall 
vision of the LDP. 

✓ 

 

The site meets the definition of 
previously developed land (i.e., it is 
not a Greenfield site) and concurs 
with the aims of Planning Policy 
Wales (i.e., the presumption in 
favour of sustainable 
development). 

The site is located on 
previously developed 
brownfield land. (ref. 
Section 2.1). The site 
therefore concurs with the 
aims of Planning Policy 
Wales. 

✓ 

 

A Flood Consequence Assessment 
has been produced to demonstrate 
that the potential consequences of 
a flood event up to the extreme 
flood event (1 in 1000 chance of 
occurring in any year) have been 
considered and meet the 
[Acceptability Criteria] … in order to 
be considered acceptable. 

The flood consequences 
have been assessed and 
are detailed further in 
Sections 4 and 5 of the FCA 
(outlined in Committee 
report below). 
 

✓ 

 

Table 7: Assessment of scheme against TAN15 acceptability criteria (FCA 
table 3-2) 

 
The FCA confirms the following: 
 
• The site is at little or no risk of flooding from reservoir failure. 
• The site is at low risk of groundwater and surface water flooding. The dominant 
flood risk to the site is tidal and fluvial. 
• During the pre-development scenario, the land within the PDZ is predicted to 
be flood free during the tidal 0.5% AEP plus climate change and fluvial 1% AEP 
plus climate change and 0.1% AEP design events. 
• Ground levels should be raised to at least 7.5mAOD, a level above the 0.1% 
AEP design event. 
• The PDZ is predicted to remain flood free during the 0.1% plus climate change 
tidal flood event as a result of ground raising works. 
 

Tudalen55



  Page 50 of 87 

 

The ground levels across the PDZ will be raised to a minimum ground level of 
7.5m AOD. Most areas of the site already exceed this level. The proposed cut 
and fill balance is set at 8m AOD. No changes in level to Phoenix Way or the 
TCAs are proposed. The FCA also concludes that there will be no third- party 
impacts resulting from ground raising.  
 
The application was referred to NRW who advised: “We have no objection to 
the proposed development from a flood risk perspective, as the FCA 
demonstrates that the main area of development (Production Development 
Zone) will be flood free during the 0.1% fluvial and 0.1%+cc tidal scenarios and 
therefore compliant with TAN15, with the exception of a very small area of 
flooding on an existing access road adjacent to the Dock, please note that 
access and egress is a matter for your Authority.” The FCA states that in the 
1% plus climate change fluvial flood event and the 0.5% plus climate change 
tidal flood event, safe access/egress from the site is maintained. In the most 
extreme and exceptional 0.1% AEP plus climate change tidal flood event, 
flooding is shallow and will not affect access to and from the site. As such the 
proposal is considered to maintain adequate escape and evacuation routes 
under all conditions.  

 
It is concluded that the proposed development satisfies the Justification Test 
requirements within the Flood Consequences Assessment, including managing 
flood risk in line with the acceptability criteria. The proposed development 
meets the principles and requirements set out in TAN15 and the aims of 
Planning Policy Wales, as well as LDP Policy SP1 (Climate Change). 
 
De-risking 
Planning Policy Wales (2024) sets out that the planning system should guide 
development to reduce the risk from natural or human made hazards affecting 
the land surface or subsurface. Risks to development may arise from matters 
such as land stability due to former mine workings or land contamination. 
Strategic Policy SP16 sets the context for consideration of environmental 
protection and requires protection and where feasible improvement of the 
environment. Policy EN8 sets out that development that would expose people 
to unacceptable risk due to contamination or land instability will not be 
permitted.  
 
The site is identified as being in The Coal Authority (TCA) development low risk 
area. Within these areas there remains some risk of undocumented works and 
the standing advice of the TCA will apply, it is noted that no evidence has been 
found of such workings in the applicant’s ground investigations. 
 
The site is identified as being potentially contaminated, which reflects its long 
history of industrial use. A specialist consultant working on behalf of the 
applicants has undertaken site investigation works prior to submitting the 
application, the approach to ground investigations were discussed and agreed 
with the Authority’s officers responsible for land contamination. This included 
agreeing details such as trail pit and borehole locations. The application 
supporting information includes: a Desk Study of the PDZ; Exploratory Ground 
Investigation Report of the PDZ; Geo-environmental Assessment Report of the 

Tudalen56



  Page 51 of 87 

 

PDZ; Geotechnical Assessment Report pf the PDZ; Desk Study of the TCA; 
Ground Investigation Report of the TCA. A Stage 2 Detailed Unexploded 
Ordnance (UXO) Risk Assessment has also been prepared by a further 
specialist consultancy.  
 
These assessments did note that there was a low to moderate risk of there 
being potential for significant pollutant linkages (to both human health and 
controlled waters receptors). The potential on-site sources of contamination 
include made ground/unspecified deposited material of unknown chemical 
composition and potentially contaminative current and historical land uses. 
 
There are also off site sources due to current and historical industrial processes 
that have been undertaken in proximity to the site. Some Contaminants of 
Potential Concern (CoPCs) have been identified within the accessible areas of 
the site. The proposed hardstanding and proposed structures will mitigate the 
pollutant pathways. Where soft landscaping is proposed (which is limited given 
the industrial nature of the use), a suitable cover system may be required within 
these areas if made ground remains after site levelling. 
 
The level of risk for contaminant migration is considered low for the CoPC 
identified within sampled groundwater. This is due to the anticipated low 
mobility of the contaminants and the presence of hardstanding across the site 
which will limit the potential for infiltration. 
 
Due to the presence of general made ground gas and asbestos, the applicant 
sets out that good brownfield site working practices will be adopted by 
construction workers to mitigate potential risks. 
 
Geo-technical and geo-environmental assessments have been conducted, in 
line with recommendations. The final submission has also been reviewed by 
NRW and the NPT Pollution Prevention Officers, they have agreed with 
recommendations within the report that the following additional work is 
undertaken and secured by planning conditions: 
 

 Additional gas and groundwater monitoring of the installed boreholes to refine 
the above assessments and fully characterise the ground gas regime, as well 
as to confirm any remedial measures required.  

 Targeted ground investigation and soil sampling to confirm the depth and 
extend of the identified hydrocarbon contamination. 

 Undertake a Stage 2: Remediation Options Appraisal and Stage 3: 
Remediation and verification works, including development of a Remediation 
Strategy, Verification of the identified remediation works. 
 
The site was bombed in the second world war and the majority of the site is at 
risk of the presence of unexploded ordnance. The applicant has completed and 
submitted an unexploded ordnance risk assessment that defines the likely risk 
and advises the following mitigations during development:  
 

 UXO Safety Awareness Briefings, prior to all intrusive works commencing. 

 Non-Intrusive Magnetometer Probe Survey  Open excavations on 

Tudalen57



  Page 52 of 87 

 

greenfield land within the Moderate Risk zone. 

 Intrusive Magnetometer Probe Survey  of all pile positions within the 
Moderate Risk zone. 

 EOD Engineer - On Site Supervision Watching brief of all open excavations 
and magnetometer survey of all borehole locations within the Moderate Risk 
zone. 
 
It is considered that subject to undertaking the works in accordance with the 
suggested UXO mitigation that the risk of developing the site will be reduced to 
as low as realistically possible. This should form part of the management of 
construction detailed within the CEMP to be agreed.  
 
It is considered that subject to the conditions suggested by consultees that the 
risks of the development can be effectively mitigated. Therefore, the proposal 
is determined to be in accordance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the Local 
Development Plan. 
 
Ecology and tree impact 
 
Policy SP 15 Biodiversity and Geodiversity sets out how important habitats, 
species and sites of geological interest will be conserved and enhanced. 
Policies EN6 and EN7 require any impacts on biodiversity/ natural features to 
be appropriately assessed and, where applicable, mitigated. Chapter 6 
Distinctive and Natural Places of PPW was updated on the 18 October 2023 
shortly before the submission of this application. The updated PPW contained 
a policy requirement that all planning applications must be supported by a 
Green Infrastructure Statement (GIS). During the consideration of this 
application a GIS was submitted that supplemented the existing information on 
biodiversity and ecology which was contained in the Environmental Statement 
(In particular Chapter 7 Terrestrial Ecology; Chapter 11 Air Quality; and Chapter 
13 Marine Ecology).  
 
The application was accompanied by the following surveys and assessments: 

 Ecological Impact Assessment, and accompanying appendices comprising 
reports/survey data. 

 Green Infrastructure Landscape Plan 

 Arboricultural Baseline Note 

 Outline Drainage Strategy 

 Environmental Statement, prepared by the applicants agent, and the relevant 
appendices comprising reports/survey data, prepared by third-party consultants 
 
The GIS sets out the limitations that the operational requirements of the 
development place on developing ecological mitigation on site. The site is part 
of an operational port that will be developed as part of the Celtic Freeport 
initiative, they have negotiated with the land owner the development site but 
this is restricted in extent to the land that the applicant requires operationally. 
They also note that within this site there are significant restrictions placed on 
the development of vegetation and habitats, this is due to the Control of Major 
Accident Hazards (COMAH) Regulations. The GIS states that Design 
constraints include the avoidance of any planting/green areas within zones of 

Tudalen58



  Page 53 of 87 

 

raised thermal radiation around the facility operating/processing areas. The 
location of individual habitat areas has therefore been constrained to permitted 
areas of vegetation/habitats. Furthermore, the size of habitats has also been 
limited so that they do not have the potential to contribute to the spread of fire 
in case of any incident at the facility. The proposed development takes a multi 
functional approach with green infrastructure being part of SuDS drainage 
features where possible.  

 
Within the PDZ regenerative willow scrub that is under 20 years old is the most 
extensive habitat type. There are areas of mixed species scrub and bramble 
associated with the margins of the grey willow with gorse dominates areas on 
the eastern side of the PDZ, where the substrate is dryer. There are two small 
areas of coastal grassland and nearby dune slack vegetation are evident in the 
central areas of the PDZ. Strips of naturally regenerated grassland of varying 
structure and species are evident in the eastern and western areas of the PDZ, 
with central and southern glade areas with patchy long grass and sprawling 
dewberry. Three seasonally flooded areas support open strands of common 
reed bounded by regenerating scrub willows.  An area of recolonising bare 
ground and hardstanding lies in the centre of the PDZ, which is repeated on 
other hardstanding areas associated with former industrial works on site.  The 
PDZ includes a range of species of lower plans, almost entirely limited to the 
areas of sparsely vegetated ground and open grassland on sandy substrates.  
 
TCA1 is a flat expanse of unsealed made ground materials include crushed 
concrete and waste steel slag. The area comprises a habitat mosaic of sparse 
ephemeral vegetation, including indicator species of grassland and 
postindustrial habitats. The area includes colonies of Oxtongue Broomrape, a 
nationally rare and legally protected plant (Schedule 8 Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981). There are areas of diverse lower plants in the TCA.  The site has 
extensive stands of long-established Japanese Knot Weed, which covers 
approximately 40% of the PDZ. The largest expanses are located in the 
southwestern area of the PDZ.  
 
In respect to protected species bat transect and / or remote recording identified 
four species of bat at the site. Common pipistrelle night time passes were the 
most frequently encountered species. The site has very low levels of bat 
activity. The survey did identify one building where there was transient activity 
by a pipistrelle bat and due to this it is likely that a European Protected Species 
derogation licence will be required to allow for its demolition. The applicant’s 
ecological report noted that foraging activity was recorded in and around 
Building B1 during surveys in August and September a large open sided 
building in the south-western part of TCA East. The report goes onto outline 
that bats would be excluded under the supervision of the named ecologist (or 
their accredited agent) on the WG bat licence during the active season. 
Alternatively, where exclusion is impractical, the roost feature would be subject 
to soft demolition directly supervised by the named ecologist on the WG bat 
licence. Overall due to the nature of the bat use this is a low risk case and works 
are not likely to be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the 
species concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range, 
provided the recommendations are implemented. 

Tudalen59



  Page 54 of 87 

 

 
The applicant’s baseline surveys identified that the site has negligible or low 
importance for: otters (local importance in the open dock only), badgers 
(negligible), common lizard (local but County importance in the context of the 
wider port), grass snake (local/district), slow worm (local), great crested newts 
(negligible) and invertebrates (local).  
 
Appropriate measures to minimise risk to protected species during construction 
can be incorporated into a finalised CEMP. NRW has advised that a CEMP 
should be provided to ensure that there are protection measures for bats and 
otters during construction.  
 
The applicant has provided details of how they will address the presence of the 
Oxtongue Broomrape and works that disturb or remove this plant will require a 
licence from NRW. A temporary Oxtongue Broomrape Protection Area will be 
established within a TCA and will allow for the relocation of selected areas of 
substrate into this area. The application will also remove colonising butterfly 
bush, willow and birch. Wall Cotoneaster will also be removed. NRW has 
advised that “The activity is low risk for the Favourable Conservation Status of 
the species at Port Talbot. The mitigation and method statement is 
proportionate, appropriate and addresses the impacts.” In light of their advice it 
is considered that the impact to this species is acceptable.  
 
In respect to breeding bird nesting habitat and winter bird assemblages the site 
was considered to be of local importance with some areas of bramble, gorse 
and woody hawthorn scrub potentially supporting birds.  
 
The application is supported by a tree survey of the site. Thirteen trees at the 
site were identified and categorised as category B, and of moderate quality. 
Where practicable these trees should be protected. The default position, when 
designing any new development is to seek to retain all trees insofar as is 
practicable, regardless of category grading. However, in this instance, the 
applicant has evidenced that due to trees acting as a source of fuel or ignition 
for fires that trees could not be retained at the site. Mitigation of tree loss is in 
this case justified to be addressed off site.  
 
The proposed development will deliver a net benefit for biodiversity through the 
combination of:  
• On-site mitigation and enhancement measures including the provision of small 
multi-functional landscaped spaces on the boundary of the application site.  
• Habitat restoration and enhancement outcomes at the chosen off-site 
biodiversity compensation site in Jersey Marine.  
 
The onsite mitigation is shown in figure 11 below, which is an illustrative drawing 
showing the proposed ecological compensation on site.  

Tudalen60



  Page 55 of 87 

 

 
Figure 11: Illustrative plan from GIS showing the on site ecological 
compensation. Green areas are pioneer grassland / flower rich vegetation. 
Aqua areas are coastal grassland. Dark Green are to be biodiversity colonised 
gabion walls.  
 
In respect to the offsite compensation the applicants outline that ABP is 
promoting proposals for the Future Ports: Port Talbot Programme (FPT), which 
encompasses land including the Proposed Scheme. ABP has purchased a 
landholding at Earlswood, Jersey Marine in July 2023 to provide off-site 
compensation for future Celtic Freeport developments to secure Net 
Biodiversity Benefit (NBB). 
 
The GIS outlines that the applicant has agreed that parts of the ABP owned 
compensation site will be utilised to provide off-site compensation for residual 
effects associated with the this development. The proposed off-site 
compensation (habitat creation, enhancement and restoration) to address the 
residual biodiversity effects of this development and provide an overall 
enhancement include:  
 
• Restoration of plantation on ancient woodland to compensate for the loss of 
low-value self-sown willow scrub. 
• Creation of mixed species scrubby woodland edge and partial replacement of 
bramble with mixed species scrub to compensate for the loss of mixed species 
scrub and gorse. 
• Retention of smaller areas of bramble thicket as a component of more 
structurally diverse woodland edge as compensation for loss of bramble. 
• Enhancement of grassland previously subject to agricultural improvement to 
restore high value grassland habitats that have degraded or been lost as 
compensate for the residual effects from the loss of naturally regenerating 
grassland. 
• Restoration of open mosaic habitat through removal of young self-sown birch 
trees  
• Restoration of degraded saltmarsh (alongside Red Jacket Pill) in a habitat that 
has been heavily damaged by grazing animals, as compensation for the loss of 
seasonally flooded habitats (dune slack vegetation and common reed). 

Tudalen61



  Page 56 of 87 

 

• The localised areas of dune slack and reedbed that have developed in the 
PDZ on ground that is subject to prolonged seasonal flooding require specific 
hydrological conditions. There are no options to create equivalent dune slack 
or reedbed habitats, subject to prolonged periods of winter flooding, in the off-
site compensation site. Consequently, it is proposed that compensation targets 
poor condition saltmarsh vegetation (an alternative coastal S7 habitat) present 
alongside the existing man-made intertidal channels. 
• Two large scrapes will be created in a low-lying neutral grassland adjacent to 
saltmarsh habitat. These will be designed to be seasonally wet and should 
support an assemblage of wetland plants different from the main grassland 
habitat. 
 
Chapter 13 of the ES considers Marine Ecology. This considers the effects of 
the development during construction and operation of the development on 
sediment quality and water quality. Table 13.15 of the ES provides a summary 
of residual and significant marine ecology effects. This table is reproduced as 
Table 8 below.  
 
Effect Receptor Residual 

Effect 
Significant 

Construction Stage 

Remobilisation of sediments 
causing increased suspended 
solids concentration in the water 
column 

Sediment 
Quality 

Negligible No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Remobilisation of sediments 
causing potential resuspension of 
contaminated sediments into the 
water column 

Sediment 
Quality 

Minor Adverse No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Accidental release of pollutants 
and sewage waste and into the 
water column from vessels during 
transit and construction 
operations 

Sediment 
Quality 

Minor Adverse No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Accidental release of litter and 
debris into the water column from 
vessels during transit and 
construction operations 

Sediment 
Quality 

Minor Adverse No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Disturbance through underwater 
noise and vibration 

   

Fish with a 
swim bladder-

inner ear 
connection 

used in 
hearing 

Minor Adverse No 

Fish with a 
swim bladder-

inner ear 
connection 

used in 
hearing 

Minor Adverse No 

Operational Stage 

Tudalen62



  Page 57 of 87 

 

Water abstraction affecting water 
flow and volume within the water 
body 

Sediment 
Quality 

Negligible No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Removal of biofouling from the 
subsea structures and leeching of 
antifouling, anticorrosive agents 
from coated infrastructure 

Sediment 
Quality 

Negligible No 

Water Quality Negligible No 

Accidental release of pollutants 
and sewage waste and into the 
water column from vessels during 
transit and operations 

Sediment 
Quality 

Minor Adverse No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Accidental release of litter and 
debris into the water column from 
vessels during transit 

Sediment 
Quality 

Minor Adverse No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Increased salinity caused by 
Dock’s gates more frequent 
usage due 
to increased vessel traffic 

Sediment 
Quality 

Negligible No 

Water Quality Minor Adverse No 

Entrapment of fish during 
abstraction of water 

All fish species Minor Adverse No 

Table 8: Marine Environment Residual effects and their significance. 
 
Mitigation for the marine impact of the development is outlined in the ES 
chapter. The steel lock gates at the entrance of Port Talbot Docks will be closed 
during any piling activities within the environment associated with the 
construction of the Proposed Scheme, to isolate underwater noise and vibration 
associated with the Proposed Scheme from the mouth of the river Afan and the 
subsequent marine environment. The closure of the Docks will also help to 
confine any dispersion of potentially contaminated sediments and contain the 
sediment plume within the waters of the Proposed Scheme area. A detailed 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) will outline 
measures for pollution prevention, biosecurity assessment and waste 
management during construction, including the use of low-toxicity paints for 
submerged infrastructure (e.g. piles). All project vessels are required to follow 
the International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships 
(MARPOL). When operational intake screen mesh grade of 1 mm will be 
included in the design of water intakes used for abstraction activities during the 
operational stage, in line with NRW guidance on prevention of entrainment 
during water abstraction activities. It is noted that there is a separate system of 
control for water abstraction and this will be regulated by NRW through an 
abstraction licence. Similarly there will be a marine licence which will regulate 
works for the provision of the wharf within the dock environment and its marine 
ecology impact.  
 
The application and supporting information has been reviewed by the NPT 
ecologist and NRW and they do not object to the application subject to securing 
mitigation.  
 
It is noted that various other impacts on biodiversity such as air quality and 
lighting are addressed in the relevant sections of this report and are considered 
acceptable.  

Tudalen63



  Page 58 of 87 

 

 
In respect to the applications ecological impacts, the proposal is considered to 
be in accordance with Policies SP 15, EN6 and EN7. It is also viewed to be in 
accordance with Future Wales and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
Major Accident Hazard 
 
Chapter 6 of the ES addresses Major Accident and / or Disasters.  
 
During the scoping of the assessment a number of potential major accident 
hazards were considered but were viewed not be likely to result in a significant 
impact. These included major road traffic accidents during construction or 
operation; Pollution events / migration of contamination from site to controlled 
waterbody during construction; extreme flood events; pollution occurring during 
ship transportation and natural disasters (such as earthquakes and hurricanes). 
These were considered sufficiently unlikely for various reasons such as the 
probability of the incident or through primary and tertiary mitigation. The 
following were considered as likely significant and assessed in the ES: 
 

Likely Significant Effect  Receptors  
Applicable 
Development 
Stage 

Operational 
plant/infrastructure failure 
(i.e. structure/building 
collapse, human error, 
explosion, non-descriptive 
accident) 

Future on-site users and 
members of public 

Operation 

Fire event occurring 
during ship transportation 
of input/output material 

Members of public  Operation 

Fire event occurring on-
site and impacting 
operational activities on-
site, as well as 
consequential chain 
reaction events 

Future on-site users and 
members of public 

Operation 

Table 9: Major accident hazard likely significant effects 
 
The applicant also considered the potential interaction between this 
development and the operation of the neighbouring Tata steelworks site and 
the more distant British Oxygen Company site. They provide details of the 
health and safety mitigations that will be used to address the above major 
accident risks.  
 
Extensive primary and tertiary mitigation is outlined in the ES dealing with the 
accident risks. For example to mitigate on site fires the design includes spacing 
of plant to contain fires, automatic and manual controls to isolate or shut down 
plant and equipment where necessary, as well as ensuring potential ignition 
sources are removed from areas of flammable materials. Furthermore, these 

Tudalen64



  Page 59 of 87 

 

measures will be supplemented by the operational management practices 
specific to fire events.  
 
The mitigation for operational plant / infrastructure failure is inherent in the 
design and engineering of the scheme. The ES sets out under that through the 
front end engineering design stage how all potential risks inherent to the design 
and layout of the Proposed Scheme have been considered and either resolved 
or managed so as to reduce risk to as low as reasonably practicable. This has 
taken into account to all inputs and outputs of the chemical processes of the 
plant in operation, and the primary process, as well as all ancillary infrastructure 
needs (i.e., utilities). Detailed information on mitigating fire risk is included in a 
supporting RIBA Stage 3 Fire Strategy Report which provides details of the 
proposed sites fire safety systems, means of warning and escape and details 
of fire spread.  
 
The operation of ships is outside the direct control of the applicant and site 
operator the transportation of flammable materials (i.e. such as the ethanol and 
SAF) is controlled and regulated by the UN Model Regulations, The Carriage 
of Dangerous Goods and Use of Transportable Pressure Equipment 
Regulations 2009, The International Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea, 
1974 (SOLAS), The International Carriage of Dangerous Goods by Inland 
Navigation (ADN), amongst other legislation and regulation. All such legislation 
and regulation places responsibility on the relevant transporters of flammable 
materials. 
 
The applicant will require consent from the HSE in line with the COMAH 
Regulations. This will ensure that the proposed development when operational 
will take all necessary measures to prevent major accidents involving 
dangerous substances and limit the consequences to people and the 
environment of any major accidents which occur. The applicant will be obliged 
to produce a COMAH Safety Report. This report will be supported by a 
Quantified Risk Assessment (QRA). The applicant’s ES states that the QRA 
indicates that all personnel within the process area would be in the ‘tolerable’ 
risk region, with the on-site building locations within the ‘acceptable’ range. The 
toxic risk across the facility was noted to be negligible. The overall societal risk 
is in the ‘tolerable’ risk region. The applicant has provided some initial 
information on their modelling of major accident hazard risk areas that would 
be defined through the formal COMAH process, the risks are largely within the 
application site or immediately adjoining uses and well contained within the 
ABP dock area.  
 
The applicant has in detail considered the impacts of the proposal on major 
accident hazard and disasters. The ES sets out how this has been considered 
and the mitigation inherent in the scheme. The applicant has stated that they 
will be preparing and submitting a COMAH application following the planning 
stage. As such it is considered that the applicant has shown a proper 
consideration of major accident hazard and risk and shown that the risks of the 
development are likely to be acceptable, the detail of this and acceptability of 
the scheme in this respect will be considered by the COMAH regulation.  
 

Tudalen65



  Page 60 of 87 

 

Human Health. 
 
Human health matters are considered throughout the ES in relevant chapters. 
They are drawn together in ES table 2.1 which summarises Human Health 
Effects and where matters have been scoped into the ES.  
 
The areas where human health are scoped in are major accident hazard, noise 
and vibration and air quality. In respect to major accident hazard the following 
are scoped into the assessment: the impact of Operational plant/infrastructure 
failure (i.e. structure/building collapse, human error, explosion, nondescriptive 
accident); Fire event occurring on-site and impacting operational activities on-
site, as well as consequential chain reaction events; and Fire event occurring 
during ship transportation of input/output material. In respect to air quality the 
following were scoped in: changes to local air quality in terms of human health 
due to on-site emissions associated with heating plant (gas fired boilers) which 
represent the general day to day operation of the Site including testing regime 
for emergency generators and fire pumps. Change to local air quality in terms 
of human health due to on-site emissions associated with emergency flare and 
emergency shutdown flare. Change to local air quality in terms of human health 
due to transport emissions. In relation to noise and vibration the following were 
considered: Generation of noise from construction activities and construction 
traffic on-site; Generation of noise from construction traffic off-site; and 
Generation of noise from plant during operation.  
 
Other aspects of the development such as the impact of ground contamination, 
transport, flood risk, lighting, climate change, socio-economics and noise and 
vibration with potential impacts on human health are considered in the table 2 
and how they are effectively mitigated.  
 
As noted the potentially significant effects that relate to human health are 
considered in detail in the relevant chapters of the ES and in the relevant 
sections of this report. The supporting information demonstrates a development 
with an acceptable human health impact.  
 
Waste Management. 
 
A Waste Management Plan (WMP) has been prepared by a specialist 
consultant. This is supported by the Framework CEMP and the Environmental 
Management Plan in the ES.   
 
In relation to construction waste, Table 1 in the WMP sets out the main waste 
types generated during the construction period include soil material, concrete 
material, and steel. It sets out that all waste materials will be segregated, 
classified into the appropriate non-hazardous and hazardous categories/codes, 
collected separately at the point of origin, labelled, and stored appropriately to 
ensure safe containment and transportation (by a registered waste carrier) for 
their final re-use, recycling, or disposal. The WMP sets out that the developer 
will follow the waste hierarchy, where disposal is necessary, this is undertaken 
in a manner which minimises its impact on the environment. 
 

Tudalen66



  Page 61 of 87 

 

In relation to operational waste, the waste management plan provides details 
of the installation waste management type and storage. Hazardous waste 
arising from the industrial process includes organic waste containing hazardous 
substances (30 tonnes/year); aqueous liquid waste containing hazardous 
substances (500 tonnes/year); spent catalysts resins & absorbants (60 tonnes 
a year). The process will also give rise to non hazardous sludge from on-site 
effluent treatment (8000 tonnes/year). Relatively small amounts of other waste 
such as glass, plastics, metals, laboratory waste and equipment will also be 
generated. Specific waste compounds and storage areas are designated on the 
site layout plan.  
 
Recycling and recovery at the proposed facility will include the following:  
• Off-spec intermediates and fuels re-used in the oligomerisation and 
hydrogenation processes.  
• Commercial mixed waste recovered and recycled as far as possible by 
appointed waste carrier supplier (e.g., paper/cardboard, glass, metal, and 
plastic).  
 
The Waste Management Plan establishes that:  
• Disposal of waste will follow the conditions of the NRW environmental permit. 
This includes record keeping, monitoring and control obligations.  
• Hazardous waste disposal will follow the Hazardous Waste Regulations, 
including additional labelling, record keeping, monitoring and control 
obligations.  
• Only licensed waste carriers will supply waste collection, transfer, and 
disposal of waste from the Installation.    
• The appointed site staff will be provided with training on the management of 
all wastes for disposal.  
 
It is considered that the application and supporting detail demonstrate that the 
development can operate without unacceptable negative environmental 
impacts arising from waste. The proposed development is reasonably in 
accordance with Policy W3 of the LDP.  
 
Climate Change and Sustainability 
 
Chapter 10 of the ES sets out the policy context to this application in relation to 
climate change clearly and as follows:  
 
Welsh Policy: 
 
• The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) 
Regulations 2017 requires consideration of the impact of the Proposed Scheme 
on climate change, and also the vulnerability of the Proposed Scheme itself to 
climate change; 
 
• Planning Policy Wales, Edition 12 (2024) recognises the role that planning 
has to play in making development resilient to climate change, decarbonising 
society and developing a circular economy for the benefit of the built and natural 
environment and to contribute to the achievement of the well‑being goals; 

Tudalen67



  Page 62 of 87 

 

 
• The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 requires the Welsh Government to reduce 
Green House Gas emissions in Wales to net zero for the year 2050 and 
implement a system of interim emissions targets and carbon budgets. Under 
Section 39 of the Act, Welsh Ministers must prepare and publish a report for 
each budgetary period setting out their policies and proposals for meeting the 
carbon budget for that period; 
 
• Prosperity for All: A Low Carbon Wales (2019) sets the foundations for Wales 
to transition to a low carbon nation in order to bring opportunities around clean 
growth for business, as well as wider benefits for people and the environment; 
 
• Net Zero Wales Carbon Budget 2 (2021-25) (2021) represents the next phase 
in Wales’ decarbonisation journey with a new net zero target alongside various 
policies, proposals and commitments for action across the economy. This 
report notes that aviation policy is not devolved, and that UK Government must 
bring forward proposals to drive fuel efficiency, the development of new zero 
emission aircraft and accelerating the supply and uptake of sustainable aviation 
fuels (SAF); 
 
• Future Wales, the National Plan 2040 (2021)9 sets out strategy for addressing 
key national priorities through the planning system including achieving 
decarbonisation and climate-resilience; and 
 
• The creation of a new body Net Zero Industry Wales was announced in March 
2022 by the Welsh Minister for the Economy during a visit to Port Talbot 
Steelworks. It aims to accelerate the decarbonisation of Welsh businesses and 
industry and support the exploration of new economic growth opportunities by 
becoming a world-leader in low carbon manufacturing 
 
UK Policy 
• UK Government’s Net Zero Strategy: Build Back Greener (October 2021) lays 
out a commitment for the UK to become a leader in zero-emission flight, kick-
starting commercialisation of UK sustainable aviation fuels (SAF) to enable the 
delivery of 10% SAF by 2030; 
 
• UK Government's Jet Zero Consultation (July 2021) further set out the key 
role that Sustainable Aviation Fuel (SAF) can play in decarbonising aviation 
whilst also representing an industrial leadership opportunity for the UK, 
generating between £0.7–£1.6bn Gross Value Added (GVA) per year and 
creating between 5,000 and 11,000 green jobs; 
 
• The Department for Transport launched the Advanced Fuels Fund in July 
2022 to support these aims and UK Government’s subsequent commitment to 
have at least 5 commercial scale SAF plants under construction in the UK by 
2025 through the allocation of up to £165 million in competitive grant funding. 
LanzaTech UK Ltd was10.6 awarded £24.9 million in December 2022 through 
the Advanced Fuels Fund for the Proposed Scheme; 
 

Tudalen68



  Page 63 of 87 

 

• The Renewable Transport Fuel Obligation (RTFO) supports UK Government 
policy on decarbonising transport by encouraging the production and use of 
renewable fuels that do not damage the environment; and 
 
• The Carbon Budget Delivery Plan informs Parliament and the public on the 
Government's proposals and policies to enable carbon budgets to be met. It 
includes projected GHG emissions savings across UK carbon budgets for a 
range of Government decarbonisation proposals and policies, including 
Proposal 145 for the International Aviation & Shipping Sector (IAS) “Increasing 
the Take Up of Sustainable Aviation Fuels”. 
 
Local Policy 
• The LDP sets out a range of key issues including ‘KI 1’ relating to the need to 
address both the causes and consequences of climate change. Corresponding 
overarching objective ‘OB 1’ and Policy ‘SP 1 Climate Change’ relate to the 
need to reduce GHG emissions and adapt to climate change through 
consideration of its effects in the design and location of new development. 
 
A comprehensive assessment of the effects relating to climate change are set 
out in Chapter 8 of the ES. The applicant has also prepared a Sustainability and 
Energy Statement in support of the planning application.  
 
During the scoping of the EIA issues such as increased risk of flooding; heat 
stress during construction; and extreme weather were scoped out of the 
assessment. Water availability for site buildings and processes was considered 
not significant, this was due to the use of water from the adjoining dock and 
potable water efficiency measures. Summertime overheating in buildings will 
be adequately addressed through building design. Changes in seasonal 
weather including temperature and rainfall were considered to be not significant 
for the on site vegetation.  
 
Net Green House Gas (GHG) emissions was considered a likely significant 
effect and fully considered in the ES, this is a complex assessment that shows 
a moderate net GHG effect for the global climate system which is moderate 
beneficial and a significant effect. The ES provides the following summary of 
the assessment:  
 
“10.106 The sensitivity of the global climate system is considered to be high. The 
magnitude of net GHG effect (saving) is considered to be large (i.e. >10%) in relation 
to the contribution to Government forecast GHG savings from SAF update for the UK 
Fourth Carbon Budget, irrespective of ethanol feedstock route. 
 
10.107 The magnitude of net GHG effect (saving) is considered to be medium (i.e. 
>5% to 10%) in relation to the contribution to Government GHG savings projections 
from SAF uptake during the Fifth Carbon Budget irrespective of ethanol feedstock 
route, and also medium for the Sixth Carbon Budget in the waste starch ethanol 
feedstock route.  
 
10.108 The magnitude of net GHG effect (saving) is considered to be negligible (i.e. 
<1%) in relation to all UK carbon budgets irrespective of ethanol feedstock route. 
 

Tudalen69



  Page 64 of 87 

 

10.109 Government’s GHG reduction projections from SAF uptake are considered the 
most appropriate context to aid the determination of significance given these 
projections are relevant to the Proposed Scheme in terms of both decarbonisation 
sector (i.e. aviation) and technology (i.e. SAF production) and as part of the 
Government’s strategy for UK Net Zero to be achieved. 
 
10.110 The Proposed Scheme provides a large (i.e. >10%) contribution to these 
Government projections during the current (fourth) carbon budget, however only for a 
single year (2027, the first full year of operation). On balance, therefore it is the 
moderate (i.e. >5% to 10%) contribution to Government projected GHG savings from 
SAF uptake over the whole next (fifth) carbon budget that is deemed most appropriate 
to support the evaluation of significance. 
 
10.111 In addition to this contribution of the Proposed Scheme towards Government 
GHG savings projections from SAF uptake, the Committee on Climate Change report 
The Sixth Carbon Budget: Aviation (2020)24 includes a key policy recommendation to 
support the near-term construction of commercial SAF production facilities in the UK. 
 
10.112 On this basis the Proposed Scheme is concluded to make an appropriate and 
early contribution to the UK net zero trajectory for this issue. 
 
10.113 For context it is also noted that: 
 
10.113.1 for NPT: The magnitude of net GHG effect (saving) is considered to be large 
(i.e. >10%) in relation to NPT’s baseline emissions, future carbon budgets proposed 
for NPT 
 
10.113.2for Wales: The magnitude of net GHG effect (saving) is considered to be small 
(i.e. >1% to 5) in relation to Wales carbon budgets irrespective of ethanol feedstock 
route, and also in terms of contribution to Government GHG savings from SAF uptake 
in the Sixth Carbon Budget in the steel mill off gas ethanol feedstock route. 
 
10.114 Therefore, there is likely to be a direct, permanent, long-term beneficial effect 
which is considered to be moderate.” 

 
The applicant states that they have been successful in an application to the 
Department for Transport’s (DfT’s) Advanced Fuels Fund (AFF). As part of this 
they have undertaken an AFF Life Cycle Assessment (LCA). The AFF LCA is 
a commercially sensitive document and has not been provided to the Authority 
in full, however it has been undertaken in accordance with the DfT AFF 
guidance and is used as the basis for the GHG assessment in the ES. The AFF 
LCA evaluates upstream GHG emissions associated with ethanol feedstock 
production and transport, emission from on-site processes to create the SAF 
(e.g. mains electricity and gas consumption), downstream emissions from the 
transport of the SAF to aircraft, and GHG saving thresholds necessary to 
designate the product as SAF, in line with the AFF guidance set out by the DfT.  
 
The design of the proposed development also addresses climate change and 
sustainability. The administrative building has Solar PV panels shown to be 
installed on its rooftop. Air Source Heat Pumps are stated to be incorporated 
through an all electric energy strategy to provide space heating and cooling to 
the office areas of the proposed units. Provision is made for 25% electric vehicle 

Tudalen70



  Page 65 of 87 

 

(EV) charging parking spaces. The applicant has also provided details of 
reduced energy usage through high levels of insulation and air tightness.  
 
The applicant within the planning statement states that the proposal will play a 
crucial role producing an expected 100 million litres of SAF annually, 
contributing to the UK Government’s sustainable aviation fuel 2030 target. And 
that promoting the use of SAF is critical in the aviation sector’s efforts to mitigate 
climate change and reduce its environmental impact to achieve net zero 
emissions in aviation. 
 
The assessment provided is accepted and the proposal is considered to have 
GHG emission benefits that must be considered and given weight in decision 
making. The proposals are in accordance with and support the principles set 
out in, LDP Policies SP1 (Climate Change), SP18 (Renewable and Low Carbon 
Energy) and RE2 (Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New Development).  
 
Cumulative Impacts. 
 
The Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations requires all proposed EIA 
developments to consider not only the direct and indirect impacts of the 
proposal, but to also consider these impacts in combination or cumulatively with 
other schemes or projects that are in the public domain. The applicants 
assessment considered all such projects and identified four projects for 
assessment:  
 
P2021/1255 - Land West Of Junction 38 Of The M4 Port Talbot Margam SA13 
2NU - Full planning application of the development of a metal processing facility 
totalling 28,500sq.m of floorspace comprising a powder processing plant 
(17,377sq.m), warehouse and store (5,428 sq.m) office building (1,442 sq.m), 
amenity building (776 sq.m), laboratory (200 sq.m), services building (470 
sq.m), substation (107 sq.m), phase 2 (2,700 sq.m), CCTV, storage tanks and 
plant, parking, servicing and roads and associated works. Approved (EIA 
development). 
 
P2022/0470 Land At Baglan Way, Port Talbot - Erection of an industrial unit 
(use class B2) (GIA 25,545sqm) with associated works including sustainable 
drainage, car parking, cycle storage and landscaping. Approved (Not EIA 
development). 
 
P2018/1036 Land Adjacent To The Existing Sinter Plant Port, Talbot 
Steelworks Margam Port Talbot SA13 2NG - Demolition of existing structures 
accommodating the secondary dust extraction system for the sinter plant and 
installation of a replacement secondary system, including a bag filter system 
comprising a 6 storey structure, pipework and ducting, chimney stack (55m tall), 
electrical equipment, hard and soft landscaping and associated development. 
Construction ongoing (Not EIA).  
 
DNS/3264571 Land at Bryn and Penhydd forest, located between Port Talbot 
and Maesteg - Fferm wynt o hyd at 18 tyrbin gyda storio ynni batri a seilwaith 

Tudalen71



  Page 66 of 87 

 

ategol / A wind farm of up to 18 turbines with battery energy storage and 
ancillary infrastructure. Pre-application (PAC) submission (EIA development). 
 
The utilities infrastructure for the project has not been finalised and the 
assessment of cumulative effects considers assumptions about the electricity 
grid connection and gas connection. The proposal will require a new 33kV 
power cable to a proposed on site National Grid Switchroom from the substation 
located in Pyle. The proposed routing of the cables is all within the boundaries 
of highways including the A48, streets  within Margam, passing under the 
railway lines at Central Road, then under Harbour Way, on to North Road and 
then on to Phoenix Way. These works would involve trenching and 
reinstatement and are likely to require lane closures. A new pressure-reduction 
station (PRS) is required to be installed at the existing Wales and West Utilities 
(WWU) compound off Cefn Gwrgan Road and will be located within their land 
ownership at the location, connecting to the current infrastructure. It is 
understood this PRS would be ‘skid’ mounted and therefore occupy a relatively 
small area at the compound. Intermediate pressure mains supply pipe would 
then be installed between the compound and PRS, to the Proposed Scheme, 
approximately a 5km distance. The detail of this has not been finalised by 
WWU, but is likely to require trenching laying of supply pipe and reinstatement 
of the highway surface. Such works are likely to result in temporary lane 
closure.  
 
Impacts on air quality, terrestrial ecology, noise and vibration, socio economics 
and human health, landscape and visual, major accidents and hazards and 
marine ecology. 
 
The applicant considers in combination effects as follows:  
 
“14.131 The assessment of in-combination effects considered 4 Approved 
Projects on a technical topic by topic basis (i.e. Technical Chapters 6 – 13). 
 
14.132 The assessment of in-combination effects across topics has concluded 
that there is the potential for in-combination effects in relation to major accidents 
and disasters; landscape and visual; air quality and noise but the conclusions 
do not change from the project level, for which in-combination visual effects to 
users of the Wales Coast Path are the only significant in-combination effect 
(adverse). 
 
14.133 For socio-economics, there is also the potential for in-combination 
effects, specifically in relation to employment generation but the conclusions do 
change from the project level as they are now considered significant and 
beneficial during construction, where they were not previously considered 
significant and during operation, they remain significant, albeit the level of 
beneficial effect is greater. 
 
14.134 For climate change and specifically GHG emissions, the consideration 
of in-combination contributions is holistically considered at the project level. 
There is an in-combination effect and this is considered to be moderate 
beneficial and significant. 

Tudalen72



  Page 67 of 87 

 

 
14.135 A summary of the evaluation of in-combination effects is provided within 
Table 14.6, which outlines: 
• Assessing the in-combination effect was not relevant – denoted by N/A; 
• No in-combination effect was identified – denoted by ×; 
• In-combination effects were identified but determined to be no greater level of 
effect or significance than that reported for the Proposed Scheme in isolation – 
denoted by =; and 
• In-combination effects were identified and determined to be a level of effect or 
significance greater than the Proposed Scheme in isolation – denoted by >. 
 
14.136 Where an in-combination effect is identified and is considered to be 
significant, this has been highlighted in bold and shaded.” 
 

Technical Topic 
Approved 
Project 1 

Approved 
Project 2 

Approved 
Project 3 

Approved 
Project 4 

Major Accidents and/or 
Disasters 

X N/A = N/A 

Terrestrial Ecology = = = = 

Landscape and visual = = = > 

Socio-Economics and Human 
Health 

> > > > 

Air Quality = N/A = N/A 

Noise and Vibration N/A N/A = N/A 

Marine Ecology X X X X 

Table 10: Summary of In-Combination Effects (ES Table 14.6) 
 
The application has considered the in combination effects of the development 
and identified them in respect to their likely significant effects, the impact of the 
development in combination should be taken into account when determining 
the application.  
 
Section 106 Planning Obligations. 
 
Local Development Plan Policy SP 4 (Infrastructure) states that “Developments 
will be expected to make efficient use of existing infrastructure and where 
required make adequate provision for new infrastructure, ensuring that there 
are no detrimental effects on the area and community. Where necessary, 
Planning Obligations will be sought to ensure that the effects of developments 
are fully addressed in order to make the development acceptable”. 
 
Policy I1 (Infrastructure Requirements) then states that “In addition to 
infrastructure improvements necessary to make a development acceptable in 
health, safety and amenity terms, additional works or funding may be required 
to ensure that, where appropriate, the impact of new development is mitigated. 
These requirements will include consideration of and appropriate provision for: 
Affordable housing; Open space and recreation facilities; Welsh language 
infrastructure (in language Sensitive Areas); Community facilities including 
community hubs; Biodiversity, environmental and conservation interests; 
Improving access to facilities and services including the provision of walking 

Tudalen73



  Page 68 of 87 

 

and cycling routes; Historic and built environment and public realm 
improvements; Community and public transport; Education and training. 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 came into force on 6th 
April 2010 in England and Wales. They introduced limitations on the use of 
planning obligations (Reg. 122 refers). As of 6th April 2010, a planning obligation 
may only legally constitute a reason for granting planning permission if it is:  
 
(a)  necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;  
(b)  directly related to the development; and  
(c)  fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  
 
In this case, the proposal relates to a planning application for the development 
of a sustainable aviation fuel production facility and as such there is no 
requirement for planning obligation contributions towards the provision of 
affordable housing, public open space, education and there are no identified 
public highways works that have been identified as necessary.  
 
As identified in the relevant sections of this report the application will require a 
contribution to active travel provision in the local area of £188,960.65 and the 
off site mitigation will require a section 106 agreement to secure. The principle 
of this has been agreed with the applicants agent and a draft agreement has 
been produced.  
 
 
Other Matters 
 
As identified earlier in this report, an objection was received in response to the 
publicity exercise. The issues raised in this objection have been addressed 
elsewhere in the report.  
 
Summary of effects 
 
The ES contains a summary of effects which is provided below in tables 11 and 
12 for construction and operation of the development.  
 
Likely Significant Effect Receptor Residual Effect 
Chapter 6: Major Accidents and / or Disasters 

None scoped in for 
assessment  

  

Chapter 7: Terrestrial Ecology 
Habitat loss Section 7 Habitats 
and equivalent 

Naturally regenerated 
grassland (PDZ, TCA 
West, TCA East) 
Coastal grassland and 
dune slack vegetation 
(PDZ) 
Open Mosaic Habitat 
(TCA1) 

Minor beneficial 

Tudalen74



  Page 69 of 87 

 

Likely Significant Effect Receptor Residual Effect 
Loss of Other on-site Habitats 
(PDZ, TCA West, TCA East, 
TCA1, Crown Wharf dockside) 

Willow scrub (grey willow) 
Scrub, bramble, and 
bracken 
Seasonally flooded ground 

Minor beneficial 

Partial loss of colony of 
Schedule 8 plant species 

Oxtongue broomrape Minor adverse 

Degradation of habitats as a 
result of the spread of 
Japanese knotweed or other 
Schedule 9 plant species 

On-site and off-site 
habitats 

Negligible 

Permanent loss of roost / 
foraging habitat, temporary 
disturbance of bat foraging 
habitat and flightlines 

Bats Minor adverse 

Loss of nesting sites and 
foraging areas indirect 
disturbance as a result of 
construction noise, vibration 
and lighting 

Breeding birds Minor adverse 

Habitat loss / displacement 
from terrestrial habitats 

Overwintering birds 
(terrestrial habitats) 

Minor adverse 

Disturbance from site 
construction activities including 
piling 

Overwintering birds 
(terrestrial habitats) 

Minor adverse 

Habitat loss and displacement 
of reptiles 

Reptile populations 
(common lizard, slow 
worm and grass snake) 

Negligible beneficial 
 

Permanent habitat loss and 
indirect effects (construction 
lighting) 

Invertebrate populations 
 

Minor adverse 

Chapter 8: Landscape and visual 
Changes to the character and 
amenity of views 
 

Users of the Wales Coast 
Path to the north and west 
of Crown Wharf (as 
demonstrated by RVs 1, 2, 
3, & 7) 

Varies from 
moderate adverse 
to negligible 

Users of the Wales Coast 
Path on Margam Mountain 
(as demonstrated by RV6) 

Varies from 
moderate adverse 
to negligible 

Changes to landscape 
components within the Site 

Vegetation on site Moderate adverse 

Chapter 9: Socio-Economics and Human Health 
Employment generated in the 
construction stage 

Local labour force 
Vulnerable Groups 

Minor beneficial 

Chapter 10: Climate Change 

Net GHG effect reported in operational table 

Chapter 11: Air Quality 
Change to local air quality in 
terms of human health and 
ecology due to transport 
emissions including vehicle 
and shipping emissions. 

Residential, community 
and educational facilities 
 

Negligible 
 

Tudalen75



  Page 70 of 87 

 

Likely Significant Effect Receptor Residual Effect 

Chapter 12: Noise and Vibration 
Generation of noise from 
construction activities and on-
site construction traffic 
(daytime and Saturday) 

SSRs 1-114 and Talbot 
Memorial Park and Vivian 
Park 
 

Negligible Adverse 

Generation of noise from 
construction activities and on-
site construction traffic 
evenings and weekends (excl. 
Sat 0700-1300hrs) 

SSRs 1-6, 8, 10 & 11 Negligible adverse 

SSRs 7 & 9 Moderate adverse 

Generation of noise from 
construction traffic off-site 

SSRs 1-11 and Talbot 
Memorial Park 

Negligible adverse 

Chapter 13: Marine Ecology 

Remobilisation of sediments 
causing increased suspended 
solids concentration in the 
water column 

Sediment Quality Negligible 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Remobilisation of sediments 
causing potential resuspension 
of contaminated sediments 
into the water column 

Sediment Quality Minor adverse 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Accidental release of 
pollutants and sewage waste 
and into the water column from 
vessels during transit and 
construction operations  

Sediment Quality Minor adverse 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Accidental release of litter and 
debris into the water column 
from vessels during transit and 
construction operations 

Sediment Quality Minor adverse 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Disturbance through 
underwater noise and vibration 

Sediment Quality Minor adverse 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Table 11: Summary of Residual and Significant Effects During Construction 
(ES Table 15.2) 
 
 
 
Likely Significant Effect Receptor Residual Effect 
Chapter 6: Major Accidents and / or Disasters 

Operational plant/infrastructure 
failure (i.e. structure/building 
collapse, human error, 
explosion, nondescriptive 
accident) 

Future on-site users and 
members of public 

Minor adverse 

Fire event occurring during 
ship transportation of 
input/output material 

Members of the public  Negligible up to 
Minor adverse 

Fire event occurring on-site 
and impacting operational 
activities on site, as well as 
consequential chain reaction 
events 

Future on-site users and 
members of public 

Minor adverse 

Tudalen76



  Page 71 of 87 

 

Likely Significant Effect Receptor Residual Effect 
Chapter 7: Terrestrial Ecology 
Disturbance as a result of 
operational noise, artificial 
lighting and general site 
operations 

Bats 
 

Negligible 

Disturbance to breeding birds 
as a result of operational 
noise, artificial lighting and 
general site activities; 
(Operation) 

Breeding birds Negligible up to 
Minor adverse 

Disturbance as a result of 
operational noise, artificial 
lighting and general site 
operations 

Overwintering birds Minor adverse 

Operational lighting effects on 
populations 

Invertebrates Negligible adverse 

Chapter 8: Landscape and visual 
Changes to the character and 
amenity of views 
 

Users of the Wales Coast 
Path to the north and west 
of Crown Wharf (as 
demonstrated by RVs 1, 2, 
3, & 7) 

Varies from 
moderate adverse 
to negligible 

Changes to landscape 
components within the Site 

Vegetation on site Moderate adverse 

Chapter 9: Socio-Economics and Human Health 
Employment generated in the 
operational stage 

Local labour force 
Vulnerable Groups 

Moderate 
beneficial 

Chapter 10: Climate Change 

Net GHG Effect Global Climate System 
 

Moderate 
beneficial 

Chapter 11: Air Quality 
Change to local air quality in 
terms of human health and 
ecology due to onsite 
emissions associated with 
heating plant (gas fired boiler) 
which will be used as the main 
source of energy on the Site 

Nearest sensitive human 
receptors (residential, 
educational, health 
facilities) located to the 
east, northeast, west, 
north, northwest and west  

Negligible 
 

On-site receptors (i.e. 
workers) 

Negligible 

Ecological Receptors –
Kenfig Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC), 
Crymlyn Bog SAC and 
Cefn Cribwr SAC. 

Negligible 

Change to local air quality in 
terms of human health and 
ecology due to onsite 
emissions associated with flare 
and emergency point sources 
(i.e. emergency diesel engines 
and fire water pump) 

Nearest sensitive human 
receptors (residential, 
educational, health 
facilities) located to the 
east, northeast, west, 
north, northwest and west 

Negligible 

On-site receptors (i.e. 
workers) 

Negligible 

Tudalen77



  Page 72 of 87 

 

Likely Significant Effect Receptor Residual Effect 
Ecological Receptors – 
Kenfig Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC), 
Crymlyn Bog SAC and 
Cefn Cribwr SAC 

Negligible 

Change to local air quality in 
terms of human health and 
ecology due to transport 
emissions including vehicle 
and shipping emissions 
 

Nearest sensitive human 
receptors (residential, 
educational, health 
facilities) located adjacent 
to Harbour Road  

Negligible 

Ecological Receptors – 
Kenfig SAC/SSSI 

Negligible 

Chapter 12: Noise and Vibration 
Generation of Noise from Plant 
during Operation 

SSRs 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 & 9 Minor adverse 

SSRs 3 & 7 Moderate adverse 

SSRs 8, 10 & 11 and 
Talbot Memorial Park and 
Vivian Park 

Negligible adverse 

Chapter 13: Marine Ecology 

Water abstraction affecting 
water flow and volume within 
the water body 

Sediment Quality Negligible 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Removal of biofouling from the 
subsea structures and 
leeching of antifouling, 
anticorrosive agents from 
coated infrastructure 

Sediment Quality Negligible 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Accidental release of 
pollutants and sewage waste 
and into the water column from 
vessels during transit.  
 

Sediment Quality Minor adverse 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Accidental release of litter and 
debris into the water column 
from vessels during transit and 
construction operations 

Sediment Quality Minor adverse 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Increased salinity caused by 
Dock’s gates more frequent 
usage due to increased vessel 
traffic 

Sediment Quality Negligible 

Water Quality Minor adverse 

Entrapment of fish during 
abstraction of water 

All fish species Minor adverse 

Table 12: Summary of Residual and Significant Effects During Operation (ES 
Table 15.2) 
 
 
CONCLUSION AND PLANNING BALANCE 
 
In the assessment of the proposed planning application the Local Planning 
Authority has had all due regard for the information submitted in support of the 
application, including the Environmental Statement.  Further, it has given 
consideration to all available information in relation to other plans, proposals 

Tudalen78



  Page 73 of 87 

 

and other Environmental Statements.  Similarly, it has considered information 
provided by all statutory and non-statutory consultees as well as all comments 
submitted by members of the public.  The Local Planning Authority has used 
this information to come to a reasonable conclusion in relation to the impacts 
associated with the proposed development.  
 
There are no significant residual adverse environmental effects to terrestrial 
ecology; air quality; noise and vibration; marine ecology; and major accident 
hazards. There are residual adverse effects after mitigation in these areas 
which are outlined in detail in the report above and summarised in tables … 
while not significant environmental effects there remain residual adverse effects 
which must be given weight in decision making. There are also elements of the 
development that are considered in the report that do not form part of the ES 
such as traffic and transport, land contamination and flood risk. All of these 
issues are considered in the report above, where subject to mitigation and 
conditions the development is acceptable.  
 
There remain significant adverse landscape and visual effects. These occur 
both during construction and when the site is operational. The effects are to 
users of the Wales Coast Path on Margam Mountain and to the north and west 
of Crown Wharf. There would also be the loss of vegetation at the site which 
would change landscape components. While these effects are significant it is 
considered that they are localised in extent or in the case of the loss of on site 
vegetation, likely to extent with any re-development of the site which is allocated 
for freight use in the LDP.  
 
There are significant beneficial socio-economic effects from the employment 
generated in the operational stage of development. There are not significant 
but beneficial effects in some areas of ecology and in terms of socio economic 
effects during construction. There is also a significant net Green House Gas 
effect which is beneficial (this is from the development as a whole). The 
proposal will make an important contribution towards UK Government 
requirements to use sustainable aviation fuel from 2025, and which requires 
10% of the jet fuel used in the UK aviation industry to be SAF by 2030. It is also 
in line with local and national policy ambitions to promote sustainable growth 
and development which supports the local economy, skills, and community. The 
proposal will sustainably regenerate an underutilised site with industrial and 
employment uses. The proposal demonstrates that it will create 85 FTE jobs 
on-site in the operational phase, and further employment generation in the 
supply chain. It will utilise the existing harbour for the transportation of materials 
and products, promoting use of this existing facility in line with Celtic Freeport 
and wider ABP Future Ports Programme ambitions. 
 
In determining this application weight must be given to the various material 
considerations outlined in the report and determination of where the planning 
balance lies between the positive and negative effects of the development. It is 
considered that the proposal represents an appropriate form of development 
where the adverse impacts of the development identified are outweighed by the 
benefits of the development in terms of the socio-economic benefits and in 
terms of green house gas emmissions. Accordingly, the proposed development 

Tudalen79



  Page 74 of 87 

 

is in accordance with Policies SP1, SP2, SP3, SP4, SP5, SP10, SP11, SP15, 
SP16, SP18, SP19 , SP20, SC1, I1, OS1, EC1/2+, EC3, TO4/1, EN6, EN7, 
EN8, RE1, RE2, W1/1b, W3, TR2, and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 
 
The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance 
with Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which 
requires that, in determining a planning application the determination must be 
in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan comprises Future Wales - the 
National Plan 2040 and the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–
2026) adopted January 2016. The recommendation complies with Future 
Wales - the National Plan 2040, policies 1, 2, 8, 9 and 12 and the Council’s 
well-being objectives and the sustainable development principle in accordance 
with the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to an agreement under section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. This agreement is to: 
 
- Secure off site ecological mitigation on an agreed mitigation site in 
Jersey Marine, which is in the ownership of Associated British Ports.   
 
- Secure provision of a contribution of £188,960.65 to active travel, this is 
to be used for the development of the Newbridge active travel project or 
on other active travel projects.  
 
 
Time Limit Conditions 
 
1  The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of 

this decision. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

 
List of Approved Plans 
 
2  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents: 
 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0100 Rev P9 Site Location Plan  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0101 Rev P8 Site Location Plan - Ownership 
Boundaries 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0210 Rev P14 Proposed Site Key Plan  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0211 Rev P13 Proposed Site Plan (Area 1)  

Tudalen80



  Page 75 of 87 

 

2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0212 Rev P15 Proposed Site Plan (Area 2) 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0213 Rev P13 Proposed Site Plan (Area 3) 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0214 Rev P15 Proposed Site Plan (Area 4) 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0215 Rev P18 Proposed PDZ Layout & 
Equipment List  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0216 Rev P8 Proposed PDZ Layout - External 
Surface Finishes  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0217 Rev P10 Proposed Site Plan - PDZ & 
Temp. Construction Areas  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0220 Rev P13 Proposed Site Key Plan - EIA 
Boundary Shown  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0227 Rev P9 Site Location Plan - EIA 
Boundary Shown 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0240 Rev P6 Proposed Site Fencing Layout  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0401 Rev P11 Proposed Site Sections - Sheet 
1 of 2  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0402 Rev P11 Proposed Site Sections - Sheet 
2 of 2 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0500 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 1 Plant 
Elevations - Enclosed Ground Flare 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0501 Rev P7 Proposed Zone 2 Plant 
Elevations - Collection Basin 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0502 Rev P7 Proposed Zone 3 Plant 
Elevations - Substation 3000  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0503 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 4 Plant 
Elevations - Tanker Loading 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0505 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 5 Plant 
Elevations - Ethanol Tanks  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0506 Rev P8 Proposed Zone 6 Plant 
Elevations - Process Modules  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0507 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 7 Plant 
Elevations - Sustainable Aviation Fuel Tanks  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0508 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 8 Plant 
Elevations 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0509 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 9 Plant 
Elevations - Hydrogen Generation  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0510 Rev P8 Proposed Zone 10 Plant 
Elevations 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0511 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 11 Plant 
Elevations - Metering & Water Tanks 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0512 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 12 Plant 
Elevations - Water Package & Tank  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0513 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 13 Plant 
Elevations  
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ZZ-DR-A-0514 Rev P6 Proposed Zone 14 Plant 
Elevations - Substation 2000 & Liquid Nitrogen Storage  
2143.01-IA-01-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P7 Proposed Process-Control 
Building Plans 
2143.01-IA-01-ZZ-DR-A-0301 Rev P7 Proposed Process-Control 
Building Elevations  

Tudalen81



  Page 76 of 87 

 

2143.01-IA-02-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P8 Proposed Laboratory Plans and 
Elevations  
2143.01-IA-03-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P8 Proposed Gatehouse 1 Plans 
and Elevations  
2143.01-IA-04-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P7 Proposed Gatehouse 2 Plans 
and Elevations  
2143.01-IA-05-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P9 Proposed Workshop Plans and 
Elevations  
2143.01-IA-06-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P8 Proposed Warehouse Store 
Plans  
2143.01-IA-06-ZZ-DR-A-0301 Rev P1 Proposed Warehouse Store 
Elevations 
2143.01-IA-09-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P8 Proposed Admin Building Plans 
and Elevations 
2143.01-IA-10-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P3 Proposed Amenity Shelter 1 
Plans and Elevations 
2143.01-IA-11-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P3 Proposed Amenity Shelter 2 
Plans and Elevations 
2143.01-IA-12-ZZ-DR-A-0300 Rev P3 Proposed Cycle Store Plans and 
Elevations  
2143.01-IA-XX-XX-RP-A-0910 Rev P9 Design and Access Statement  
Planning Statement by Turleys 
Design and Access Statement by Inspire Architects 
Sustainability and Energy Statement by Turley Sustainability 
Transport Assessment (including Transport Implementation Strategy 
and access plans) by SCP 
Flood Consequence Assessment by JBA 
Outline Drainage Strategy by JBA 
Green Infrastructure and Landscape Strategy by EDP 
Ecological Impact Assessment by RPS 
Arboricultural Baseline Note by EDP 
Archaeology and Heritage Assessment by EDP 
PDZ Ground Investigation Report (Phase 1) by TEC Consulting 
Margam Wharf Ground Investigation Report (Phase 1) by TEC 
Consulting 
PDZ Desk Study by TEC Consulting 
Margam Wharf Desk Study by TEC Consulting 
Geotechnical Report by TEC Consulting 
Geoenvironmental Report by TEC Consulting 
Detailed UXO Risk Assessment by Brimstone 
Preliminary Waste Management Plan by Stopford 
Economic and Social Value Statement by Turley Economics 
Lighting Assessment and Strategy by AECOM 
Fire Strategy Report by Part B 
Odour Note by LanzaTech 
Framework Construction Environmental Management Plan (FCEMP) 
by LanzaTech 
Green Infrastructure Statement by Turley 
Environmental Statement by Turley 
 

Tudalen82



  Page 77 of 87 

 

Reason: 
In the interests of clarity. 

 
Pre-commencement  
 
3 Before beginning any development at the site, you must do the 

following:- 
 

a) Notify the Local Planning Authority in writing that you intend to 
commence development by submitting a Formal Notice under Article 
24B of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 (DMPWO) in the form set out in 
Schedule 5A (a newly inserted Schedule) of the DMPWO (or in a form 
substantially to the like effect); and 
 
b) Display a Site Notice (as required by Section 71ZB of the 1990 Act) 
in the form set out in Schedule 5B (a newly inserted Schedule) of the 
DMPWO (or in a form substantially to the like effect), such Notice to be 
firmly affixed and displayed in a prominent place, be legible and easily 
visible, and be printed on durable material. Such Notice must thereafter 
be displayed at all times when development is being carried out. 
 
Reason: 
To comply with procedural requirements in accordance with Article 24B 
of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 (DMPWO) and Section 71ZB of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
NOTE: Templates of the required Notice and Site Notice are available to 
download at www.npt.gov.uk/planning 

 
4 Prior to commencement of development and notwithstanding the 

approved Framework Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(FCEMP) a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The submitted CEMP shall include the following information:  

 
i. Construction methods: identify the extent and phasing of 

development; the construction materials or techniques to be used; 
the process for storage and management of plant and materials 
used in constructing the development. 

ii. General Site Management: the construction programme including 
timetable; the approach to site clearance; the erection and 
maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing; description of complaint 
investigation procedures. 

iii. Resources Management: details of fuel and chemical storage 
and containment, details of waste generation and its 
management, details of water consumption, wastewater, and 
energy use. 

Tudalen83



  Page 78 of 87 

 

iv. Lighting: Details of external construction lighting. 
v. Control of Nuisances: Identification of the significant construction 

and demolition noise & vibration sources; physical and 
operational management controls necessary to mitigate noise & 
vibration emissions; dust & odour control measures and 
measures to control light spill.  

vi. Traffic Management: details of site deliveries; details for the 
loading and unloading of plant and materials; details of wheel 
wash facilities; details for the parking of vehicles of site operatives 
and visitors. The submission of a Construction Traffic 
Management and Routing Plan. 

vii. Hours of working on site: including specified hours for deliveries; 
restrictions to be applied during construction and demolition 
works (including timing, duration and frequency of works).  

viii. Responsible Persons: details of the persons and bodies 
responsible for activities associated with the CEMP and 
emergency contact details.  

ix. Reasonable Avoidance Measures (RAMs) for protection of 
protected species (to include otters and bats).  

x. Measures to mitigate the risk of Unexploded Ordnance (UXO), to 
reflect the suggested mitigation in the supporting detailed UXO 
Risk Assessment by Brimstone.  

xi. Biosecurity measures to manage any risk associated with any 
remaining Japanese Knotweed present on the site during the 
construction of the development.  

 
  The approved CEMP shall be implemented throughout the construction 

phases of the development. 
 

Reason: 
In the interests of biodiversity and the amenity of the area as a whole 
and to ensure the development complies with Policies EN7, TR2 and 
BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
5 Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Traffic 

Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The submitted scheme shall include a Routing 
Plan and Construction Workers Travel Plan. All construction works shall  
be undertaken in accordance with the approved plan.  
 
Reason:  
In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure the 
development complies with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
6 No development shall take place, other than site clearance until a 

scheme to enable the provision of gigabit capable broadband 
infrastructure from the site boundary to the dwellings/buildings hereby 
permitted has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 

Tudalen84



  Page 79 of 87 

 

planning authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details.  
  
Reason:  
To support the roll-out of digital communications infrastructure across 
Wales in accordance with Policy 13 of Future Wales. 

 
7 No development shall commence until the applicant, or their agents or 

successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation 
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: 
To identify and record any features of archaeological interest discovered 
during the works, in order to mitigate the impact of the works on the 
archaeological resource, as required by Planning Policy Wales and 
Policy SP21 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-
2026). 
 

8 No development shall commence on site until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of contamination affecting the application site area 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This assessment must be carried out by or under the 
direction of a suitably qualified competent person in accordance with 
BS10175 (2011) 'Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites Code 
of Practice' and shall assess any contamination on the site, whether or 
not it originates on the site. The report of the findings shall include: 
 
(i) a desk top study to identify all previous uses at the site and potential 
contaminants associated with those uses and the impacts from those 
contaminants on land and controlled waters. The desk study shall 
establish a 'conceptual site model' (CSM) which identifies and 
assesses all identified potential source, pathway, and receptor 
linkages; 
(ii) an intrusive investigation to assess the extent, scale and nature of 
contamination which may be present, if identified as required by the 
desk top study; 
(iii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 
-  human health, 
-  groundwater and surface waters 
-  adjoining land, 
-  property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, 
pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,-  ecological systems, 
-  archaeological sites and ancient monuments; and 
-  any other receptors identified at (i) 
(iv) an appraisal of remedial options, and justification for the preferred 
remedial option(s). 
 
Reason: 

Tudalen85



  Page 80 of 87 

 

To ensure that information provided for the assessment of the risks 
from land contamination to the future users of the land, neighbouring 
land, controlled waters, property and ecological systems is sufficient to 
enable a proper assessment, and to ensure compliance with Policies 
SP16 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan 
(2011-2026). 

 
9 No development shall commence on site until a remediation scheme to 

bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing 
any unacceptable risks to human health, buildings, other property and 
the natural and historic environment shall be prepared and submitted to 
and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives, remediation criteria and site management procedures. The 
measures proposed within the remediation scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with an agreed programme of works.  
 
Reason:  
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks 
to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors, and to ensure 
compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
10 Prior to the commencement of development, a written on-Site Habitat 

Management Plan (HMP) for the PDZ (PDZ as defined on drawing: 
2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0217 Rev P10 Proposed Site Plan - PDZ & 
Temp. Construction Areas) reflecting the ecological mitigation and 
enhancement measures included in the Green Infrastructure Statement 
dated March 2024 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the  
planning authority. All approved mitigation and enhancement and 
planting in the HMP to be carried out in accordance with the HMP by 
the end of the first planting season following operation of the 
development. 
 
Reason 
To ensure all the ecological aspects and mitigation set out within 
Environmental Statement are adhered to and to accord with Policy EN7 
of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

Action Conditions 
 

11 Prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved  development, a 
verification report demonstrating completion of works set out in the 
approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation 
works  carried out in accordance with condition 9 shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall 
include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with 

Tudalen86



  Page 81 of 87 

 

the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation 
criteria have been met. It shall also include a long-term monitoring and 
maintenance plan for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, 
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in 
the verification plan, if required. The long-term monitoring and 
maintenance plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

  
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off site receptors, and to ensure 
compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

12  Prior to the first beneficial use of the development, a long-term 
monitoring plan for land contamination shall be submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The long-term monitoring plan 
should include: 
• Details of the methods and triggers for action to be undertaken 
• Timescales for the long-term monitoring and curtailment mechanisms 
e.g., a scheme of monitoring for 3 years unless the monitoring reports 
indicate that subsequent monitoring is or is not required 
• Timescales for submission of monitoring reports to the Local Planning 
Authority e.g., annually  
• Details of any necessary contingency and remedial actions and 
timescales for actions 
• Details confirming that the contingency and remedial actions have been 
carried out 
The monitoring plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details, within the agreed timescales. 

 
 Reason: 

To ensure necessary monitoring measures are approved to manage any 
potential adverse impacts as a result of development on water quality 
and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the Neath Port 
Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

13 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development that was not previously identified, work on 
site shall cease immediately and shall be reported in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority. A Desk Study, Site Investigation, Risk Assessment 
and where necessary a Remediation Strategy must be undertaken in 
accordance with the following document:- Land Contamination: A Guide 
for Developers (WLGA, WAG & EAW, July 2006). This document shall 
be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
Prior to occupation of the development, a verification report which 

Tudalen87



  Page 82 of 87 

 

demonstrates the effectiveness of the agreed remediation, shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off site receptors, and to ensure 
compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

14 Prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved development and 
notwithstanding the submitted Framework Waste Management Plan, a 
Waste Management Strategy (including a scheme detailing a refuse and 
recycling strategy) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The approved details shall be fully 
implemented throughout the operation of the approved development. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure the appropriate disposal of any waste arising from the 
development in terms of protection of the environment and to ensure the 
sustainability principles are adopted during development and complies 
with Policy W3 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-
2026). 

 
15 Prior to any demolition works being undertaken on site, a Demolition 

Method Statement (DMS) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  All demolition works shall be 
undertaken  in accordance with the approved DMS.  
 
Reason: 
To ensure that demolition works are undertaken appropriately without 
unacceptable risks to the environment, workers, neighbours and other 
off site receptors, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16 and EN8 
of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
16 No piling operations or any other foundation designs using penetrative 

methods shall commence on site until full details of a Piling Method 
Statement  has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The submitted Pilling Method Statement shall identify 
all possible methods of piling, before identifying the proposed method 
together with identifying why this method is preferred.  All piling works 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Piling Method 
Statement.   
 
Reason:  

 In the interest of, the environment, and the amenity of residents, and to 
ensure accordance with Policies BE1, EN8 and TR2 of the adopted 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

Tudalen88



  Page 83 of 87 

 

 
17 Prior to the installation of any external lighting (excluding all temporary 

construction lighting), full details of all external lighting on the site 
(aligning with the principles set out in the approved Environmental 
Statement and Lighting Assessment and Strategy) shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted 
details shall include the lighting unit specifications, details of any 
required mitigation and the predicted lux levels.  All external lighting shall 
then be installed in accordance with the approved details and retained 
as such thereafter.  
 
Reason:  
In the interest of residential amenity and to prevent any unacceptable 
light spillage, and to ensure compliance with Policies SP16, EN8 and 
BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
18 Prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved development, a 

Travel Plan for all relevant modes of transport shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the  planning authority. This will include: 
i. Details of the appointment of a Travel Plan Coordinator. 
ii. Details of means to encourage staff to use more sustainable 

means of transport and reduce the demand on private transport. 
iii. A detailed schedule of proposed works 
iv. A detailed monitoring scheme/schedule, which shall include 

regular reviews covering the initial five-year period, together with 
details covering submission and approval of subsequent updated 
Framework Operational Transportation Management Plan every 
five years for the duration of the operation of the development, 
which shall seek to address any issues that have failed to reduce 
the use of the car and meet the agreed targets set in the 
Framework Operational Transportation Management Plan.  

All those measures identified within  the approved Travel Plan  as being 
required prior to implementation prior to first beneficial use shall be 
implemented.  All remaining works shall be implemented in accordance 
with the agreed programme of works.  
 
Reason:  

 In the interest of, the environment, and to support active travel, and to 
ensure accordance with Policy TR2 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot 
Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
19 Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the first beneficial use of 

the hereby approved development a Landscaping Scheme of the PDZ 
(PDZ as defined on drawing: 2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0217 Rev P10 
Proposed Site Plan - PDZ & Temp. Construction Areas), in line with the 
Green Infrastructure Statement dated March 2024, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
submitted scheme shall include a full schedule of works and shall be 
fully implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Tudalen89



  Page 84 of 87 

 

Reason:  
In the interests of maintaining a suitable scheme of landscaping to 
protect the visual amenity of the area, to maintain the special qualities of 
the landscape and habitats through the protection, creation and 
enhancement of links between sites and their protection for amenity, 
landscape and biodiversity value, and to ensure the development 
complies with Policies SP15 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
20 The approved Landscaping Scheme shall be carried out in the first 

planting season following completion and full commissioning of the 
development, and any trees or plants which within a period of five 
years are removed or become seriously damaged, dead or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size 
and the same species.  

 
Reason:  
In the interests of maintaining a suitable scheme of landscaping to 
protect the visual amenity of the area, to maintain the special qualities of 
the landscape and habitats through the protection, creation and 
enhancement of links between sites and their protection for amenity, 
landscape and biodiversity value, and to ensure the development 
complies with Policies SP15 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 
 

21 A CCTV scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, prior to its first installation.  Any CCTV units 
erected on site shall be in accordance with the approved scheme and 
shall be retained as such thereafter.  
 
Reason:  
To ensure this detail is acceptable in the interests of amenity in 
accordance with Policy BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan (2011-2026). 

 

22 In the event that any protected species is identified during the 
construction process, works must stop immediately and the Local 
Planning Authority must be notified. 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of biodiversity and to ensure the development complies 
with Policies EN7 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development 
Plan (2011-2026). 

 
 
Regulatory Conditions 
 
23  The HGV parking/loading area and staff/visitor car parks shall be 

constructed in accordance with drawing Proposed Site Key Plan 

Tudalen90



  Page 85 of 87 

 

(2143.01-IA-ZZ-ST-DR-A-0210 - Rev P14) and clearly marked out on 
site prior to the first beneficial use of the hereby approved development 
and shall be retained as such thereafter. A minimum of 10% of the total 
number of car parking spaces for the development shall be provided with 
EV charging points as shown in the submitted documents and drawings 
and shall be retained as such thereafter.  

 
Reason: 

 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, to ensure that the 
development is served by sufficient parking and to ensure compliance 
with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-
2026). 

 
24 Nothing over 600 mm shall be erected or allowed to grow within the 

vision splay areas of the proposed new vehicular accesses as detailed 
on the submitted plans drawing number(s) SCP/220352/D03 Rev F and 
SCP/220352/D02 Rev F, and shall maintained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: 

 In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, to ensure that the 
development is served by sufficient parking and to ensure compliance 
with Policy TR2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-
2026). 

 
25 The development shall be carried out in substantial accordance with the 

principles and mitigation measures as set out within the Environmental 
Statement (2023) accompanying the application. Including the mitigation 
detailed within the Environmental Statement’s Environmental 
Management Plan. 

 
Reason:  
The proposed development is the subject of an Environmental Impact 
Assessment and due regard must be had to the principle impacts of the 
development in the preparation of detailed design and the operation of 
the site. Any material alteration to the proposal may have an impact 
which has not been assessed by the process. And to accord with Policies 
of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026).  

 
26 For the duration of the construction operations associated with the 

hereby approved development, the level of noise emitted shall not 
exceed the criteria set out in Section 5 of the Construction Noise 
Assessment in Appendix 12.3 of the Environmental Statement at nearest 
residential receptors. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties and wider locality 
and to accord with Policy EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 

Tudalen91



  Page 86 of 87 

 

27 The rating level of noise arising from operation of the development 
hereby given planning permission shall be in accordance with British 
Standard 4142:2014+A1:2019 at any residential receptor. 
 
Reason: 
To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties and wider locality 
and to accord with Policy EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 

28 On receipt of a justified complaint to the Local Planning Authority the 
Local Planning Authority may request in writing that the applicant obtain 
an assessment of the noise arising from the operations on the site. The 
noise assessment shall be undertaken by a competent and suitably 
qualified acoustic consultant, who shall be a Member of the Association 
of Noise Consultants (ANC) or the Institute of Acoustics (IOA). 

 
Prior to undertaking the noise assessment and within 14 days of receipt 
of the written request from the Local Planning Authority following receipt 
of a complaint, the consultant shall contact the Local Planning Authority 
and shall agree a methodology and most appropriate standards which 
shall include timeframes for the completion of the noise assessment. 

  
Following the noise assessment, a copy of the report shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority along with evidence that 
the control measures recommended within the report are implemented 
and maintained thereafter. 

 
Reason: 
To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties and wider locality 
and to accord with Policy EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 
 
29 No demolition or construction shall be carried out outside the hours of 

08:00 to 19:00, Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
Demolition or construction shall not be carried out at any time on 
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. Prior to undertaking any construction 
works outside these defined working hours, an extended hours 
construction environmental management plan (detailing how the 
proposed works will be restricted to lower intensity to comply with noise 
and vibration limits in the Environmental Statement and required by 
Condition 26) shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Any working outside these hours shall be undertaken 
in full accordance with the approved extended hours construction 
environmental management plan. 

 
Reason: 
To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties and wider locality 
and to accord with Policy EN8 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). 

Tudalen92



  Page 87 of 87 

 

 
 
30 Operational vehicle trip generation shall be in accordance with the 

details provided in paragraphs 7.21 – 7.36 of the supporting Transport 
Assessment by SCP dated November 2023 (document reference 
CT/220352/TA/04). 

 
Reason: 
In the interests of highway safety and the freeflow of traffic and to ensure 
acceptable levels of pollution. In accordance with  Policies TR2 EN8 of 
the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 

 

Tudalen93



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



 

 

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval  

 

APPLICATION NO: P2024/0057 DATE: 23.01.2024 

PROPOSAL:  
Attached garage. 

LOCATION:18 Darwin Road 
Sandfields 
Port Talbot 
Neath Port Talbot 
SA12 6BS 

APPLICANT:  
Mr Chris Latham  

TYPE: 
Householder 

WARD: 
Port Talbot  

 
BACKGROUND 
 
This application is reported to Planning Committee as the applicant is a close relative 
of the Local Councillor.  
 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The site, located at 18 Darwin Road, Sandfields comprises of a semi-detached two 
storey dwelling house. The site is bounded by residential dwellings to its northern, 
southern and western boundary and is located to the west of the unclassified road 
‘Darwin Road’. The property benefits from off street parking provision and a small 
garden area to the front and to the side of the dwelling, and a larger garden area to 
the rear. The site has an existing garage which is located to the side/rear of the 
property, however it is set to be demolished and reconstructed for this proposed 
development.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
This is a full planning application proposing the construction of a single storey attached 
garage to the located to the north of the main dwelling. The garage is set back 1.45m 
from the principal elevation of the main dwelling, and would be attached and in line 
with an existing side extension of the dwelling.  
 
The proposed garage would have a width of approximately 5.04m and a depth of 
approximately 4.59m. The development would have a pitched roof design, where the 
height to the eaves would measure approximately 2.56m and 4.51m to its ridge. The 
development would include a single window and an up and over garage door to be 
installed on the principal elevation and bi-folded doors to be installed on the rear 
elevation.  
 
The garage is to be finished in render as its external material, and the roof would be 
finished with tiles; all to match the existing dwelling house.  

Tudalen95

Eitem yr Agenda6



 

 

 
 
NEGOTIATIONS 
 
No negotiations have been undertaken.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The application site has no relevant planning history. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Ward Members- Notified on 29/01/2024. No objection. 
 
Community Council - Consulted on 8/02/2024. No response received.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The neighbouring properties were consulted via letter on 29/01/2024.  
 
To date no representations have been received. 
 
REPORT 
 
The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council 
to take reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet its sustainable 
development (or wellbeing) objectives. This report has been prepared in consideration 
of the Council’s duty and the “sustainable development principle”, as set out in the 
2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation set out below, the Council has sought to 
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 
 
National Planning Policy: 
 
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 is the national development framework, 
setting the direction for development in Wales to 2040. The development plan sets 
out a strategy for addressing key national priorities through the planning system, 
including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving decarbonisation 
and climate resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health and 
wellbeing of our communities. 
 
The following policies are of particular relevance to the assessment of this 
application: 
 
Policy 2 – Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – Strategic Placemaking  
Policy 9- Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure.  
 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, February 2024)  
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes 
towards the delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the Planning (Wales) 
Act 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and other key 

Tudalen96

mailto:https://gov.wales/future-wales-national-plan-2040
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2024-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-12_1.pdf


 

 

legislation and resultant duties such as the Socio-economic Duty. A well-functioning 
planning system is fundamental for sustainable development and achieving 
sustainable places 
 
PPW promotes action at all levels of the planning process which is conducive 
to maximising its contribution to the well-being of Wales and its communities. It 
encourages a wider, sustainable and problem solving outlook which focuses on 
integrating and addressing multiple issues rather than on an approach which is 
fragmented, un-coordinated and deals with issues in isolation. It provides an 
opportunity to remove any actual or perceived problems in current approaches and 
stimulate and support innovative and creative ideas as well as high standards of 
evidence and assessment to underpin the preparation of development plans and 
strategies and individual proposals. Monitoring and learning from development 
outcomes so as to drive sustainable improvements in planning practice is also 
important. 
 
Paragraph 6.4.2 – “The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 introduced an enhanced 
biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems duty (Section 6 Duty). This duty applies to 
public authorities in the exercise of their functions in relation to Wales and will help 
maximise contributions to achieving the well-being goals. The Nature Recovery Action 
Plan supports this legislative requirement to reverse the decline in biodiversity, 
address the underlying causes of biodiversity loss by putting nature at the heart of 
decision-making and increasing the resilience of ecosystems by taking specific action 
focused around the 6 objectives for habitats and species”. 
 
PPW12 is supported by a series of more detailed Technical Advice Notes (TANs), of 

which the following are of relevance: - 
 

 Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12: Design (March 2016) 
 

Local Planning Policies 
 
The Local Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which the following 
policies are of relevance: 
 
Strategic Policies: 
 

 Policy SP3        Sustainable Communities 

 Policy SP20       Transport Network 

 Policy SP21       Built Environment and Historic Heritage 
 
Topic Based Policies:  
 

 Policy SC1        Settlement Limits 

 Policy EN6        Important Biodiversity and Geodiversity Sites 

 Policy EN7        Important Natural Features 

 Policy TR2        Design and Access of New Development 

 Policy BE1        Design 
 

Tudalen97

https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328
https://www.npt.gov.uk/7328


 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

 Design (July 2017) 
 
Issues 
 
Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application relate to 
the principle of development, together with the impact on the visual amenity of the 
area, the amenities of neighbouring residents and highway safety.  
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
In terms of visual amenity, as the proposed development will be situated to the side of 
the existing dwelling, it would therefore be visible from a public vantage point. 
However, given that the development would be set back from the principal elevation 
of the main dwelling, and the ridgeline would be set down lower than the existing main 
ridge of the dwelling, it is considered to be in accordance with Neath Port Talbot’s 
design guidance, and would not undermine the character and appearance of the main 
dwelling house.   
 
Furthermore, Neath Port Talbot’s design guidance emphasises that side extensions 
to detached and semi-detached dwellings should be of a scale that is subordinate to 
the main dwelling. In this case, given that the development would be single storey, 
and the width would not exceed two thirds of the width of the main dwelling, the 
development therefore is considered to be in keeping with the property and would not 
have an adverse impact on the application dwelling nor on the surrounding 
streetscene.  
 
In terms of the design of the proposed development, the proposed roof design and the 
proposed window on the main elevation are considered to reflect the design of the 
main dwelling. As the materials proposed to be used would match the existing 
materials, this would provide a further sense of continuity between the proposed 
development and the original dwelling.  
 
It is also acknowledged that the existing property and many other surrounding 
properties have an existing garage located to the side/rear of the property. As such, it 
is not considered that this proposed garage would be an unusual type of development 
within the wider streetscene.  
 
In light of the aforementioned information it is not considered that the proposed 
development would undermine the overall appearance, design and finishes of the 
existing property, nor would it detract from the character and appearance of the area 
as a whole. The development is therefore considered to comply with Policy BE1 of the 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan.  
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
With regards to the adjoining property located to the south of the application site, 20 
Darwin road  The proposed development would be located approximately 9.22m away 
from the shared boundary. Given that the proposed garage would be set back from 

Tudalen98

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf


 

 

the front elevation of the application dwelling, and that the garage would be single 
storey, the development would be largely screened from this adjoining property. As 
such, it is considered that issues regarding overlooking, overbearing and 
overshadowing would not arise.  
 
Turning to the property to the north of the application site, 4 Dickens Avenue. The 
proposed development would be situated approximately 0.95m away from the shared 
boundary, and as such, the development would be highly visible from the occupiers of 
this adjoining property. However, considering the sympathetic scale and height of this 
proposed development and that there would be no windows on the elevation facing 
no.4, it is not considered to have an adverse impact in terms of overbearing, 
overshadowing and overlooking that would result in any significant issues.  
 
In respect to the adjoining properties located to the west of the application dwelling, 1, 
3 and 5 Dylan Crescent, the proposed development would be located approximately 
11.18m away from the shared boundary with these adjoining properties. Due to the 
large separation between the proposed development and these adjoining properties, 
it is not considered that the development would result in an overshadowing and 
overbearing impact. In terms of issues that might arise regarding overlooking, it should 
be noted that there would be a set of bi folded doors located on the elevation facing 
no. 1, 3 and 5. However, given that the garage would be single storey and classed as 
a non-habitable building, it is not considered that the proposal would create any 
unacceptable overlooking issues. Any further issues would also be mitigated  due to 
an existing wooden fence measuring approximately 2m screening the application site  
and the adjoining properties.  
 
A condition will BE imposed upon any decision issued stating the garage is to be 
restricted to the garaging of private motor vehicles and uses incidental to the use of 
the associated dwelling house only and no industrial, commercial or business use to 
ensure compliance with Policies TR2 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 
  
Taking the above into account, it is not considered that the proposal would adversely 
affect the residential amenity of occupiers of any of the surrounding properties. It is 
therefore considered that the proposal would comply with Policy BE1 of the Local 
Development Plan. 
 
Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 
 
The proposed garage measures the dimensions of 5.04 x 4.59, which meets the 
Councils Parking SPG and can be considered a new parking space for the dwelling. 
As such, it is not considered that the proposed development would impact 
detrimentally upon the pedestrian and highway safety.  
 
Biodiversity / Ecology 
 
As identified above, Policies EN6 and EN7 of the Local Development Plan will be of 
relevance insofar as there is a need to ensure any impacts on biodiversity/ natural 
features are appropriately assessed and, where applicable, mitigated.   
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) 12 sets out that; 
 

Tudalen99



 

 

The quality of the built environment should be enhanced by integrating green 
infrastructure into development through appropriate site selection and use of creative 
design. With careful planning and design, informed by an appropriate level of 
assessment, green infrastructure can embed the benefits of biodiversity and 
ecosystem services into new development and places, help to overcome the potential 
for conflicting objectives, and contribute to health and well-being outcomes.  
 
A green infrastructure statement should be submitted with all planning applications. 
This will be proportionate to the scale and nature of the development proposed and 
will describe how green infrastructure has been incorporated into the proposal. In the 
case of minor development this will be a short description and should not be an 
onerous requirement for applicants. The green infrastructure statement will be an 
effective way of demonstrating positive multi-functional outcomes which are 
appropriate to the site in question and must be used for demonstrating how the 
step-wise approach (Paragraph 6.4.15 of PPW 12) has been applied. 
 
In this case the development will provide a bat and bird box to be installed on the rear 
elevation of the extension which will be secured by a suitably worded condition.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in accordance with 
Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, 
in determining a planning application the determination must be in accordance with 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
Development Plan comprises Future Wales - the National Plan 2040 and the Neath 
Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–2026) adopted January 2016. 
 
It is considered that the proposal represents an appropriate form of development that 
would have no unacceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents, visual 
amenity of the area or highway and pedestrian safety. Accordingly, the proposed 
development is in accordance with Policies BE1 (Design) and TR2 (Design and 
Access of New Development) of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 
 
It is further considered that the decision complies with Future Wales - the National 
Plan 2040, specifically Policies 2 (Shaping Urban Growth and Regeneration – 
Strategic Placemaking) & 9 (Resilient Ecological Networks and Green Infrastructure). 
and the Council’s well-being objectives and the sustainable development principle in 
accordance with the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approval, subject to conditions.  
 
Time Limit Conditions 
 
1  The development shall begin no later than five years from the date of this 

decision. 
 

Reason: 

Tudalen100



 

 

To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

 
List of Approved Plans 
 
2  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents: 
29 velindre st-BLOCK 
Floor Plan, Elevations & Section  

 
Reason: 
In the interests of clarity. 

 
3  Prior to the first beneficial use of the development hereby permitted, an 

artificial nesting site for birds shall be erected on the dwelling to one of the 
following specifications, and retained as such thereafter;  
Nest Box Specifications for House Sparrow Terrace: 
Wooden (or woodcrete) nest box with 3 sub-divisions to support 3 nesting 
pairs. To be placed under the eaves of buildings. 
Entrance holes: 32mm diameter Dimensions: H310 x W370 x D185mm or 
Swift Nest Box Specification: 
Wide box with small slit shaped entrance hole. Must be placed under or close 
to roofs, at least 5m from the ground. 
Dimensions: H150 x W340 x D150mm  

 
Reason: 
In the interest of biodiversity, and to mitigate to loss of bird nesting/foraging 
habitats under the Habitats Regulations (amended 2012) and to accord with 
Policy SP15 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

 
Regulatory Conditions 
 
4  The use of the garage hereby approved shall be restricted to the garaging of 

private motor vehicles and uses incidental to the use of the associated 
dwellinghouse only and for no industrial, commercial or business use. 

 
Reason: 
To ensure that adequate car parking provision is maintained within the 

curtilage of the dwelling in the interest of highway safety, and to ensure 

compliance with Policies TR2 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot Local 

Development Plan. 

 

Tudalen101



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS DETERMINED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0001 Planning Ref: P2022/0261 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02160-V3Y3X9 
 
Appellant: Mr Dane Lacey 
 

Proposal: Proposed removal of stables and replace with 
residential bungalow 

 

Site Address: Land At Frondeg  Gwrhyd Road Pontardawe SA8 
4TH   

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 8 January 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0003 Planning Ref: P2020/1116 
 
PINS Ref: 3277533 
 
Appellant: Mr Thomas & Jeremiah Wall & Connors 
 

Proposal: Use of land for two gypsy caravan pitches for 
residential purposes including a semi-detached 
day/utility room, two parking spaces per pitch 
together with the relocation of the existing access 
(partially retrospective), internal access drive, 
turning area, external lighting and additional 
landscaping / ecological enhancements. 

 

Tudalen103

Eitem yr Agenda7



Site Address: Land Adjacent To Crynant Villa  Ynyswen 
Terrace Crynant Neath SA10 8PT   

 
Appeal Method: Hearing  
 
Decision Date: 2 October 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Withdrawn 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0019 Planning Ref: P2022/0608 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02680-D7G6X3 
 
Appellant: Ms E McGinley 
 

Proposal: Change of use of vacant industrial floorspace 
(use class B2) to provide a first floor gym (use 
class D2) and ground floor cafe (use class A3) 

 

Site Address: JCG Building  Milland Road Industrial Estate 
Neath SA11 1NJ    

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 24 November 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0014 Planning Ref: P2022/0539 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02565-V6R4B5 
 
Appellant: Mrs Sarah Davies 
 

Tudalen104



Proposal: Creation of a new vehicular access and 1 no. off 
road parking space. 

 

Site Address: 27 Gelligron Road Pontardawe SA8 4LU     
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 23 October 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0015 Planning Ref: P2022/0826 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02603-F8G8J6 
 
Appellant: MBNL (EE (UK) Ltd And H3G (UK) Ltd) 
 

Proposal: Prior Notification for a proposed 20m high phase 
7 monopole, cabinets and ancillary equipment. 

 

Site Address: Taibach Rugby Club  Park View Port Talbot 
Neath SA13 1SP   

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 20 October 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0016 Planning Ref: P2022/0990 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02609-N7X0Q0 
 
Appellant: Miss Aimee Moran 

Tudalen105



 

Proposal: 1 Number detached dwelling and detached 
garage and  creation of vehicular access 

 

Site Address: Land Rear Of  Heol Nedd Cwmgwrach Neath 
SA11 5PL   

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 22 September 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0017 Planning Ref: P2023/0192 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02858-J0X2K8 
 
Appellant: Mr Steven Hyett 
 

Proposal: Proposed single storey extension to existing 
outbuilding for home office/storage use 

 

Site Address: 3 Court Lane Pontardawe SA8 4JL     
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
 
Decision Date: 13 October 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0018 Planning Ref: P2020/0689 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02640-J4S9Z1 
 

Tudalen106



Appellant: Miss Chloe Mclean 
 

Proposal: Retention of outbuilding and engineering works 
to form tired garden area together with retention 
and completion of associated boundary treatment 
and decked areas 

 

Site Address: 21 Crymlyn Gardens Skewen SA10 6EU     
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 20 October 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0020 Planning Ref: P2023/0372 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02946-L4V9K0 
 
Appellant: T Jones 
 

Proposal: Alterations to existing bungalow in the form of 
extensions to the front, rear and both sides to 
include accommodation in the roof space, and 
the construction of front and rear dormer 
extensions. Plus the incorporation of a section of 
the rear garden area of 83 Penywern Road into 
the residential curtilage of the application 
dwelling, and alterations to the parking 
arrangements. 

 

Site Address: 2A Gilfach Road Bryncoch Neath Neath Port 
Talbot SA10 8EH   

 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
 
Decision Date: 9 November 2023 
 

Tudalen107



Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0021 Planning Ref: P2023/0401 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02857-Y5J3T9 
 
Appellant: Clear Channel 
 

Proposal: Advertisement Consent: Erection of a pair of 
illuminated 48-sheet digital poster displays. 

 

Site Address: Land At Baglan Industrial Estate Port Talbot 
SA12 6DT     

 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
 
Decision Date: 17 November 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0023 Planning Ref: P2023/0413 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03052-T9Q5P7 
 
Appellant: Mr Dave Heard 
 

Proposal: Side extension to existing garage to provide 
storage in the lower section and creation of 
platform above with associated means of 
enclosure to facilitate bin and cycle storage, 
together with installation of steps. 

 

Site Address: 4 High Street Alltwen Pontardawe Swansea 
Neath Port Talbot SA8 3BT  

Tudalen108



 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
 
Decision Date: 25 January 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0024 Planning Ref: P2023/0219 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02900-R5Q0N2 
 
Appellant: Cooke 
 

Proposal: Prior Notification Application for a proposed 5G 
telecoms installation: H3G 15m street pole and 
additional equipment cabinets. 

 

Site Address: Land Opposite 3 Grove Cottage  Margam  Port 
Talbot  SA13 2SY    

 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 5 March 2034 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0001 Planning Ref: P2023/0354 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02922-T6R6D8 
 
Appellant: Mr Mehmet Dilki 
 

Proposal: Creation of 3 number flats on 1st, 2nd and third 
floors of property. 

Tudalen109



 

Site Address: 29 Station Road Port Talbot SA13 1NN     
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 26 February 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0002 Planning Ref: P2023/0043 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03167-Z8H3Q2 
 
Appellant: Mr Paul Thomas 
 

Proposal: Single storey pitched roof shed/store to rear 
garden (Retrospective) 

 

Site Address: 26 Brytwn Road Cymmer SA13 3EN     
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
 
Decision Date: 8 March 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0003 Planning Ref: P2023/0837 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03209-D2L0P8 
 
Appellant: Mr Warren Milroy 
 

Proposal: Installation of 2 x 48 sheet free-standing led 
illuminated advertising display panels erected in 

Tudalen110



'back to back' formation, (measuring 6.4m wide x 
3.4m high, and comprising pressed metal frame 
and sealed led screen). 

 

Site Address: Castle Surgery  Prince Of Wales Drive Neath 
SA11 3EW    

 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
 
Decision Date: 13 March 2024 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0002 Planning Ref: E2020/0299 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02521-F9X1W2 
 
Applicant: Roger Morris Trustee Of The Late William 

Donald Heggie 
 

Alleged Breach: The unauthorised change of use of the land for 
the storage of vehicles and parts. 

 

 

Site Address: Land At Eaglesbush Valley Neath Neath Port 
Talbot SA11 2AN   

 
Start Date: 4 July 2023  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
Decision Date: 3 November 2023 
 
Decision: Appeal Dismissed 
 
 Appeal Decision Letter 

Tudalen111



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS RECEIVED 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0019 Planning Ref: P2022/0608 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02680-D7G6X3 
 
Appellant: Ms E McGinley 
 

Proposal: Change of use of vacant industrial floorspace 
(use class B2) to provide a first floor gym (use 
class D2) and ground floor cafe (use class A3) 

 

Site Address: JCG Building  Milland Road Industrial Estate 
Neath SA11 1NJ    

 
Start Date: 4 September 2023  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0020 Planning Ref: P2023/0372 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02946-L4V9K0 
 
Appellant: T Jones 
 

Proposal: Alterations to existing bungalow in the form of 
extensions to the front, rear and both sides to 
include accommodation in the roof space, and 
the construction of front and rear dormer 
extensions. Plus the incorporation of a section of 
the rear garden area of 83 Penywern Road into 
the residential curtilage of the application 
dwelling, and alterations to the parking 
arrangements. 

 

Site Address: 2A Gilfach Road Bryncoch Neath Neath Port 
Talbot SA10 8EH   

Tudalen113

Eitem yr Agenda8



 
Start Date: 21 September 2023  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0021 Planning Ref: P2023/0401 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02857-Y5J3T9 
 
Appellant: Clear Channel 
 

Proposal: Advertisement Consent: Erection of a pair of 
illuminated 48-sheet digital poster displays. 

 

Site Address: Land At Baglan Industrial Estate Port Talbot 
SA12 6DT     

 
Start Date: 29 September 2023  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0022 Planning Ref: P2022/0966 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02844-V2X8H8 
 
Appellant: Mr & Mrs Tom & Montanna Roberts 
 

Proposal: Creation of one gypsy pitch with one residential 
static unit, touring caravan, a utility/day room and 
boundary fencing (partly retrospective) 

 

Site Address: No 1 Ponderosa  Church Street Briton Ferry 
Neath SA11 2HZ   

 
Start Date: 25 October 2023  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0023 Planning Ref: P2023/0413 

Tudalen114



 
PINS Ref: CAS-03052-T9Q5P7 
 
Appellant: Mr Dave Heard 
 

Proposal: Side extension to existing garage to provide 
storage in the lower section and creation of 
platform above with associated means of 
enclosure to facilitate bin and cycle storage, 
together with installation of steps. 

 

Site Address: 4 High Street Alltwen Pontardawe Swansea 
Neath Port Talbot SA8 3BT  

 
Start Date: 14 November 2023  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2023/0024 Planning Ref: P2023/0219 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02900-R5Q0N2 
 
Appellant: Cooke 
 

Proposal: Prior Notification Application for a proposed 5G 
telecoms installation: H3G 15m street pole and 
additional equipment cabinets. 

 

Site Address: Land Opposite 3 Grove Cottage  Margam  Port 
Talbot  SA13 2SY    

 
Start Date: 13 December 2023  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0001 Planning Ref: P2023/0354 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02922-T6R6D8 
 
Appellant: Mr Mehmet Dilki 

Tudalen115



 

Proposal: Creation of 3 number flats on 1st, 2nd and third 
floors of property. 

 

Site Address: 29 Station Road Port Talbot SA13 1NN     
 
Start Date: 3 January 2024  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0002 Planning Ref: P2023/0043 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03167-Z8H3Q2 
 
Appellant: Mr Paul Thomas 
 

Proposal: Single storey pitched roof shed/store to rear 
garden (Retrospective) 

 

Site Address: 26 Brytwn Road Cymmer SA13 3EN     
 
Start Date: 18 January 2024  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0003 Planning Ref: P2023/0837 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03209-D2L0P8 
 
Appellant: Mr Warren Milroy 
 

Proposal: Installation of 2 x 48 sheet free-standing led 
illuminated advertising display panels erected in 
'back to back' formation, (measuring 6.4m wide x 
3.4m high, and comprising pressed metal frame 
and sealed led screen). 

 

Site Address: Castle Surgery  Prince Of Wales Drive Neath 
SA11 3EW    

 

Tudalen116



Start Date: 22 January 2024  
 
Appeal Method:  Fast Track 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0004 Planning Ref: E2022/0018 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-02742-P8M5J4 
 
Applicant: Robert Thomas 
 

Alleged Breach: Appeal against the unauthorised change of use 
from a garage to an office with internal and 
external storage (including commercial waste) 
and laundry facility used in association with 
property cleaning and maintenance business. 

 

Site Address: Sparkles Solutions Main Road Crynant Neath 
Neath Port Talbot SA10 8PF  

 
Start Date: 1 February 2024  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations  
 
 
Appeal Ref: A2024/0005 Planning Ref: E2021/0258 
 
PINS Ref: CAS-03156-D9W5S7 
 
Applicant: Martyn Singleton 
 

Alleged Breach: Appeal against 

 

Site Address: Doladron 91 Henfaes Road Tonna Neath Neath 
Port Talbot SA11 3EX  

 
Start Date: 19 February 2024  
 
Appeal Method: Written Representations 

Tudalen117



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN 11TH AUGUST 2023 AND 18th March 2024 
 

App No:  P2022/0739 

Proposal: Retrospective planning application for the construction 
of a detached carport and re-surfacing of parking area. 
Plus re-surfacing of a section of grass verge. 

Location: 9 Beechwood Avenue  Neath  SA11 3TD       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2022/0913 

Proposal: Replacement of the external ATM with new model, with 
associated works, including the removal of the existing 
stone in-fill above cill level and replacement of the 
window to the original size. 

Location: 3 Windsor Road  Neath  SA11 1LN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2022/0926 

Proposal: Construction of  an industrial building  (Use Class B2) 
(Additional / revised flooding information received 
06.03.2023) 

Location: Amman Valley Welders   Park Howard Road  Cwmgors  
SA18 1PA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2022/0984 

Proposal: Erection of an anemometer mast of up to 121.5m high 
(including instruments) with associated security fencing 
for a period of 5 years 

Location: Land Forming Part Of Brynrhyg Farm  Brynawel (Grid 
Ref. 281695 205899)   Approx. 2.2km North-east Of 
Crynant  Neath  SA10 8SR   

Decision: Approved 

Tudalen119

Eitem yr Agenda9



Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 
 

App No:  P2023/0081 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(construction environmental management plan) and 
condition 9 (green roof planting scheme) of application 
P2022/0470 granted on 12/10/22 (27/07/23 - Revised 
CEMP submitted) 

Location: Land At Baglan Way  Port Talbot         
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0159 

Proposal: Change of use of shop/workshop (B1) into short-term 
holiday let (guest house) accommodation, with addition 
of external rear & side first floor balconies and lower 
ground floor plant room, together with associated car 
parking facilities. 

Location: Afan Workshops   Afan Road  Duffryn Rhondda  SA13 
3ES     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0279 

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. self-contained modular units to 
provide additional residential accommodation and 
educational facility within the grounds of existing care 
facility 

Location: Brynmorgan Villa   Lower Brynmorgan Bridge  Upper 
Cwmtwrch  SA9 2XG     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0313 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (Existing) for use of 
the property as a residential dwelling (Use Class C3) in 
non-compliance with an agricultural occupancy 
condition. 

Tudalen120



Location: Pant Y Gwanyd Farm   Allt Y Grug Farm Road Link To 
Carreg Pentwyn Farm  Ystalyfera  SA9 2BE     

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0330 

Proposal: Proposed single-storey rear extension & demolition of 
existing outbuildings 

Location: 23 Western Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 7LS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2023/0344 

Proposal: Two storey rear extension, safety screens to both first 
floor rear patio doors, extended raised deck area with 
balustrade and new steps. 

Location: 33 Wenallt Road  Tonna  Neath  SA11 3HZ     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0350 

Proposal: Two storey side extension, side and rear access steps 
Location: Nant Y Fedw Farm  Eastern Avenue Lane To Nant Y 

Fedw  Cymmer  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwynfi & Croeserw 

 

App No:  P2023/0366 

Proposal: Demolition of existing single storey lean to extension to 
be replaced with 2 storey full width extension. 

Location: 42 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6EA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0383 

Proposal: Detached dwelling (Outline with all matters reserved) 

Tudalen121



Location: Land Between   59 And 62 Gough Road  Ystalyfera  
Swansea  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0384 

Proposal: Removal of canopy to facilitate single storey extension 
to entrance building and new goods lift on the front 
elevation. 

Location: Amazon  Ffordd Amazon  Crymlyn Burrows  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0403 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with Conditions 3 
(CEMP), 9 (Historic Environment Mitigation Scheme) 
and 10 (Finished Floor levels) of P2022/0397 granted 
on 21/7/22 (Additional information  received on 5/7/23  
in respect of Condition 3 ) (Addendum to CEMP Rec 
20-7-23) 

Location: Land At Edwards Works  Llandarcy  Neath  SA10 6JY     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0424 

Proposal: Provide lay down/storage area for steel containers until 
they are leased/rented out 

Location: Former Zion Chapel  Pantdu  Cwmavon  Port Talbot  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0447 

Proposal: Proposed garage and store outbuilding. 
Location: 49 Dinas Baglan Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA12 8DT   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

Tudalen122



 

App No:  P2023/0449 

Proposal: Install single storey conservatory to the rear of the 
property 

Location: 17 Hooper Way  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3FB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0453 

Proposal: Proposed first floor extension above existing single 
storey extension. 

Location: Spa House  Gellionen Road  Trebanos  Pontardawe  
Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

App No:  P2023/0463 

Proposal: Proposed three storey rear extension with Juliet 
balcony at ground floor level, removal of front boundary 
wall and front garden and development of access steps 
and canopy porch (amended description of works). 

Location: 29 Derwen Road  Alltwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2023/0473 

Proposal: Demolition of single storey extension and porch to 
facilitate a proposed two storey and single storey rear 
extension, fenestration alterations, removal of front 
boundary wall, and development of canopy porch. 

Location: 38 Beechwood Avenue  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3TE     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0488 

Tudalen123



Proposal: The proposed work for constructing a front porch and 
amending the existing access steps and creating a 
raised platform. The front garden will slope down to the 
existing front retaining wall. 

Location: 4 School Road  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3EJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0489 

Proposal: Works to three trees: T1, T2 and T3 Oaks - Reduce 
overhanging branches by 2-2.5m. Works to G1 - 
Reduce overhanging branches by 1.5-2m 

Location: 2 The Nook   Henfaes Road  Tonna  Neath  SA11 3FH   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0495 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension, between existing dining 
room/kitchen and next door 

Location: 11 Rice Street  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
1SN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2023/0503 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extension. 
Location: 88 Cimla Crescent  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA11 3NP   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath South 

 

App No:  P2023/0508 

Proposal: Detached double garage. 
Location: 54 Heol Cae Gurwen  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  

Ammanford  Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1HG   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

Tudalen124



App No:  P2023/0509 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 12 
(verification report - phase 2) of application 
P2019/5028 granted on 30/07/2019. 

Location: Cefn Saeson Comprehensive School  Afan Valley 
Road  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0521 

Proposal: Retention of detached outbuilding 
Location: 23 Fforest Hill  Aberdulais  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 8HD   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

App No:  P2023/0522 

Proposal: Section 73 application for the variation of condition 1 of 
planning permission P2022/0254 approved on 21.6.22, 
to allow for a further 2 years  for the siting of a 
demountable unit to existing temporary classroom. 

Location: Sportsfield Adjacent To  Cwmtawe Community School  
Ffordd Parc Ynysderw  Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0530 

Proposal: Retrospective planning application for the construction 
of front and rear dormer extensions 

Location: 335 Delffordd  Rhos  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0534 

Tudalen125



Proposal: Advertisement Consent: Replace existing double-sided 
internally illuminated 6-sheet bus shelter advertising 
displays with double-sided digital displays. 
Replacement digital displays will portray static 
advertising images that change every 10 seconds. 

Location: Bus Shelter 5701-0009   Helibronn Way  Opp 
Cwmavon Road  Port Talbot  SA13 1PH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0535 

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for an existing extension 
to residential curtilage being in use for over 10 years 

Location: Tynycoed  17 Graig Gellinudd  Gellinudd  Pontardawe  
Swansea   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0539 

Proposal: Details pursuant to discharge of condition 5 (land 
contamination report) of P2022/0692  granted on 
16.6.23. 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0541 

Proposal: Advertisement consent: Replace existing double-sided 
internally illuminated 6-sheet bus shelter advertising 
displays with double-sided digital displays. 
Replacement digital displays will portray static 
advertising images that change every 10 seconds. 

Location: Bus Shelter 5701-0016   201 Margam Road   Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 2AB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0544 

Tudalen126



Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate (Proposed) for single 
storey ground floor extension behind existing garage 

Location: 20 Conduit Place  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 2TT   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0549 

Proposal: Demolish an existing garage and erect a new 9 x 3.6m 
wooden building to provide temporary living 
accommodation for an aged parent (to use as a 
residential annex) 

Location: 16 Abernant Road  Cwmgors  SA18 1RB       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0566 

Proposal: Discharge of Condition 5 (Biodiversity Enhancement 
Scheme) of planning permission P2022/0769 for the 
change of use to asbestos waste transfer station, 
construction of steel reinforced concrete pad and 
drainage works. 

Location: Land At Units 1-3 Sirius Drive   Seaway Parade 
Industrial Estate  Baglan Energy Park  Port Talbot  
SA12 7BR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0567 

Proposal: Retrospective application for a single storey rear 
extension and covered canopy area. 

Location: 20 Gilfach Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 8EH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0568 

Proposal: Replacement front porch 

Tudalen127



Location: 8 Ffordd Derwen  Coed Hirwaun  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA13 2TX   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0570 

Proposal: First floor rear extension 
Location: 29 Leyshon Road  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  Ammanford  

Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1EL   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0575 

Proposal: Non material amendment to application ref: 
P2022/0506 Approved 22.09.2022 to amend windows 
from UPVC to aluminium 

Location: 41 Commercial Road  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 1LN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0580 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application to planning 
permission P2020/0539 approved 18/08/20 to alter 
wording of Condition 1 to enable alteration to access 
arrangement and Condition 11 to remove requirement 
to incorporate gates that can been seen through 

Location: Rosewarn  Dulais Road  Seven Sisters  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0597 

Proposal: Neighbouring Authority Consultation: Proposed Rhigos 
Road solar farm (developer consultation on PAC) 

Location: Rhigos Road  Hirwaun   Rhonnda Cynon Taf       
Decision: No Objections 
Ward: Outside BoroughOutside BoroughOutside Borough 

 

Tudalen128



App No:  P2023/0608 

Proposal: Non-material amendment application to add approved 
list condition to application P2014/0302 determined on 
08/09/2014 including amendments to approved rear 
double car port into a smaller sunroom and alteration to 
first floor balcony. 

Location: Brynteg  Water Street  Margam  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0612 

Proposal: Prior Notification for the demolition of the cooling tower 
for blast furnace 4. 

Location: Port Talbot Steel Works  Margam  Port Talbot       
Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0613 

Proposal: Prior notification for the demolitions of existing highline 
conveyor steel structure comprising gallery girders and 
associated infrastructure. 

Location: Port Talbot Steelworks   Grange Road  Margam  SA13 
2NG     

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0631 

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2023/0238 approved 11/05/23: addition of one 
window within the rear elevation of the single storey 
rear extension. 

Location: 54 Greenwood Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 8PF   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

 

Tudalen129



App No:  P2020/0689 

Proposal: Retention of outbuilding and engineering works to form 
tired garden area together with retention and 
completion of associated boundary treatment and 
decked areas 
 

Location: 21 Crymlyn Gardens  Skewen  SA10 6EU       
Decision: Non Determination Appeal 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2021/1070 

Proposal: Details to be re-agreed (amended scheme now 
proposed including a new retaining wall to north west 
boundary that was previously not proposed together 
with other boundary treatment changes) in association 
with conditions 26 (means of enclosure) of application 
P2011/0486 granted on 11/12/2019 (different scheme 
was previously agreed under discharge of condition 
application number P2021/0664) 

Location: The Welfare Hall   Glynneath  Neath  SA11 5EE     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2021/1244 

Proposal: Erection of building for sheep accommodation and 
general agricultural storage with hardstanding 

Location: Ty'n Y Cwm Farm   Ty'n Y Cwm Lane  Rhos  
Pontardawe  SA8 3EY   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2022/0446 

Proposal: Proposed side and rear two storey extension. 
Location: 130 Neath Road  Rhos  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath 

Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

Tudalen130



App No:  P2022/0543 

Proposal: Four detached dwellings, private drive, provision of 
pedestrian footway and associated works. 

Location: Land At   Forest Lodge Lane  Cwmavon  SA13 2RX     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2022/0685 

Proposal: Retrospective planning application for the construction 
of  raised platforms including a parking area with 
associated retaining works 

Location: 54 Swansea Road  Pontardawe  SA8 4AL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2022/0697 

Proposal: First floor side and single storey rear extensions to 
include roof alterations. Plus retrospective application 
for the construction of an approximately 2.4m high 
garden retaining wall and amendment to the design of 
the detached garage approved under application no. 
P2020/0999. 

Location: Nant Y Deri  129 Cilmaengwyn Road  Cilmaengwyn  
Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2022/0799 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 24 (relating to the requirement 
of a restoration plan) attached to planning permission 
P/96/1186/03 

Location: Pentreclwydau Mine Complex  Cwmgwrach  Neath  
SA11 5PT     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2022/0902 

Tudalen131



Proposal: Development of 5 detached bungalows and associated 
work including construction of new access road, 
parking, amenity space and boundary treatments 

Location: Land At The Junction Of Dulais Road And Nant Y Cafn 
Business Park  Seven Sisters  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 9EY   

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2022/0953 

Proposal: Change of use of former primary school to a 
community enterprise, arts, education and energy 
centre, community cafe, single story rear extension, 
external works and ground source heating details. 
(Amended application following previous approval 
under P2020/0453 to show alternative vehicular access 
and parking layout, and landscaping proposals) 

Location: Cwmgors Old School   Heol Y Gors  Cwmgors  SA18 
1RF     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2022/0965 

Proposal: Two storey side extension, single storey side/rear 
extension and single storey side store extension. 

Location: 2 Rowan Tree Avenue  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 8EZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2022/1014 

Proposal: Retention of garage to rear garden 
Location: 7 Aberdare Road  Glynneath  SA11 5HY       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2022/1027 

Tudalen132



Proposal: Excavation of front garden area, with associated 
retaining works and reduction in height of front 
boundary wall, to accommodate vehicular off-street 
parking space. 

Location: 54 Neath Road  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3EB     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2022/1043 

Proposal: Demolition of fire damaged former public house 
building and construction of 4 no. semi-detached 
dwelling houses, 1 no. detached dwelling house (5 
houses in total) and associated development 

Location: 24 Bryn Road  Cwmllynfell  SA9 2FJ       
Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2022/1068 

Proposal: Demolition of existing garage and development of new 
garage. Extension to existing driveway in front garden, 
development of retaining wall and access gate forward 
of the garage. 

Location: 20 Daphne Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 8DP   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2022/1078 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 13 
(service yard management plan), 14 (traffic 
management scheme) & 16 (landscape management 
plan) of P2020/0486 granted on 29.7.2020 

Location: Land At   Water Street  Neath       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2022/1081 

Proposal: Change of use of dwelling to HMO (4 bedrooms). 
Location: 14 Glyn Street  Aberavon  SA12 6NF       

Tudalen133



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2022/1092 

Proposal: Proposed cladding of facade and roofs of existing steel 
skeleton frame industrial building and recladding of 
existing part-cladded concrete frame industrial building 
including new roller shutter access doors and 
aluminium polyester colour coated windows and doors 

Location: Land Adjoining Macron Store  Neath Abbey Road 
Industrial Estate  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 7BR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch SouthBryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0043 

Proposal: Single storey pitched roof shed/store to rear garden 
(Retrospective) 

Location: 26 Brytwn Road  Cymmer  SA13 3EN       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0077 

Proposal: Section 73 application to amend the wording of 
condition 2 (approved plan list) and condition 5 
(structural calculations) of planning application 
P2021/0406 determined on 10/08/2021 for changes to 
external elevations to reflect the internal amendments 
and changes to the rear (eastern) and front (western) 
retaining wall structures including detailed structural 
designs. 

Location: Bayview   3 Fernfield  Baglan  SA12 8AL     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0092 

Proposal: Retrospective application for the retention of new 
access, hardstanding with turning area and gates. 

Location: 9 Gwilym Road  Cwmllynfell  Swansea  SA9 2GH     
Decision: Approved 

Tudalen134



Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 
 

App No:  P2023/0122 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 8 
(pedestrian crossing and cycle priority junction 
arrangements and routes scheme) of application 
P2022/0470 granted on 12/10/2022. 

Location: Land At Baglan Way  Port Talbot         
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0223 

Proposal: Installation of cooker extraction unit/ducting 
(Retrospective) 

Location: Colliers Arms  Efail Fach  Pontrhydyfen  Port Talbot  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0226 

Proposal: Retention of a single detached garage and the 
construction of a second single detached garage both 
located within an existing garage compound. 

Location: Garage Compound Adjacent To  1 Albion Road  
Baglan  Port Talbot  SA12 8BY   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0233 

Proposal: Residential development of up to six dwellings and 
associated works. 

Location: Land At Harvey Crescent  Aberavon  Port Talbot  SA12 
6DF     

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2023/0252 

Tudalen135



Proposal: Proposed single storey detached garage and extension 
to existing hardstanding. 

Location: 27 Graig Newydd  Godre'r Graig  SA9 2DG       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2023/0253 

Proposal: Conversion of 2 outbuildings to holiday accommodation 
Location: Pant Glas  Tre Nache Access Lane  Bryncoch  Neath  

Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0277 

Proposal: Retention of change of use to private gym and 
domestic storage 

Location: Brookside House   Old Road  Skewen  SA10 7LT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0289 

Proposal: To erect a double-storey side extension to provide a 
gym area to the ground floor and a dressing room, 
leading to an en-suite on the first floor. 

Location: 26 Villiers Road  Blaengwynfi  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 3TH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwynfi & Croeserw 

 

App No:  P2023/0296 

Proposal: Retention of two storey side extension, increase in roof 
height, external alterations and retaining wall (as built 
on site). 

Location: 10 Graig Road  Trebanos  Pontardawe  SA8 4BA     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Trebanos 

 

App No:  P2023/0302 

Tudalen136



Proposal: Retrospective change of use from part of car park to 
storage container site. 

Location: Lockspot Self Storage   Rheola Enterprise Park  
Resolven  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 4HN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0309 

Proposal: Outline application for two detached dwellings (access 
and layout considered). 

Location: Land Adjacent  73 Bay View Gardens  Skewen  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0310 

Proposal: Installation of roof-top extraction flues to facilitate 
internal boiler apparatus 

Location: Biosol Renewables UK Limited   Unit 1, Vale Of Neath 
Business Park  Resolven  Neath  SA11 4HN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0312 

Proposal: Proposed single storey extension to east elevation and 
front elevation  to provide function room  and a single 
storey extension to west elevation to lounge. 

Location: Pontardawe Rugby Club  Ynisderw Road  Pontardawe  
Swansea  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0322 

Tudalen137



Proposal: New car park and drop off area together with new 
retaining walls with guardrails, pedestrian crossing 
points, landscaping, drainage works including swale, 
carriageway widening, formation of new access, 
access gates, 2.4m high security fence and associated 
works. (Amended plans received 25.07.23 and Coal 
Mining Risk Assessment received 07.08.23 

Location: Former Neath Abbey Infant School  SA10 7LB         
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0329 

Proposal: Change of use of an agricultural field at Bryn Bettws 
Lodge to allow seasonal camping for up to 10 months a 
year. 

Location: Bryn Bettws Lodge   Road Leading East From 
Tonmawr  Pontrhydyfen  SA12 9SP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0338 

Proposal: Change of use of  tanning salon/beauty salon/nail bar 
(Use Class Sui Generis) to Florist shop (Use Class A1) 

Location: 110 Fairway  Sandfields  Port Talbot  SA12 7HR     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0362 

Proposal: Proposed front car parking area & associated retaining 
works 

Location: Nidum   1 Gardners Lane  Neath  SA11 2AA     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2023/0368 

Proposal: To convert a 4 bedroom residential dwelling into a 4 
bed HMO. Existing outbuilding at the rear to be used 
for bike and bin storage. 

Tudalen138



Location: 15 Regent Street East  Briton Ferry  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 2RR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2023/0369 

Proposal: Demolition of existing structures and construction of 
43no. residential dwellings with associated 
infrastructure works. 

Location: Land At   Heol Crwys  Cwmafan  Port Talbot   SA12 
9NT   

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0374 

Proposal: Change of use from former St Peter's Church to 1 no. 2 
bedroom residential bungalow to include a single 
storey rear extension with bi fold door. 

Location: Hall   East Street  Goytre  SA13 2YG     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0386 

Proposal: Outline application (all matters reserved except access) 
for the erection of 2no. detached dwellings and 
associated works. Together with revised car parking 
layout to serve the Crown & Sceptre Inn. 

Location: Car park (part of) serving Crown & Sceptre Inn, Main 
Road, Cadoxton SA10 8AP           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cadoxton 

 

App No:  P2023/0391 

Proposal: Proposed development of x2 demountable buildings for 
additional classroom space (x1 building with canopy). 

Location: Blaenhonddan Primary School  Main Road  Bryncoch  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

Tudalen139



 

App No:  P2023/0392 

Proposal: Proposed demountable building to provide additional 
classroom facilities. 

Location: Ysgol Hendrefelin  Heol Hendre  Bryncoch  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0393 

Proposal: Proposed demountable building to provide additional 
teaching facilities and play space with associated 
fence. 

Location: Crymlyn Primary School  School Road  Jersey Marine  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0394 

Proposal: Prior Approval for the method of demolition and 
restoration of the site (Old Brewery, D C Auto Garage) 
as required by Prior Notification Application 
P2023/0268 (Amended information received 
14/09/2023) 

Location: D C Auto Garage  Old Brewery  High Street  
Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0405 

Proposal: Consultation from Bridgend Council regarding the 
felling and pollarding of 33 trees 

Location: Collwyn Woods  Off Pyle Road  Pyle  Bridgend  CF33 
6BG   

Decision: No Objections 
Ward: Outside Borough 

 

App No:  P2023/0407 

Tudalen140



Proposal: Works to 3x Alder Trees (identified as T13, T14 & T15) 
protected by tree preservation orders T282/T13, 
T282/T14, T282/T15: 
-13 (Alder) - Reduce branches on the northern side of 
the crown by a maximum of 1.5m. 
-T14 (Alder) & T15 (Alder) - Reduce crown by a 
maximum of 1.5m. 

Location: 21 Derwen Deg  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7FP   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0413 

Proposal: Side extension to existing garage to provide storage in 
the lower section and creation of platform above with 
associated means of enclosure to facilitate bin and 
cycle storage, together with installation of steps. 

Location: 4 High Street  Alltwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2023/0418 

Proposal: Proposed retaining wall and timber fence varying in 
height between 3.3m and 2.5m along part of the rear 
boundary to facilitate levelling out a section of the rear 
garden. 

Location: 13 Compton Avenue  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 6BB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0419 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extension and rear side 
boundary wall. The works for which include the 
demolition of an existing single storey rear 
conservatory (amended description). 

Location: 12 Cefn Parc  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 
6YR   

Decision: Approved 

Tudalen141



Ward: Coedffranc Central 
 

App No:  P2023/0423 

Proposal: Discharge of conditions 3 (surface water drainage 
scheme) and 4 (ecological enhancement) of planning 
permission P2022/0972 (for the Development at the 
site entrance to the MGEP comprising a new modular 
building to provide a security hut; a smoking shelter; a 
security barrier system; hardstanding and gravel and 
changes to the kerb system; shallow retaining wall 
structures; and signage at the site entrance to MGEP - 
approved 23/1/23). 

Location: Margam Green Energy Plant   Longlands Lane  
Margam  Port Talbot  SA13 2NU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0426 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent for various internal and 
external alterations including the provision of a new 
external terrace/fire escape 

Location: Moose Hall  Castle Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3LU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0427 

Proposal: Alterations to existing bungalow in the form of box 
dormer to rear, with single-storey flat roof rear 
extension, alterations to external windows and doors, 
creation of off-road parking area to the front (Amended 
proposed Plans received 05/10/2023). 

Location: 7 Lletty Dafydd  Clyne  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
4BG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0432 

Tudalen142



Proposal: Installation of air source heat pump and associated 
works 

Location: 27 Min Y Coed  Coed Hirwaun  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 2TE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0437 

Proposal: Proposed garden room in rear garden 
Location: 27 Llys Castell  Coed Hirwaun  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 2UX   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0440 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 4 
(nesting and foraging habitat); 5 (junction road marking 
details); 6 (written scheme of historic environment 
mitigation); 7 (construction environmental management 
plan); 9 (local labour recruitment strategy); 10 
(ecological clerk of works details); 11 (soil resource 
mitigation strategy); and condition 12 (gas pipeline 
protection fencing) of application P2021/1255 granted 
on 13/01/23. 

Location: Land West Of Junction 38 Of The M4  Port Talbot  
Margam   SA13 2NU     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0446 

Proposal: Regularisation of previously approved planning consent 
P2010/0040 for a canopy to front and side elevations, 
first-floor extension to side/rear elevation and two 
storey extension to rear elevation; and to amend 
materials and incorporate obscure glazing.  Also the 
construction of a rear detached garage with retaining 
works and raised platform to rear. 

Location: 18 Martyns Avenue  Seven Sisters  SA10 9DR       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

Tudalen143



 

App No:  P2023/0448 

Proposal: First floor flat-roof rear extension 
Location: 23 Cerrig Llwydion   Main Road  Pontrhydyfen  SA12 

9TT     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0455 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 7 
(phasing plan), 11 (boundary treatment)  of 
P2018/0493 granted on 18/1/22 

Location: Land At Pen Y Bryn Croeserw,  Cymmer  Port Talbot       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0456 

Proposal: Change of use of paved land to front of property to 
facilitate outdoor seating area with associated 
balustrade (retrospective), installation of bi-fold 
windows and projecting canopies on front elevation of 
existing shop front (amended plans received) 

Location: 4 Station Square  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 1BY     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0459 

Proposal: Proposed double storey side and rear extension 
Location: 44 Rowan Tree Avenue  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath 

Port Talbot  SA12 8EZ   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0466 

Tudalen144



Proposal: Variation of condition 10 (operation times) of planning 
permission P2022/0589 dated 10.03.23 (for conversion 
of existing workshop building into a carbonaceous fire 
behaviour training facility) to extend existing Monday to 
Friday operation times from 09:00-17.00 to 09:00hrs to 
22:00hrs and permit Saturday and Sunday operation 
times of 09:00hrs to 17:00hrs. 

Location: Earlswood Depot  Earlswood Depot Access Road  
Jersey Marine  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0467 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(noise impact assessment) of planning permission 
P2022/0589 dated 10.03.23 (for conversion of existing 
workshop building into a carbonaceous fire behaviour 
training facility) 

Location: Earlswood Depot  Earlswood Depot Access Road  
Jersey Marine  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0468 

Proposal: Proposed rear decking (rear elevation added) 
Location: 21 Lon Y Bryn  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA11 5BG   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0470 

Proposal: Rear landscaping, erection of boundary treatments, 
raised platforms and outbuilding (retrospective) 
(amended description) 

Location: 8 Llys Y Ddraenog  Margam  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 2TQ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

Tudalen145



App No:  P2023/0471 

Proposal: Section 73 application to amend condition 3 (restricting 
occupancy of dwelling) of application number 
2/2/94/0237/03 granted consent on  22/09/1994 to 
restrict occupation  to those persons solely or mainly 
working or last working on a rural enterprise in the 
locality where there is/was a defined functional need; or 
if it can be demonstrated that there are no such eligible 
occupiers, to those widows, widowers or civil partners 
of the above and any resident dependants. 

Location: The Bungalow  Baran Road  Pontardawe  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0474 

Proposal: Proposed side dormer extension with associated loft 
conversion, plus the installation of velux windows within 
the principal, rear and side roof slopes of the main 
dwellinghouse 

Location: Wellfield   78 Underwood Road  Cadoxton  Neath  
SA10 8BY   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cadoxton 

 

App No:  P2023/0476 

Proposal: Proposed two storey rear extension. 
Location: 40 New Road  Neath Abbey  Neath  SA10 7NG     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0478 

Proposal: Proposed increase in the ridge height of dwellinghouse, 
attic conversion including x2 rear pitched roof dormers 
and x2 front pitched roof dormers with roof light on front 
elevation, garage conversion and replacement parking 
with new kerb installed along side boundary adjacent to 
replacement parking, and detached outbuilding in rear 
garden. 

Tudalen146



Location: 3 Graig Y Fforest  Godre'r Graig  Swansea  SA9 2DP     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2023/0481 

Proposal: Proposed first floor flat roof extension above existing 
ground floor extension and two storey flat roof 
extension. 

Location: 105 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6DT   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0483 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (Proposed) for  use 
of property for home working business purposes 
ancillary to dwellinghouse. 

Location: 2 Llys Cambrian  Godre'r Graig  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA9 2EY   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2023/0486 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extension and raised patio 
with associated screening. 

Location: 37 Heathland Way  Llandarcy  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 6FT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0487 

Proposal: New vehicular off road parking and dropped kerb 
Location: 4 Brynsiriol  Tonmawr Road  Tonmawr  Port Talbot  

Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0490 

Tudalen147



Proposal: Works to No 2 trees covered by tree preservation area 
A.9. T1 and T2 - The works are limited to the removal 
of deadwood and the reduction of the height and 
eastern side of their crowns by approximately 1.5 
metres. All branch removal to suitable growth points 
and not exceed 2 metres in length. 

Location: 329 Delffordd  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3HG     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0491 

Proposal: Detached single storey kitchen and dining block 
together with associated works including new internal 
pedestrian access ramps, and footpath together with 
internal vehicular access road and turning area 
(Amended plans and information received 28/07/2023) 

Location: Coedffranc Primary School  Stanley Road  Skewen  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0494 

Proposal: Alterations to existing mono-pitch garage including 
increasing the overall height, no changes to length or 
width 

Location: 7 Trevallen Avenue  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3UU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0496 

Proposal: Outline planning application for the construction of a 
detached, split level, dormer bungalow with associated 
parking and retaining work. 

Location: 5 Heol Tewdwr  Croeserw  Cymmer  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwynfi & Croeserw 

 

Tudalen148



App No:  P2023/0497 

Proposal: Replacement of 1x existing 48-sheet poster board with 
a digital advertising screen (D-Poster). 

Location: Land At Park Avenue  Neath  SA10 6RB       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2023/0499 

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and the construction of 
a 16-bed residential care facility with associated works 

Location: Cardonnel Court Nursing Home   Cardonnel Road  
Skewen  SA10 6BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0505 

Proposal: Retention of one detached outbuilding in rear garden 
and construction of one detached outbuilding located 
on side elevation of dwellinghouse. 

Location: 42 Dyffryn Road  Alltwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2023/0510 

Proposal: Change of use to B8 (storage) with ancillary office 
accommodation and perimeter fencing 

Location: Newby House   Neath Abbey Business Park Road  
Neath Abbey  SA10 7DR     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0511 

Proposal: Conversion of existing garage to holiday let 
accommodation with single storey side extension, the 
works for which include the provision of parking and 
turning facility. 

Tudalen149



Location: 141-143 Heol Cae Gurwen  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  
Ammanford  SA18 1PD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0512 

Proposal: Application for the approval of reserved matters 
(access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 
for one proposed detached dwelling in respect of 
outline planning permission P2020/0677 for land 
Between 75 And 78 Leyshon Road, Gwaun Cae 
Gurwen, SA18 1EN. 

Location: Plot Between 75 & 78 Leyshon Road  Gwaun Cae 
Gurwen  Ammanford  SA18 1EN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0517 

Proposal: First floor rear extension and reduced height of patio 
area in rear garden (amended description and 
amended plans received) 

Location: 76 Henfaes Road  Tonna  SA11 3EX       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0519 

Proposal: Two-storey side and rear extension, front porch, rear 
dormers, Juliette balcony, rooflights, loft conversion to 
provide first floor living accommodation, replacement 
garage and rear patio area. 

Location: Is Y Gored  5 Danybont  Pontrhydyfen  Port Talbot  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And CwmavonBryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0529 

Tudalen150



Proposal: Construction of 560m x 1.50m surfaced footpath with 
the provision of a sustainable drainage system for the 
route and installation of an interpretive owl feature in 
the form of a sculpture constructed in natural materials 
adjacent at the eastern end of the surfaced footpath. 

Location: Brynau Farm   Tonna  Neath       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0531 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendments to planning permission 
P2019/5495 approved on 10.1.20 relating to: rear 
elevation - addition of roof light and omission of  fire 
escape; eastern elevation - omission of fire escape, 
doors removed at first and second floor, window 
removed  and vertical window replaced with a larger 
horizontal window at first floor and window reduced at 
ground floor. 

Location: 9 Windsor Road  Neath  SA11 1LS       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0532 

Proposal: Change of use  from Class A3  at ground floor to 
provide 3 no. residential units (use Class C3). 

Location: 9 Windsor Road  Neath  SA11 1LS       
Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0533 

Proposal: Proposed new fenestration and shutters to shop front. 
Location: 2-3 High Street  Seven Sisters  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA10 9DN   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0538 

Tudalen151



Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3  
(method of demolition), condition 7 (construction 
method statement) and condition 8  (broadband 
infrastructure)  of planning application P2022/0692 
granted on 16.6.2022 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0540 

Proposal: Demolition of garage to facilitate the development of a 
single storey side extension and development of new 
side and rear 2m height boundary wall (amended 
description). 

Location: 28 Stratton Way  Court Herbert  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 7BU   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0542 

Proposal: Proposed alterations to building, including alterations to 
side elevation windows, installation of bi-fold doors to 
the rear with steps, the installation of a new ramp to the 
front elevation with partial removal of the front 
boundary wall and retrospective consent for the 
installation of rooflights. 

Location: Calfaria Baptist Chapel   High Street  Cwmgwrach  
Neath  SA11 5TA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2023/0545 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 6  
(construction noise and vibration management plan) of 
planning application P2022/0692 granted on 16.6.2022 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3HA     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

Tudalen152



App No:  P2023/0551 

Proposal: Demolition of existing rear extension, external WC and 
shed, to facilitate the development of part two-storey 
and single storey rear extension, rear dormer, and 
rooflights for loft conversion on front and side elevation. 

Location: 5 Park Avenue  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5DW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0552 

Proposal: Proposed rear extension to dwelling with balconies. 
Location: Brynawelon  Lane Between Waterfall Road Neath 

Road And Pentwyn Road  Resolven  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0554 

Proposal: Additional office space in the form of a double storey 
porta-cabin and the erection of a steel framed industrial 
storage unit. 

Location: Unit 11  Edwards Works  Llandarcy  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0555 

Proposal: Two storey extension to gable elevation 
Location: 51 Prossers Terrace  Cymmer  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0556 

Tudalen153



Proposal: Proposed alterations to existing main dwellinghouse in 
the form of; the construction of a side extension and 
front porch, the refurbishment of the existing rear utility 
structure, and the replacement of the two bay windows 
within the principal elevation. Permission is also sought 
for the demolition and reconstruction of the existing 
subterranean garage structure with the addition of a 
side extension, replacement roof and the addition of an 
approximately 1.1m high glazed screening atop the 
resultant structure. The application also seeks consent 
to increase the height of the existing retaining wall 
fronting the main dwellinghouse by approximately 
40cm, the works for which would include back filling the 
area behind the retaining wall to create a level finish. 
The retaining wall would be topped with an 
approximately 1m high means of enclosure. Finally, 
this application seeks retrospective consent for the 
construction of pillars and fencing atop the existing 
retaining wall adjacent to the highway, as well as the 
construction of two sets of steps leading to the tiered 
garden areas. 

Location: The Gables  School Road  Jersey Marine  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0560 

Proposal: Proposed new digital poster sign with 3m high 
supporting posts. 

Location: British Legion Club   Eastland Road  Neath  SA11 1LA     
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2023/0561 

Proposal: Works to 1x Oak Tree (identified as T19) protected by 
Tree Preservation Order T276/T19: 
-Oak (T19) - reduce by 1.5m to allow a 2m clearance 
from eaves of property and reduce overhang over 
garden. 

Location: 8 Bryn Heulog  Waunceirch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7SY   

Tudalen154



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0562 

Proposal: Proposed side canopy extension 
Location: 22 Parish Road  Blaengwrach  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA11 5SW   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2023/0564 

Proposal: Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning 
permission P2022/0909 approved on 09/12/2022 to 
reflect the increase in height and length of the 
extension as constructed. 

Location: 16 Church Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 8SS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0565 

Proposal: Single storey side extension and two storey rear 
extension, with 1.8m fence to front boundary. 

Location: 4 Greenfield House  Abercregan Road  Cymmer  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0571 

Proposal: Two storey side extension 
Location: 67 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 6EG   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0574 

Proposal: Proposed loft conversion with dormer to the rear 
elevation to create a habitable room 

Tudalen155



Location: 4 New Street  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5AA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0577 

Proposal: Proposed development of detached annexe situated to 
the side of main dwellinghouse for family use, 
development of raised patio surrounding annex, and 
canopy walkway between annex and main 
dwellinghouse. 

Location: 25 Neath Road  Fforest Goch  Pontardawe  SA8 3JB     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0582 

Proposal: Outline application for construction of 2 No. detached 
bungalows and detached garage (all matters reserved 
except Access and Layout) 

Location: Maes Marchog Isaf  Glynneath  Neath  SA11 5EZ     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2023/0586 

Proposal: Demolition of existing derelict 3 storey building and 
replacement with 3 storey apartment building 
(comprising 4no. 2-bed on ground and first floor and 
2no 1-bed at top floor) together with a detached 
dwelling all with associated works and car parking. 

Location: 121 Heol Cae Gurwen  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  
Ammanford  Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1PD   

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0588 

Proposal: Application for a lawful development certificate of 
proposed outbuilding 

Location: 6 Ynys Y Nos  Pontwalby  Glynneath  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Tudalen156



Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0589 

Proposal: Construction of a detached single dwelling together 
with associated works including access and drainage 

Location: Plot 27  Off Owen Jones Way  Bryn  Port Talbot  SA13 
2RF   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0592 

Proposal: Demolition of existing garage and construction of 
residential development for 4no. detached units, with 
associated parking and retaining works. 

Location: E R Miles Garage   Margam Street  Cymmer  Port 
Talbot  SA13 3ED   

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0594 

Proposal: Works to two trees protected by Tree Preservation 
Order T042 - T1 Beech and T2 Elm. 

Location: 85  Henfaes Road  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3EX   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0595 

Proposal: First floor side extension. 
Location: 60 Glanymor Street  Briton Ferry  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA11 2LG   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry West 

 

App No:  P2023/0596 

Tudalen157



Proposal: Proposed loft conversion with two velux roof lights 
within front elevation roof-space, new obscurely glazed 
window on side elevation serving proposed attic 
bathroom and dormer extension to rear projecting over 
existing flat roof two storey rear extension. 

Location: 7 Clyngwyn Road  Ystalyfera  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA9 2AE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0598 

Proposal: Retention of use of building as cafe (A3), with proposed 
parking scheme. 

Location: Palm Court  Fabian Way  Crymlyn Burrows  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0599 

Proposal: Two storey rear extension and new bathroom window 
in first floor side elevation of main dwelling. 

Location: 8 Baldwin Street  Bryn  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA13 2SB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0601 

Proposal: Demolition of existing rear conservatory and 
replacement with new flat roof single storey rear 
extension 

Location: 5 Riverside Gardens  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 5LA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0602 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and detached 
garage/utility room replacing the existing extension and 
garage 

Tudalen158



Location: 40 Abbeyville Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 6PY   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2023/0607 

Proposal: Retention of new vehicular access, parking area and 
associated retaining walls. 

Location: Camelot   Graig Road  Godre'r Graig  SA9 2NX     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2023/0609 

Proposal: Proposed extension of driveway and vehicular access. 
Location: 62 Main Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 7TL   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0610 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 2 
(ecological enhancement measures) and condition 4 
(noise management plan) of P2022/0981 granted on 
02.06.2023 (amended / new noise management plan 
received 08.11.23) 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Arms  168 Ynysmeudwy Road  
Ynysmeudwy  Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0611 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application to planning 
permission P2022/0981 to alter wording of Condition 5 
to remove requirement to incorporate gates that can 
been seen through 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Arms  168 Ynysmeudwy Road  
Ynysmeudwy  Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

Tudalen159



 

App No:  P2023/0614 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent: Replacement of damaged 
glazing within orangery 

Location: The Orangery,  Margam Country Park,   Water Street,  
Margam,  SA13 2TJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0616 

Proposal: Demolition of front bay window, single storey rear lean-
to and attached side two storey store building and 
construction of a new two storey front extension, 
external alterations including insertion of new ground 
and first floor window / door openings to front, rear and 
side elevations together with detached double garage, 
driveway surfacing, side patio and associated works 

Location: 50 Brecon Road  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4PD   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0617 

Proposal: Works to 1x Oak Tree (identified as T1) protected by 
Tree Preservation Order T242/T1: 
T1 (Oak) - Lift canopy and remove epicormic growth to 
a height of 4.5-5m. Remove one end weighted branch 
over driveway to stem (eastern upper canopy). Reduce 
remaining eastern upper canopy by 1.5-2m. 

Location: Tirbach House  Tirbach Drive  Rhos  Pontardawe  
Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0618 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to planning permission 
P2022/0034 dated 19.12.2022 to change exterior side 
elevation 1st floor finish from tile hung to render (white 
render as ground floor and rear elevation) 

Tudalen160



Location: 19 Prettyman Drive  Llandarcy  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 6HZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0619 

Proposal: Convert garage to habitable room (lounge) and 
associated internal works to enlarge kitchen. 

Location: 17 Bryn Derwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4LF   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0621 

Proposal: Construction of single storey disabled toilet 
accommodation 

Location: Saron Independent Chapel  Main Road  Crynant  
Neath Port Talbot     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0622 

Proposal: Variation of condition 1 (time limit) of planning 
permission P2018/0660 dated 26/09/2018 to extend 
the time period in which to implement the planning 
permission for a new multi-faith centre by a further 5 
years. 

Location: Swansea University Bay Campus   Fabian Way  
Crymlyn Burrows  SA1 8EN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0624 

Tudalen161



Proposal: T1 Species : Corsican Pine (Pinus nigra maritima) 
Reduce three large, lower branches on south eastern 
side of crown which overhang 113 Cimla Road by 2.0 
to 2.5 metres. 
T2 Species : Scots Pine : (Pinus sylvestris)  Reduce 
the lower branch of the Scots Pine T2 which overhangs 
the neighbouring property of 113 Cimla Road by 2.0 to 
2.5 metres. 

Location: 111 Cimla Road  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3UE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath South 

 

App No:  P2023/0627 

Proposal: Replacement single storey side and part rear extension 
including wraparound ridged roof which will also 
replace the flat roof of the existing kitchen extension. 

Location: 123 Albion Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 8DD   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0628 

Proposal: Single storey timber outbuilding (retrospective) and 
single storey pre-fabricated garage to side of existing 
dwellinghouse 

Location: 31 Orchard Street  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4ER   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0629 

Proposal: Section 73 application to amend the wording of 
condition 1 (time limit) of planning permission 
P2018/0338 approved 16/08/2018 to extend the date of 
commencement works on site. 

Location: Land To The East Side Of   Tyla Morris Farm,  Pant 
Howell Ddu Road,   Ynysmaerdy  Neath   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

Tudalen162



 

App No:  P2023/0637 

Proposal: Front porch and single storey rear extension. 
Location: 5 St Albans Terrace  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 1LW   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0639 

Proposal: Replacement of 1x existing 48-sheet poster board with 
a digital advertising screen (D-Poster). 

Location: 106 Commercial Road  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA13 1LR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0640 

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate (proposed) for a single 
storey side extension 

Location: 22 Plas Road  Rhos  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0643 

Proposal: Construction of 1 no. dwellinghouse with associated 
works (amended house type to that approved under 
P2016/0090) 

Location: (Plot 9 - Former Glyndulais Old Peoples Home)   1 
Cwrt Glyndulais (Off Mary Street / Golwg-Y-Craig)  
Crynant  Neath  SA10 8BQ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0646 

Tudalen163



Proposal: Section 73 application to amend the wording of 
condition 5 (approved plan list) to change location plan 
drawing number, condition 6 (construction method 
statement) to allow construction method statement to 
be submitted post commencement of development and 
12 (tree root protection areas) to account for findings of 
new tree report of outline planning application 
P2017/0025 determined on 15/08/2017 

Location: Land At Main Road   Dyffryn Cellwen  Neath  SA10 
9HT     

Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0647 

Proposal: Non Material Amendment (NMA) to Application Ref: 
P2021/0108 Approved 16.09.2021 to amend the design 
and locations of bin stores, sheds and footpaths 

Location: Land Off Pant Celydd   Knights Road  Margam  Port 
Talbot  SA13 2DJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0651 

Proposal: Retention and completion of detached garage with 
enclosure to garage roof to form roof terrace, formation 
of new vehicular access, pedestrian access gate, 
front/side boundary walls and pillar, pedestrian steps 
and retaining walls to garden. Revision to planning 
permission P2019/0171 (Amended plan showing 
reduction in area of roof to be used as roof terrace) 

Location: 9 Lletty Harri  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  SA13 
2ES     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2023/0652 

Proposal: Works to two trees protected by Tree Preservation 
Order T042. 

Location: Ardwyn   86 Henfaes Road  Tonna  SA11 3EX     
Decision: Approved 

Tudalen164



Ward: Resolven & Tonna 
 

App No:  P2023/0655 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 1 
(agricultural occupancy restriction) of planning 
permissions 2/2/91/0182/01 dated 21 November 1991 
and 2/2/92/0471/02 dated 11 December 1992 

Location: Pant Y Gwanyd Farm   Allt Y Grug Farm Road Link To 
Carreg Pentwyn Farm  Ystalyfera  SA9 2BE     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0656 

Proposal: Retention of raised deck and portacabin for use as 
office/meeting room. 

Location: Glenhafod Park, Goytre United Football Club   Road 
From Goytre To Bryn  Goytre  SA13 2YP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0657 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 16 
(drainage) of P2022/0397 granted on 21/7/22 

Location: Land At Edwards Works  Llandarcy  Neath  SA10 6JY     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0660 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 1 (biodiversity enhancement) of 
planning permission reference P2023/0129 for the 
retention of a parcel of land as garden curtilage in 
association with the property known as Afan Forest 
Cottage. 

Location: Afan Forest Cottage  Tai'r Ynys Fawr  Pontrhydyfen  
Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

Tudalen165



App No:  P2023/0661 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(waste management plan) of P2022/0397 granted on 
21/7/22 

Location: Land At Edwards Works  Llandarcy  Neath  SA10 6JY     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0662 

Proposal: Alterations to existing bungalow in the form of 
extensions to the front, side and rear to include 
accommodation in the roof space, the construction of 
front and rear dormer extensions, and alterations to the 
parking arrangement. 

Location: 2A Gilfach Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 8EH   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0663 

Proposal: Request for a Screening Opinion under Regulation 6 of 
The Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) (Wales) Regulations 2017 (EIA 
Regs), in connection with a proposal to seek changes 
to a planning consent for Gwrhyd Quarry, Gwrhyd 
Road, Pontardawe, SA9 2SB 

Location: Gwrhyd Quarry  Gwrhyd Road  Pontardawe  Swansea  
SA9 2SB   

Decision: Not EIA Development 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0664 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 14 Mount Pleasant  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA11 3HX   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

Tudalen166



App No:  P2023/0667 

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate (Proposed) for a single 
storey kitchen extension to side of the structure. All 
drainage and water supply to feed off existing. 

Location: Penrhos  Heol Y Parc  Cwmavon  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0669 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2023/0396 approved 14th July 2023: Change to rear 
elevation replacing double doors and one window with 
folding sliding doors. 

Location: 9 Robert Street  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5EG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0670 

Proposal: Proposed construction of utility and family room side 
extension and single storey external store. 

Location: 111 Ynys Y Wern  Cwmavon  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 9DJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0672 

Proposal: Proposed widening of existing paths running along the 
rear of Llewellyn Alms Houses. Erect temporary 
partition within 1st floor flat and remove internal finishes 
to inner face of central range's South elevation within 
1st floor flat to facilitate the replacement of render to 
half-timbered front elevation central range and to 
internal faces of gablets, and localised conservative 
timber repairs to the half-timbered structure. 

Location: Llewellyn Alms Houses   Leonard Street  Neath  SA11 
3HL     

Decision: Approved 

Tudalen167



Ward: Neath North 
 

App No:  P2023/0673 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 11 - 
landscaping scheme, condition 12 - lighting scheme  
and condition 14 sound insulation of  planning 
application P2022/0692 granted on 16.6.2022 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0674 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 9 - 
remediation strategy of planning application 
P2022/0692 granted on 16.6.2022 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0675 

Proposal: Two detached dwellings (outline with all matters 
reserved) 

Location: Plot Of Land South Of March Hywell   March Hywell  
Cilfrew  Neath  SA10 8ND   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

App No:  P2023/0679 

Proposal: The proposed development of a single storey childcare 
centre (Use Class D1), including access, parking, 
drainage and landscaping arrangements and all 
associated works. 

Location: Car Park At Waun Wen   Cwmafan  Port Talbot  SA12 
9ED     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0682 

Tudalen168



Proposal: Application under section73 to vary condition 23 
(construction method statement) of planning 
permission P2021/0226 for the construction of 137 
dwellings and associated, roads, parking, landscaping 
and infrastructure. 

Location: Land At The Former Afan Lido Site And Adjacent Car 
Park   Aberavon Seafront  Port Talbot       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2023/0683 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (proposed) - 
Installation of roof mounted solar PV array to existing 
building 

Location: David Lloyd Club   B4290 From Llandarcy To Jersey 
Marine  Llandarcy  SA10 6GZ     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0684 

Proposal: Detached outbuilding 
Location: 71 Dinas Baglan Road  Baglan  SA12 8DT       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0686 

Proposal: Proposed two storey extension and construction of 
canopy style extension to existing garage, the works for 
which include internal alterations to the main 
dwellinghouse plus construction of shed/store. 

Location: Tynycoed  17 Graig Gellinudd  Gellinudd  Pontardawe  
Swansea   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0687 

Proposal: Single storey side extension - Lawful Development 
Certificate Proposed. 

Tudalen169



Location: 20 Verdi Road  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 7TW   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0688 

Proposal: Works to 4 trees; compromising of crown reductions by 
3 metres, and raising the canopies by 3 metres to Oak 
(T1) and to 3 no. Ash (T2, T3 and T4) covered by Tree 
Protection Order (TPO) T289/A3. 

Location: Chattan House  14 Llys Castell  Coed Hirwaun  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0692 

Proposal: Proposed detached annex ancillary to main 
dwellinghouse. 

Location: Birchwood  48A Neath Road  Crynant  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0693 

Proposal: Details submitted for Prior Approval for a detached 
agricultural building used for storage of tools, 
machinery and hay (as required by Prior Notification 
Application P2023/0161) (Amended plans received 
27.10.23) 

Location: Blaennant Farm  Blaenant Farm Access Road  
Cilybebyll  Pontardawe  Swansea   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0694 

Proposal: Change of use to nail and beauty salon (use class: 
unique use) 

Location: 62 New Road  Skewen  SA10 6HA       
Decision: Approved 

Tudalen170



Ward: Coedffranc Central 
 

App No:  P2023/0696 

Proposal: Installation of a free-standing monobloc air source heat 
pump to rear of dwelling 

Location: 38 Glyn Road  Lower Brynamman  Ammanford  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA18 1ST   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0697 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(ecological enhancement measures) of planning 
permission P2022/0211 granted on 24/1/23. 

Location: The Miners Arms   Old Road  Skewen  SA10 6AR     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0698 

Proposal: Proposed change of use of flat (C3) to Chiropractic 
Clinic (D1) at ground floor to extend existing business. 

Location: 33B Villiers Street  Briton Ferry  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 2DZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2023/0700 

Proposal: Construction of detached funeral car garage with 
excavation and retaining works, creation of new 
vehicular access and revised parking layout to serve 
Pentwyn Farm. 

Location: Pentwyn Farm   38 Pentwyn Baglan Road  Baglan  
SA12 8EB     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0701 

Tudalen171



Proposal: Lowering of kerbs to front of existing driveway as 
follows: 3 kerbs replaced and lowered, 2 tapered kerbs 
(4580mm total width) and filled with brushed poured 
concrete. 

Location: 27 Golden Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 7RR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0702 

Proposal: Non-material amendment application to amend the 
wording of condition 3 (obscure glazing), condition 4 
(intrusive site investigation) and condition 5 
(construction method statement) of application 
P2021/0536 determined on 10/08/2022. 

Location: Land Adjacent To  1 Ffordd Dinas  Cwmavon  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0703 

Proposal: tDischarge of condition application for condition 4 
(intrusive site investigations and condition 5 
(construction method statement) of application 
P2021/0536 determined on the 10/08/2022. 

Location: Land Adjacent To  1 Ffordd Dinas  Cwmavon  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0704 

Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness application for a proposed 
replacement rear extension. 

Location: 5 Pale Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA10 
6BW   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0706 

Tudalen172



Proposal: Change of use from sweet shop (class A1) to 
domiciliary care office (class B1) 

Location: 45 New Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6EP   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0707 

Proposal: Detached Store 
Location: Runtech Ltd   Harbour Way  Port Talbot  SA13 1PY     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0712 

Proposal: Proposed rear first floor pitched roof extension above 
existing ground floor extension and proposed two 
storey pitched roof rear extension. 

Location: 105 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6DT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0714 

Proposal: Change of use of an ancillary residential shed to a dog 
grooming parlour (Sui Generis Use Class) 

Location: Red Robin Lodge   2 Old School Court  Bryn  Port 
Talbot  SA13 2BJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0716 

Proposal: Proposed rear extension, raised patio area with safety 
screens and new vehicle parking space within front 
curtilage. 

Location: 9 Hays Crescent  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5BE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

Tudalen173



App No:  P2023/0717 

Proposal: Part retrospective detached garden room (for home 
gym/office) 

Location: 27 Cefn Road  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  Ammanford  
Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1HF   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0720 

Proposal: Change existing curved front bow window to square 
front bow window, new raised patio and astroturf areas 
within front garden, new front and side boundary 
walls/railings, widening of existing driveway, new raised 
patio and steps within rear garden. 

Location: 20 The Meadows  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3XF   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0721 

Proposal: Works to two Beech trees T1 and T2 covered by Tree 
Preservation order T314/W7. 

Location: 7 Llys Y Ddraenog  Margam  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 2TQ   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0722 

Proposal: Part double/part single storey rear and side extensions 
Location: 41 Golwg Y Bryn  Seven Sisters  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA10 9BY   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0723 

Proposal: Replace the roof covering of the dwellinghouse from 
slate to brown tile and the removal of an old chimney- 
Lawful Development Proposed 

Tudalen174



Location: 27 Siding Terrace  Lonlas  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6RE   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2023/0725 

Proposal: Details to be agreed with regard to conditions 1 
(screening) and 2 (biodiversity enhancement) of 
planning appeal CAS-02436-V9F7X8 allowed on 
22/08/23 

Location: Sycamores  School Road  Jersey Marine  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0727 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 13 
(protection of sewer) of planning application 
P2022/0692 granted on 16.6.2022 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0728 

Proposal: Non-material amendment application to alter the 
wording of conditions 2 (soft and hard landscaping 
scheme), 3 (vehicle access prevention scheme), and 4 
(ecological enhancement scheme) of planning 
permission P2020/0214 to extend the period for 
submission of condition details to within 6 months from 
the date of planning permission being granted 
(originally 3 months) 

Location: Bryncoed Farm  Starvin Hill  Crynant  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0729 

Tudalen175



Proposal: Change of use to class B8 for the siting of storage 
containers 

Location: Seaway Parade Industrial Estate  Baglan  SA12 7BR       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0731 

Proposal: Certificate of lawful development (proposed) for the use 
of the existing dwelling (use class C3) as a small 
children's home for the care of a maximum of 2 children 
under use class C3 

Location: 16 Gron Road  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  Ammanford  
Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1HD   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0736 

Proposal: Proposed erection of a revised new process building 
and treatment tanks as part of a replacement active 
mine water treatment scheme. 

Location: Land Adjacent To  Neath Road  Resolven  Neath     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0737 

Proposal: EIA Screening request for erection of a revised new 
process building and treatment tanks as part of a 
replacement active mine water treatment scheme 

Location: Land Adjacent To  Neath Road  Resolven  Neath     
Decision: Not EIA Development 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0740 

Proposal: Construction of 2 storey extension to side of existing 
dwelling 

Location: 26 Dulais Drive  Aberdulais  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 8HB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberdulais 

Tudalen176



 

App No:  P2023/0743 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent: Works to aqueduct to include 
concrete placement, installation of temporary rock 
armour and associated works (phase 1) 

Location: Clydach Brook Aqueduct  Resolven  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0744 

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2022/0190 approved 31/05/2022: removal of 
condition 4 relating to the installation of privacy 
screening. 

Location: 113 Crymlyn Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 6DT   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0747 

Proposal: Completion and retention of terraced decking areas 
and outbuilding in rear garden 

Location: 6 Curwen Terrace   Tonmawr Road  Tonmawr  SA12 
9UE     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0748 

Proposal: Proposed non-illuminated advertisement 
Location: Land Adjacent To   Dulais Rock Inn  Main Road  

Aberdulais  Neath   
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Aberdulais 

 

App No:  P2023/0749 

Tudalen177



Proposal: Replacement roof with approx 0.37m increase in ridge 
height of main dwelling to facilitate loft conversion, front 
dormer with safety screen, 2 roof lights in side and rear 
roof planes, flue, solar panels, part single/part two 
storey rear extension incorporating rear dormer, raised 
platform with 1.8m high privacy screening to both sides 
to facilitate access to rear garden from loft bedroom. 

Location: Langland  17 Caerhendy  Afan Valley Road  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2023/0751 

Proposal: Works to 2 trees covered by Tree Preservation Order 
T125 : 
T1: Copper Beech.  Reduce crown height to leave tree 
not less than 16 metres in height on completion.  
Reduce lateral limbs to leave branches not less than 4 
metres long from centre of trunk; 
T2: Copper Beech. Reduce crown height to leave tree 
not less than 16 metres in height on completion.  
Reduce lateral limbs to leave branches not less than 5 
metres long from centre of trunk. 

Location: Ty Coeden Coch  Addoldy Road  Glynneath  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0752 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear extension to existing 
property 

Location: 45 Cloda Avenue  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7FH   

Decision: Not Issue Certificate 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0753 

Proposal: Notification of proposed demolition: Baglan Power 
Station 

Tudalen178



Location: Baglan Power Station   Road From Central Avenue To 
Power Station  Baglan Energy Park  SA12 7GE     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0754 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (Proposed) for the 
addition of an MOT test centre to the existing vehicle 
repair garage (use class B2) 

Location: Unit 2  Winifred Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0755 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 4 
(Desktop Assessment) & 6 (Site Investigations & 
Remedial Works) of planning application no. 
P2022/0230 granted 26/10/2022. 

Location: 35 Parish Road  Blaengwrach  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 5SW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2023/0756 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to planning permission 
P2022/0925 comprising: 
1. Proposed alteration to first floor layout to prevent 
access to rear flat roof and negate need for boundary 
treatment around roof perimeter as required by 
condition 3; and 
2. External materials (retrospective) pursuant to 
condition 5 requirements. 

Location: 46 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3EN       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0757 

Proposal: Retention of building for D2 use 

Tudalen179



Location: Unit 9 Gym   Quay Road  Neath  SA11 1SL     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0758 

Proposal: Proposed change of use of half of ground floor from 
shop (A1) to residential (C3). 

Location: 80 Windsor Road  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
1NR     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2023/0759 

Proposal: Increase in height of existing boundary wall to 2.1m 
above pavement level in face brickwork to match 
existing. 

Location: 2 Pant Y Rhedyn  Coed Hirwaun  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA13 2SZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0760 

Proposal: Advertisement consent for the erection of 1no 
illuminated sign with University branding on front 
elevation of block 11. 

Location: Swansea University Bay Campus   Fabian Way  
Crymlyn Burrows  SA1 8EN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0761 

Proposal: Extending existing single-storey rear extension 
Location: 25 Lewis Road  Crynant  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 8SD   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0762 

Tudalen180



Proposal: Single storey side extension to form new store/garage 
and extended driveway. 

Location: 5 Hunters Ridge  Tonna  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3FE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0764 

Proposal: Single storey rear and side extension 
Location: 56 Bryn Catwg  Cadoxton  SA10 8BG       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cadoxton 

 

App No:  P2023/0765 

Proposal: Proposed rear single storey conservatory extension 
Location: 4 Heol Alfred Wallace  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3FA     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0766 

Proposal: Demolish an existing garage and erect a new single 
storey rear/side extension (amended description) 

Location: 21 Maes Mawr Road  Crynant  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 8SY   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0769 

Proposal: Single storey side and rear extension - Lawful 
Development Certificate Proposed. 

Location: 8 Fairfield  Aberavon  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 6YD   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0771 

Tudalen181



Proposal: Non material amendment (NMA) to application ref: 
P2023/0330 Approved 23.08.2023 to alter roof design 
from a lean-to roof to a flat roof and insert obscure 
glazed window on northern elevation. 

Location: 23 Western Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 7LS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2023/0774 

Proposal: Construction of a single storey Porch and WC 
compartment with ramped access. 

Location: 32 Hodgsons Road  Godre'r Graig  SA9 2DL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2023/0775 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 7 (green 
roof), revise wording of condition 15 (landscaping 
management plan) and agree conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 19, 20, 21 and 22 of planning 
permission P2021/1086 for an extension to existing unit 
(class B8 - storage and distribution) with associated 
parking, drainage and landscaping. 

Location: Mardon Park, Unit 21   Central Avenue  Baglan Energy 
Park  SA12 7AX     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0776 

Proposal: Creation of new vehicle crossing and driveway to hard 
surfaced parking area, boundary wall and associated 
retaining walls and 
railings (retention and completion of works). 

Location: 7 Tyla Moes  Caewern  SA10 7SA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0777 

Tudalen182



Proposal: Single storey extension to the existing building to 
provide a waiting area 

Location: 137 Fairway  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 7HR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0778 

Proposal: Demolition of the existing garage and single-storey rear 
extension, construction of replacement garage and 
single-storey rear extension, erection of boundary 
fence and lowering of garden level. 

Location: 21 Lletty Dafydd  Clyne  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 4BG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0779 

Proposal: Installation of additional air conditioning at Margam 
crematorium 

Location: Margam Crematorium   Longland Lane  Margam  SA13 
2NR     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0780 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 4 
(construction environmental management plan) of 
application P2022/0470 granted on 12/10/22 for the 
erection of an industrial unit (use class B2) (GIA 
25,545sqm) with associated works including 
sustainable drainage, car parking, cycle storage and 
landscaping. 

Location: Land At Baglan Way  Port Talbot         
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0781 

Tudalen183



Proposal: Part single/part two storey side and rear extension, 
replacement attached garage and two parking spaces. 

Location: 17 Waun Avenue  Glyncorrwg  SA13 3DP       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0782 

Proposal: Retention of unauthorised engineering works to rear 
garden levels, with removal of outbuilding and 
proposed alterations to ground levels. 

Location: 41 Pontneathvaughan Road  Glynneath  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA11 5NS   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0783 

Proposal: Construction of 1x single storey car port, 1x single 
storey detached outbuilding, and the erection of a set 
of steps leading from the existing rear terrace to the 
lower garden area. The works for which include the 
demolition of the existing single storey attached 
garage.  Plus retrospective application for the 
construction of an approximately 2.25m high boundary 
fence on western boundary. 

Location: Brynglas   6 Brondeg Lane  Alltwen  Pontardawe  SA8 
3AE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2023/0784 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to planning permission 
P2023/0265 dated 22/08/23 to amend condition 29 
(minimum finished floor level for the approved industrial 
buildings) to 32.95m AOD. 

Location: Land To The North Of   Old Foundry Road,  
Pontardawe  SA8 4ET     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

Tudalen184



App No:  P2023/0785 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 9 (green 
roof), revise wording of condition 18 (landscaping 
management plan) and 10 (rare plant translocation) 
and agree conditions 8, 10, 11, and 18 of planning 
permission P2022/0868 for a detached industrial 
building (use class B8 - storage and distribution) with 
associated parking, drainage and landscaping. 

Location: Land At    Mardon Park  Central Avenue  Baglan  SA12 
7AX   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0786 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 23 - 
Piling method statement of  planning application 
P2022/0692 granted on 16.6.2022 

Location: 38-42 Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0787 

Proposal: Installation of solar panels on main roof of dwelling 
Location: 87 Ocean View  Jersey Marine  SA10 6JN       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0792 

Proposal: Application under Section 73 to vary condition 2 
(approved plans) of planning permission P2016/0515 
approved on 07.10.2016 for the construction of a new 
dwelling and detached garage 

Location: Land Adjacent To The Barracks  Pontrhydyfen  Port 
Talbot  SA12 9RP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla & Pelenna 

 

App No:  P2023/0794 

Tudalen185



Proposal: Change of use of chapel and hall into residential 
dwelling (Use Class C3) with associated works 
including the insertion of rooflights and alterations to 
access. 

Location: Margam Road Calvinistic Methodist Chapel   Margam 
Road  Taibach  SA13 2BN     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0795 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 16  - 
boundary treatments and condition 10 - Privacy 
screens of  planning application P2022/0692 granted 
on 16.6.2022. 

Location: 38-42   Wind Street  Neath  SA11 3HA     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0796 

Proposal: Proposed single storey front and side extension, and 
proposed two storey side and rear extension. 

Location: 14 Illtyd Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3HU     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0797 

Proposal: Construct a single storey ground floor extension to the 
front of the property and ramped access. 

Location: 32 Hodgsons Road  Godre'r Graig  SA9 2DL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

App No:  P2023/0800 

Proposal: Installation of new external lighting in the southern 
service yard 

Location: Amazon  Ffordd Amazon  Crymlyn Burrows  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

Tudalen186



 

App No:  P2023/0801 

Proposal: Demolition of two existing dwellings and the erection of 
one no. two storey dwelling (with attic storage) together 
with associated works. 

Location: 63 & 65 Main Road  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA10 7TA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0803 

Proposal: Prior notification for the use of forestry permitted 
development rights: Upgrade of forest road 

Location: Forest Road NE Of Resolven Running Between 
Approximately 284105, 203325 And 285785,204495.           

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Resolven & TonnaResolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0804 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension. Certificate of Lawful 
Development (Proposed) 

Location: 66 Maes Yr Eglwys  Glynneath  SA11 5SE       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Blaengwrach & Glynneath West 

 

App No:  P2023/0805 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension - Certificate of Lawful 
Development Proposed 

Location: 55 Purcell Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 7TF   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0806 

Tudalen187



Proposal: Discharge of conditions 3 (historic building recording 
survey), 4 (flood attenuation maintenance and 
management plans) and 8 (ecological management 
plan) of planning permission P2022/0956 dated 
08.03.2023 (new cinema extension) 

Location: Pontardawe Arts Centre   60 Herbert Street  
Pontardawe  SA8 4ED     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0812 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 3 (construction environmental 
management plan) of planning permission P2023/0499 
dated 10.10.2023 (demolition of existing nursing home 
and construction of new care facility) 

Location: Cardonnel Court Nursing Home   Cardonnel Road  
Skewen  SA10 6BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0813 

Proposal: Felling of 1x Beech Tree covered by Tree Preservation 
Order T238/A1 

Location: 1 St Catherines Court  Baglan  Port Talbot  SA12 8AJ     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0814 

Proposal: Works to two trees protected by Tree Preservation 
Order T202: 
T1 & T2 - Oaks - Reduce branches overhanging the 
garden of number 115 Delffordd by 2m to prevent 
future risk of damage and allow more light into garden 
(Amended Description) 

Location: 115 Delffordd  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3EN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2023/0815 

Tudalen188



Proposal: Proposed 1st floor rear extension above the existing 
single storey rear annexe to provide a bathroom and 
bedroom 

Location: 122 Briton Ferry Road  Neath  SA11 1AT       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2023/0816 

Proposal: Section 73A: For retrospective change of use to class 
B8 (storage or distribution) 

Location: Unit 3 (Zone 3)   Kenfig Industrial Estate  Margam  
SA13 2PE     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0821 

Proposal: Works to four trees covered by tree Preservation order 
T107: 
Remove deadwood from 2x Scotts Pine (T1, T2) 
Remove Lowest living branch on 2x Scotts Pine back 
to stem (T1, T2) 
Reduce Lowest limb on (T3) Scotts Pine by approx 2-
2.5m.  
Reduce overhanging branches from 1xOak (T4) tree in 
neighbouring garden (from No.30) 

Location: 28 Beechwood Avenue  Neath  SA11 3TE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0822 

Proposal: Use of land to side of dwelling as garden land 
associated with 6 Pretyman Drive (Lawful Development 
Certificate Existing Use) 

Location: Land Adjacent To  6 Pretyman Drive  Llandarcy  SA10 
6HZ     

Decision: Not Issue Certificate 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0823 

Tudalen189



Proposal: Retrospective change of use from B2/B8 (Use Class) to 
Class B8 (Use Class) (storage or distribution) 

Location: Unit 2B  Kenfig Industrial Estate Road  Margam  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0824 

Proposal: Prior notification for proposed demolition of redundant 
nursing home building 

Location: Cardonnel Court Nursing Home   Cardonnel Road  
Skewen  SA10 6BS     

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0828 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 6f 
(hard surfacing materials) of planning permission 
P2021/0108 granted 16.09.2021 

Location: Land Off Pant Celydd   Knights Road  Margam  Port 
Talbot  SA13 2DJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0829 

Proposal: Proposed single storey outbuilding. 
Location: 77 Dynevor Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 6TW   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2023/0832 

Proposal: Discharge of condition 3 (biodiversity enhancement) 
attached to planning permission P2023/0302 for the 
retrospective change of use from part of car park to 
storage container site. 

Location: Lockspot Self Storage   Rheola Enterprise Park  
Resolven  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 4HN   

Decision: Approved 

Tudalen190



Ward: Resolven & Tonna 
 

App No:  P2023/0835 

Proposal: Proposed single storey rear kitchen and bathroom 
extensions 

Location: 7 Cound Terrace  Port Talbot  SA13 1PP       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2023/0836 

Proposal: Works to x1 Oak Tree under Tree Preservation Order 
T339: 
1.5m reduction around the circumference, to all 
compass points of the crown of the tree. 

Location: Land To The Rear Of  47 The Highlands  Neath Abbey  
SA10 6PE     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0837 

Proposal: Installation of 2 x 48 sheet free-standing led illuminated 
advertising display panels erected in 'back to back' 
formation, (measuring 6.4m wide x 3.4m high, and 
comprising pressed metal frame and sealed led 
screen). 

Location: Castle Surgery   Prince Of Wales Drive  Neath  SA11 
3EW     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0841 

Proposal: First floor extension to provide three offices (A2) and 
two storage units (B8) with a terrace to the rear and 
associated parking. 

Location: 26-34 Church Road  Baglan  Port Talbot  SA12 8ST     
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Baglan 

 

Tudalen191



App No:  P2023/0842 

Proposal: Retention and completion of single storey side 
extension and garage. 

Location: 53 Birch Road  Baglan  SA12 8PN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0843 

Proposal: First floor rear extension 
Location: 12 Tymaen Crescent  Cwmavon  SA12 9EA       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0844 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 28 Mill Race  Neath Abbey  SA10 7FL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0846 

Proposal: Single storey side conservatory extension 
Location: 149 Tyn Y Twr  Baglan  SA12 8YE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0847 

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate Proposed - Single 
storey side extension. 

Location: 33 Cove Road  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 6TL   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2023/0851 

Proposal: Prior notification for the use of forestry permitted 
development rights: Extraction of aggregate for forest 
road maintenance and improvement. 

Tudalen192



Location: The existing Burma Road quarry located within the 
Welsh Government Woodland Estate, approximately 
1500m ENE of Resolven.           

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0852 

Proposal: Works to x2 Alder Trees (identified at A1, A2) under 
Tree Preservation Order T280: 
A1- Alder- Lift crown on the eastern side to 7 meters. 
Remove/reduce overhanging branches on the eastern 
side trees by a maximum of 2m.  
A2- Alder- Crown lift on the eastern side to 9 meters.  
Remove/ reduce overhanging branches on the eastern 
side trees by a maximum of 2m.  
 

Location: 11 Dyffryn Woods  Bryncoch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7QA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0853 

Proposal: Subdivision of a shop to two retail units, comprising a 
shop (use class A1) and a beauty parlour (use class 
Sui Generis) with the creation of a new entrance door 
and, external roller shutters. 

Location: Travelwise (Wales) Ltd   137 Station Road  Port Talbot  
SA13 1NR     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2023/0856 

Proposal: Single storey side and rear extensions, raise and 
replace flat roof of existing side extension and 
additional  parking within front curtilage. 

Location: 88 Tyn Y Twr  Baglan  SA12 8YD       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

Tudalen193



App No:  P2023/0857 

Proposal: Works to x3 trees (identified as T1, T2 and T3) under 
Tree Preservation Order T001.  
Cutting back by approx 1.5 -2.0 metres of Sycamore 
(T1), Holly (T2), and Oak (T3) trees. 

Location: 60 Woodlands Park Drive  Cadoxton  SA10 8AW       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cadoxton 

 

App No:  P2023/0863 

Proposal: Neighbouring Authority Consultation from The City and 
County of Swansea for a proposed leisure 
development (planning application no. 2023/1748/FUL) 
comprising a new gondola station at Landore park and 
ride, gondola system transporting visitors to the top of 
Kilvey Hill, new food and beverage offering and new 
leisure activities comprising luge tracks, ziplines, sky 
swing, mountain bike trails and supporting 
infrastructure and associated works 

Location: Land At Kilvey Hill   And Landore Park And Ride 
Facility     Swansea       

Decision: No Objections 
Ward: Outside Borough 

 

App No:  P2023/0864 

Proposal: Works to two trees under Tree Preservation Order 
T341: 
T1- Oak- Remove dead wood and crown lifting of the 
lower branches to 12 feet. 
T2- Monterey Cypress- Remove dead wood. 

Location: 18 Bryn Derwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4LF   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0865 

Tudalen194



Proposal: Alterations to existing single storey rear extension in 
the form of changing the roof design, the works to 
which includes altering the height of the extension in 
part, to facilitate flat roof, and alterations to the siting of 
windows and doors. 

Location: 19 Harle Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3DN     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0866 

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension 
Location: 14 Graig Road  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  SA18 1EG       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2023/0868 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3 
(ecological enhancement measures), 4 (remediation 
scheme), 5 (traffic management scheme), 6 (soft 
landscaping) and 8 (remediation verification report) of 
planning application P2023/0322 granted on 
12/10/2023 

Location: Abbey Primary School   Heol Penlan  Longford  SA10 
7LB     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0869 

Proposal: Non Material Amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2023/0621 approved on 16.10.23. to include a new 
door on the eastern elevation of the extension. 

Location: Saron Independent Chapel  Main Road  Crynant  
Neath Port Talbot     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0870 

Proposal: Ground floor porch extension to accommodate a W/C 
Location: 33 Border Road  Sandfields  SA12 7EB       

Tudalen195



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0871 

Proposal: One replacement illuminated projecting sign, one 
replacement illuminated fascia sign, a logo sign to side 
elevation, plus a replacement illuminated ATM 
surround and decals and replacement safety 
manifestations. 

Location: 79 Station Road  Port Talbot  SA13 1EX       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2023/0872 

Proposal: Ground floor rear shower room extension 
Location: 38 Geifr Road  Margam  SA13 2BE       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0874 

Proposal: New fence to replace demolished building as a 
boundary fence to cricket club approx 75m long 

Location: Neath Leisure Centre   Dyfed Road  Neath  SA11 3AW     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0875 

Proposal: Retrospective consent for the construction of a single 
storey outbuilding. 

Location: 69 Chrome Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot  SA12 7RG   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0878 

Tudalen196



Proposal: Discharge of condition 9 (kitchen extraction) of 
planning permission P2022/0415 for the erection of a 
use class A1/A3 drive thru outlet, together with 
associated servicing, car parking and landscaping, 
ancillary works and signage. 

Location: Greggs   Baglan Bay Retail Park    Christchurch Road  
Aberavon  SA12 7BZ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0880 

Proposal: Single storey front porch extension and roof canopy 
Location: 6 Burrows Road  Baglan  SA12 8BG       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0882 

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for a proposed single 
storey rear extension 

Location: 129 Ivy Avenue  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3DU     
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0883 

Proposal: Six bed class C2 care home (external and internal 
alterations to existing care home in order to increase 
the number of bedrooms from 5 to 6 within the existing 
floor space of the existing care home building) 

Location: Penscynor House  Penscynor  Cilfrew  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: CadoxtonCadoxton 

 

App No:  P2023/0886 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 14 - 
stage 3 road safety audit report (post construction) of  
planning application P2019/5304 granted on 3.2.21 

Location: Aldi   Neath Abbey Road  Neath  SA10 7BR     
Decision: Approved 

Tudalen197



Ward: Bryncoch South 
 

App No:  P2023/0888 

Proposal: Proposed change of use of ground floor from class D1 
to class A1. 

Location: 29 Commercial Road  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA13 1LN   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0890 

Proposal: Proposed change of use from Class D1 to Class A3. 
Location: 31 Commercial Road  Taibach  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA13 1LN   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0891 

Proposal: Single storey side extension and alteration to first floor 
side window openings together with detached double 
garage 

Location: Oak Tree Farm  Drummau Road  Skewen  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc North 

 

App No:  P2023/0894 

Tudalen198



Proposal: Works to the following trees protected by Neath town 
centre conservation area status, some of which are 
also covered by Tree Preservation Order T16: 
-Tree number 991 Holm Oak - reduce crown on south 
side by 2.5 to 3 metres. 
-Tree no. 992 Corsican Pine - reduce branches on 
south side of crown by 2.5 to 3 metres. 
-Tree no. 994 Corsican Pine - remove one large branch 
at its point of origin on south side of crown which is 
above the adjacent building. Reduce the two large 
remaining branches to the first major secondary 
branch. Reduce all the remaining branches above the 
adjacent building by 2.5 to 3 metres. 

Location: St Thomas Church   Church Place  Neath  SA11 3LL     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0895 

Proposal: Consultation Request from PEDW: DNS for information 
to inform a Scoping Opinion under the Town and 
Country (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017 in relation to the construction and 
operation of; up to 10 wind turbines, ground mounted 
solar photovoltaic modules, Battery Energy Storage 
Systems, substation, permanent anemometer mast, 
ancillary infrastructure works, habitat management, 
and, works to facilitate vehicular access to the Site. 
(Only wind turbines numbered 8 and 10 are located 
within NPTCBC all other development is located within 
BCBC). 

Location:  Land Approx. 4 Km South-east Of Bridgend And 8 Km 
West Of Port Talbot           

Decision: Scoping Opinion 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0897 

Proposal: Installation of a canopy over an existing area of 
playground. 

Location: Neath Welsh Primary School   Woodland Road  Neath  
SA11 3AL     

Decision: Approved 

Tudalen199



Ward: Neath North 
 

App No:  P2023/0899 

Proposal: Proposed replacement porch & single-storey side 
extension and front and rear dormer windows 

Location: 22 Crofton Drive  Baglan  SA12 8UL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0901 

Proposal: Prior Notification for Demolition of the former Activity 
Barn. 

Location: Barn To The Rear Of  Margam Road  Taibach  Port 
Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0903 

Proposal: Outline planning application for a proposed detached 
dwelling with detached garage (All matters reserved). 

Location: Land To The South Of The Rise  Glyncastle  Resolven  
Neath  SA11 4NW   

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0904 

Proposal: Proposed domestic dormer to attic space-Certificate of 
lawful development (Proposed) 

Location: 80 Old Road  Neath  SA11 2BU       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2023/0905 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application to planning 
permission P2023/0391 approved 25.09.2023: 
Alteration of window material from aluminium to UPVC 
(same colour). 

Tudalen200



Location: Blaenhonddan Primary School  Main Road  Bryncoch  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0907 

Proposal: Single storey extension to rear of existing domestic 
dwelling 

Location: 48 Cae Canol  Baglan  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot  
SA12 8LX   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0909 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application to planning 
permission P2023/0392 approved 25.09.2023: 
Alteration of window material from aluminium to UPVC 
(same colour) and alteration to location of access door 
and ramp. 

Location: Ysgol Hendrefelin  Heol Hendre  Bryncoch  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0910 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application to planning 
permission P2023/0393 approved 20/09/2023: 
Alteration of window material from aluminium to UPVC 
(same colour). 

Location: Crymlyn Primary School  School Road  Jersey Marine  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0912 

Tudalen201



Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(Construction Environmental Management Plan) of 
P2023/0392 granted on 25/09/2023. (Amended 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 
received 02.02.24) 

Location: Ysgol Hendrefelin  Heol Hendre  Bryncoch  Neath  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch North 

 

App No:  P2023/0913 

Proposal: Proposed front porch and shower room extension. 
Location: 68 Southville Road  Sandfields  Port Talbot  SA12 7DS     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2023/0914 

Proposal: Certificate of lawful development (existing) for the use 
of an ancillary building as a barber shop ancillary to the 
gym (D2) 

Location: Unit 9 Gym   Quay Rd  Neath  SA11 1SL     
Decision: Not Issue Certificate 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0917 

Proposal: Works to X1 Alder tree (Identified as T1) under Tree 
Preservation Order T276:  
Undertake a full crown reduction by 1.5-2m. 

Location: 23 Rhiwlas  Waunceirch  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA10 7RB   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0918 

Proposal: Consultation from neighbouring authority regarding the 
construction of a solar farm and associated works. 

Location: Land At Rhigos Road  Hirwaun         
Decision: No Objections 
Ward: Outside Borough 

Tudalen202



 

App No:  P2023/0919 

Proposal: Request for a screening opinion under Regulation 6 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017 in regards to the 
redevelopment of existing buildings and erection of 
new buildings to accommodate leisure uses including 
up to 295 holiday accommodation units, retail premises 
and a leisure complex together with associated access, 
footpaths, ecological improvements and landscaping, 
boundary treatment, services, parking and circulation 
and associated engineering operations. 

Location: Rheola Estate  Lane From Glyn Neath Road To Rheola 
House  Resolven  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: EIA Development 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2023/0920 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 2 
(scheme of soft and hard landscaping), condition 3 
(prevention of vehicular access) and 4 (ecological 
enhancement measures and an implementation 
timetable) of planning application P2020/0214 granted 
on 30.06.2023 

Location: Bryncoed Farm  Starvin Hill  Crynant  Neath  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2023/0921 

Proposal: Outline application (all matters reserved except access) 
for a 2 bed dwelling with associated garden and off 
road parking and new vehicular access 

Location: 45 Burrows Road  Skewen  SA10 6AE       
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

App No:  P2023/0924 

Tudalen203



Proposal: Replace existing rear conservatory with proposed 
single storey rear extension - Lawful Development 
Certificate. 

Location: 99 Bryn Morgrug  Alltwen  Pontardawe  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2023/0926 

Proposal: Proposed conversion of existing attached garage into 
additional living space -  Certificate of lawful 
development (Proposed) 

Location: 77 Brookfield  Neath Abbey  SA10 7EH       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0928 

Proposal: Proposed two-storey rear extension to dwelling. 
Location: Brynawelon   Lane Between Waterfall Road Neath 

Road And Pentwyn Road  Resolven  SA11 4EF     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

 

App No:  P2023/0929 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 3 
(submission of details relating to materials prior to their 
use in the construction of development) of planning 
permission P2021/0257 approved 22.03.2021 and to 
agree materials. 

Location: Briton Ferry Llansawel AFC  Old Road  Neath  SA11 
2BS     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2023/0930 

Proposal: Non-material amendment application to amend the 
wording of condition 3 (Structural calculations and 
details) of planning application P2022/0334 determined 
on the 22/09/2022. 

Tudalen204



Location: The Brambles  5 Varteg Row  Bryn  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0931 

Proposal: Submission of details seeking approval of condition 3 
(structural calculations and details) pursuant to 
planning permission P2022/0334 determined 
22/09/2022. 

Location: The Brambles  5 Varteg Row  Bryn  Port Talbot  Neath 
Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0933 

Proposal: Two storey pitched roof side-extension to gable end 
Location: 4 Sunny Bank  Glyncorrwg  SA13 3BU       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer & Glyncorrwg 

 

App No:  P2023/0935 

Proposal: Discharge of condition No. 17 (contaminated land 
verification report) of planning permission P2021/0108 
for residential development consisting of 25 affordable 
units, associated car parking, landscaping, drainage 
and other associated works. 

Location: 1 Pant Celydd  Margam  SA13 2DJ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0936 

Proposal: Removal of the existing front garden and blockwork 
boundary walls and proposed boundary walls, and 
construction of new hard standing for car parking 

Location: 16 Church Road  Baglan  SA12 8SS       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

Tudalen205



App No:  P2023/0937 

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2023/0503 approved 17/08/2023:  
-Change of roof to the extension from a grass sedum 
flat roof to a pitched tile roof to match the existing 
house.  
-Raise windowcill level of existing first floor rear window 
by 150mm. 

Location: 88 Cimla Crescent  Cimla  SA11 3NP       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath South 

 

App No:  P2023/0938 

Proposal: Single storey side and rear extension 
Location: 167 Longford Road  Longford  SA10 7HL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2023/0939 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and detached outbuilding. 
Location: 23 Llewellyn Avenue  Neath  SA10 7AL       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0941 

Proposal: Partial discharge of condition 3 (to agree demolition 
method statement only) of planning application 
P2022/1043 granted on 20.10.2023 

Location: 24 Bryn Road  Cwmllynfell  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA9 2FJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0942 

Proposal: Proposed construction of single storey WC extension to 
rear of property- Lawful Development Certificate 

Location: 33 Border Road  Sandfields  SA12 7EB       
Decision: Issue Certificate 

Tudalen206



Ward: Sandfields West 
 

App No:  P2023/0944 

Proposal: Advertisement Consent application for a single 
illuminated 48-sheet digital advertisement display. 

Location: Land At Briton Ferry Car Wash   Neath Road  Briton 
Ferry  SA11 2AX     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Briton Ferry East 

 

App No:  P2023/0945 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 8 
(CEMP) of planning permission P2022/0515 dated 
16.03.23 (to construct a two-storey side extension and 
convert existing building to provide 12 no. self-
contained flats) 

Location: Ty Mawr   Ynisderw Road  Pontardawe  SA8 4EG     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0947 

Proposal: 2 no. fixed page illuminated LED digital signage boards 
with supporting steel subframe in 'V' arrangement 

Location: Corner Park Garages   Fabian Way  Crymlyn Burrows  
SA1 8QB     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0948 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (proposed): Use of 
former shower room extension as a dog grooming 
salon (no external alterations) for 3 days per week 
(Monday, Tuesday & Saturday) between the hours of 
8:00am until 5:00pm for a maximum of 4 dogs per 
week 

Location: 36 Ynys Fawr Avenue  Resolven  Neath  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA11 4LT   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Resolven & Tonna 

Tudalen207



 

App No:  P2023/0949 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendment to planning permission 
P2022/1043: amendment to condition 3 to allow 
demolition of building to commence prior to submission 
and agreement of a construction environmental 
management plan 

Location: 24 Bryn Road  Cwmllynfell  SA9 2FJ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2023/0951 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and extension of existing 
rear dormer 

Location: 10 Woodside Avenue  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3TG     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2023/0953 

Proposal: Rear single storey extension 
Location: 33 Commercial Road  Taibach  SA13 1LN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0956 

Proposal: Works to x3 trees (identified as T1, T2 and T3) under 
Tree Preservation Order T089: 
T1 & T2 - Sycamores to reduce height by 2.5m & 
reduce away from property (No 20) by 1.5m to gain a 
2m clearance. 
T3 - Ash to reduce height by 2.5m & reduce away from 
property (No 20) by 1.5m to gain a 2m clearance. 

Location: 20 The Avenue  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 2FD     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2023/0959 

Tudalen208



Proposal: Non-material amendment to application P2018/0197 
approved on 13/04/2018 to infill existing car port. 

Location: 23 Cwmclais Road  Cwmavon  SA12 9LU       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2023/0961 

Proposal: First floor side extension 
Location: 25 Constant Road  Taibach  SA13 1UB       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2023/0962 

Proposal: Advertisement Consent: Item 1: Signwriting, illuminated 
by an LED trough light; Item 2: Signwriting, illuminated 
by an LED Floodlight; Item 3: Refurbish and relocate 
existing Correx sign (non-illuminated); Item 4: 
Refurbish existing internally illuminated totem sign; 
Item 5: Refurbish existing Correx sign (non-
illuminated). 

Location: Bryncoch Inn   Ty'n Yr Heol Road  Bryncoch  SA10 
7EB     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2023/0963 

Proposal: Section 73 application to remove condition 7 (green 
roof), revise wording of condition 16 (landscaping 
management plan) and agree conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10, 11, 12, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22 and 23 of 
planning permission P2021/1087 for construction of 
four industrial units (Class B1, B8) with associated car 
parking drainage and landscaping. 

Location: Land Adjacent To    Unit19/20  Mardon Park  Baglan  
SA12 7AX   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0966 

Tudalen209



Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2023/0316 approved 13/06/23: Addition of one 
smaller than previously approved roof light window 
within the southern slope of the two storey extension 
and one roof light window to the northern side of the 
two storey extension.   
Both will be positioned closer to the roof line ridge than 
shown on the previous non-amendment change. New 
size proposed for both windows is 550mm wide x 
980mm in length. 

Location: 34 Parc Gilbertson  Rhydyfro  Pontardawe  SA8 4PU     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2023/0969 

Proposal: External steps, alterations to existing ramp, new 
platform lift and means of enclosure/handrails, retaining 
walls and associated works (07.02.24) 

Location: Crymlyn Primary School  School Road  Jersey Marine  
Neath  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2023/0971 

Proposal: Section 73 application to vary and agree conditions 3 
(coal mining risk), 4 (mine gas), 5 (construction 
environmental management plan), 6 (landscaping), 7 
(broadband provision), and agree 9 (mine gas 
remediation) and 16 (materials) of planning permission 
P2022/0557 for the construction of highway, 8 
detached self-build dwellings with associated 
landscaping, drainage and ancillary development 
(Phase 1). 

Location: Maes Ty Canol   Baglan  SA12 8US       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0972 

Tudalen210



Proposal: Section 73 application to vary and agree conditions 3 
(coal mining risk), 4 (mine gas), 5 (construction 
environmental management plan), 6 (landscaping), 7 
(broadband provision), and agree 9 (mine gas 
remediation) and 16 (materials) of planning permission 
P2022/1021 for the erection of a dwelling (Plot 4) with 
associated landscaping, drainage and access. 

Location: Maes Ty Canol  Baglan  SA12 8US       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0973 

Proposal: Section 73 application to vary and agree conditions 3 
(coal mining risk), 4 (mine gas), 5 (construction 
environmental management plan), 6 (landscaping), 7 
(broadband provision), and agree 15 (mine gas 
remediation) and 22 (materials) of planning permission 
P2022/1024 for the erection of a dwelling (Plot 5) with 
associated landscaping, drainage and access. 

Location: Maes Ty Canol  Baglan  SA12 8US       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Baglan 

 

App No:  P2023/0975 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension and porch extension to 
front of property. 

Location: 55 Glyn Road  Lower Brynamman  SA18 1SS       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0001 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with conditions 3 
(ecological enhancements), 5 (siting, design and 
management of clothes drying and bin store areas), 6 
(external materials), 9 (boundary treatment), 10 
(sprinkler system confirmation no external tank) and 13 
(obscure glazing scheme) of planning application 
P2022/0588 approved on 15/6/23 

Location: 96 Gnoll Park Road  Neath  SA11 3DD       
Decision: Approved 

Tudalen211



Ward: Neath North 
 

App No:  P2024/0002 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (proposed) internal 
refurbishment of existing mental health facilities (use 
class C2) to provide a care home  (use class C2) . 

Location: Gellinudd Hospital   Lon Catwg  Gellinudd  Pontardawe  
SA8 3DX   

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0003 

Proposal: Advertisement consent: replace 1no. projecting 
signage with new 500mm internally illuminated 
projecting sign, replace 1no. fascia and 1no. logo with 
1no. new blue fascia & 1no. new 290mm logo height 
(internally illuminated), replace 1no. ATM surround and 
decals with new (internally illuminated), install new 
window message ''A good way to bank'' comprising of 
internally applied vinyl & install new safety 
manifestation to door comprising of internally applied 
vinyl. 

Location: 2 Queen Street  Neath  SA11 1EB       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0008 

Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of condition 6 
(drainage details, including septic tank and 
management and maintenance plan) 
of Planning Permission P2018/0262 granted on 
21/05/2018 

Location: Sunnyacre   Eaglesbush Valley  SA11 2AN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2024/0009 

Tudalen212



Proposal: Removal of an existing 1m wide footbridge and replace 
with a new 4m wide footbridge to comply with WAG 
Sustrans requirements. 

Location: Wildbrook  Taibach  SA13 2UN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & TaibachMargam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0010 

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate: For proposed raising 
the level of agricultural land by no more than 2m in an 
area less than 0.5 hectare and situated more than 25m 
away from A48 (classified road). 

Location: Old Park Farm   Land To East Of Old Park Farmhouse  
Margam  SA13 2TG     

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0016 

Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (Proposed) for a 
replacement Substation (measure 5.8m in height, 9m in 
length and 6.5m in width);  an LV Switch Room (9m in 
length, 6.6m in width and 5.3m in height) and a 
Transformer with associated compound (measuring 
7.5m by 7m) and 2m high compound fencing. 

Location: Western Wood Energy Plant   Longland Lane  Margam  
SA13 2NR     

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0017 

Proposal: Lawful development certificate (existing) for an annex 
extension at the rear of dwelling 

Location: 65 Lower Colbren Road  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  SA18 
1HP       

Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0020 

Tudalen213



Proposal: Details pursuant to the re-discharge of condition 4 
(Revised Construction Method Statement) of planning 
permission P2016/0090 granted on 21-Mar-2018 
(original details approved under P2019/5184) 
(amended details received 31.01.24) 

Location: Cwrt Glyndulais  Crynant  SA10 8BQ       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0022 

Proposal: Works to two Monterey Cypress trees (identified as T1 
and T2) under Tree Preservation Order T127: 
Reduce all lateral branches by 2-5m at the nearest 
suitable growth point along the western boundary of the 
property at land adjacent to 28 Nightingale Park. 

Location: Street Record   Nightingale Park Footway  Cimla  SA11 
3RX     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath South 

 

App No:  P2024/0023 

Proposal: Retention of change of use from petrol filling station to 
car valeting/hand car wash facility together with 
removal of 2 no. existing canopies, retention of one 
existing canopy, and erection of 1 no. new detached 
canopy, new means of enclosure, floodlighting and 
timber seating 

Location: Avenue Garage  Works Road  Pontardawe  Swansea  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0025 

Proposal: Prior Notification for the demolition of Godre'r Graig 
Primary School 

Location: Godre'r Graig Primary School  Graig Road  Godre'r 
Graig  Swansea  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Godre'rgraig 

 

Tudalen214



App No:  P2024/0028 

Proposal: Rear conservatory style extension. 
Location: Cennin Pedr  37 Ffordd Derwen  Coed Hirwaun  Port 

Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam & Taibach 

 

App No:  P2024/0030 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension. 
Location: 9 Wade Avenue  Ystalyfera  SA9 2ET       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell & Ystalyfera 

 

App No:  P2024/0034 

Proposal: Prior notification for the construction of an agricultural 
building. 

Location: Tyle'r Fedwen Farm  Tyle'r Fedwen Farm Access Road  
Cwmavon  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2024/0037 

Proposal: Works including landscaping, surfacing, means of 
enclosure and access construction to formalise car 
park to be used in association with adjacent playing 
fields 

Location: Car Park At The Welfare Hall   Maes Y Parc  Glynneath  
Neath  SA11 5EE   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2024/0041 

Proposal: Change of use of shop (class A1) to solicitors office 
(class A2) 

Location: 1B Alfred Street  Neath  SA11 1EF       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

Tudalen215



App No:  P2024/0043 

Proposal: Two storey detached dwelling together with detached 
double garage and associated works 

Location: Plots 4 & 5 Golwg Yr Ynys, Lower Brynamman. Sa18 
1Sj   Glyn Road  Lower Brynamman  SA18 1SS     

Decision: Refused 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen & Lower Brynamman 

 

App No:  P2024/0044 

Proposal: Proposed annexe/outbuilding in rear garden to provide 
ancillary accommodation to main dwelling 

Location: 5 Park Avenue  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 5DW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath Central & East 

 

App No:  P2024/0045 

Proposal: Non-Material Amendments to planning permission  
P2021/1038 granted consent on 9.11.21 to alter the 
rear boundary gates from folding gate panels to roller 
shutters, with an increase in height of 0.35 metres 
(from 2.0 metres to 2.35 metres). 

Location: 73 Leonard Street  Neath  SA11 3HW       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0046 

Proposal: Certificate of lawfulness (proposed) for construction of 
single storey shower room extension to rear of property 

Location: 16 Farm Drive  Sandfields  SA12 6TE       
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Sandfields East 

 

App No:  P2024/0050 

Tudalen216



Proposal: Non-material amendments to the wording of conditions 
7 (refuse recycling scheme), 8 (landscaping plan), 9 
(landscape management),10 (construction 
environmental management plan), 11 (gigabit 
broadband),12 (external lighting plan), 13 (biodiversity 
enhancement), 14 (highway improvement), 15 (waste 
management) of planning permission P2022/1063 for 
residential development. 

Location: Former Dyffryn Lower School   Talcennau Road  Port 
Talbot  SA13 1EP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Port Talbot 

 

App No:  P2024/0055 

Proposal: Partial discharge of condition 6 (invasive/non-native 
species method statement), and discharge of 
conditions 20 (boundary treatments/means of 
enclosure), 7 (landscaping) and 9 (protective fencing 
for canal bank/trees/scrub) of planning permission 
P2023/0265 dated 22.08.23 to enable site clearance to 
inform preparation of a detailed method statement for 
condition 6 

Location: Land To The North Of   Old Foundry Road,  
Pontardawe  SA8 4ET     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0058 

Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 3 Heol Alfred Wallace  Rhos  Pontardawe  SA8 3FA     
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2024/0063 

Proposal: Details to be agreed in association with condition 10 
(provide new access/close existing access) of planning 
permission P2022/0515 dated 16.03.23 (to construct a 
two-storey side extension and convert existing building 
to provide 12 no. self-contained flats) 

Location: Ty Mawr   Ynisderw Road  Pontardawe  SA8 4EG     

Tudalen217



Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0064 

Proposal: Consultation from the Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project (NSIP) division under Regulations 
10 and 11 of The Infrastructure Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 
(the EIA Regulations) to inform a Scoping Opinion to 
construct and operate a new 132 kilovolt (kV) grid 
connection comprising an overhead line (OHL) 
supported on L7 steel lattice towers, collector 
substation and cable sealing end compound (known as 
the 'Green GEN Vyrnwy Frankton' project) 

Location: Linking Llyn Lort Energy Park In Powys, Wales With  
Existing 400kV NETS Network In Shropshire, England           

Decision: No Objections 
Ward: Outside Borough 

 

App No:  P2024/0071 

Proposal: Prior Notification for the demolition of the former coal 
processing structure known as "Froth plant" 

Location: Washery  Onllwyn Open Cast Site  A4221 From 
Dyffryn Cellwen To County Boundary  Dyffryn Cellwen  
Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 
Ward: Crynant, Onllwyn & Seven Sisters 

 

App No:  P2024/0080 

Proposal: Prior Notification Application for the removal and 
replacement of the existing 21.1m mast supporting 6 
no. antennas, 2no. 0.3m dishes and ancillary 
equipment with a new 22.9m monopole supporting 6 
no. new antennas, 1no. new 0.6m dish, 2 no. relocated 
0.3m dishes and ancillary equipment. The extension of 
the existing concrete base to the east and works 
thereto. 

Location: Envico Engineering   Unit 8 Baglan Industrial Estate  
Port Talbot  Neath And Port Talbot  SA12 7BY   

Decision: Prior Notification Approval Not Required 

Tudalen218



Ward: Aberavon 
 

App No:  P2024/0087 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent to attach cast aluminium name 
plaque to Ynysmeudwy Ganol Bridge 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Ganol Bridge. Bridge 8   Swansea Canal  
Ynysmeudwy, Swansea   SA8 4PP     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0088 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent to attach cast aluminium name 
plaque to Ynysmeudwy Isaf Bridge 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Isaf Bridge   Swansea Canal  
Pontardawe  SA8 4PX     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0089 

Proposal: Listed Building Consent to attach cast aluminium name 
plaque to Ynysmeudwy Uchaf Bridge 

Location: Ynysmeudwy Uchaf Bridge    Swansea Canal  
Ynysmeudwy  Swansea  SA8 4BW   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2024/0092 

Proposal: Non-material amendment to planning permission ref. 
P2022/0588 approved on 15/6/23: minor change to the 
position of 3 no. courtyard facing windows 

Location: 96 Gnoll Park Road  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 
3DD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2024/0108 

Tudalen219



Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of condition 3 
(external materials) of planning permission P2021/0910 
granted on 16.02.2022 

Location: British Legion Club   Eastland Road  Neath  SA11 1LA     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2024/0121 

Proposal: Proposed Lawful Development Certificate- Single 
storey rear and side extension. 

Location: 6 Gellidderw  Rhydyfro  Pontardawe  SA8 4NB     
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

Tudalen220



Document is Restricted

Tudalen221

Eitem yr Agenda12
Yn sgil paragraff(au) 16 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A%  Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol
	Cofnodion

	5 Rhif y cais: P2023/0858 - Crown Wharf, Dociau Port Talbot
	6 Rhif y cais: -2024/0057 - 18 Heol Darwin
	7 Apeliadau y Penderfynwyd Arnynt - 4 Medi 2023 - 18 Mawrth 2024
	8 Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd - 4 Medi 2023 to 18 Mawrth 2024
	9 Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig - 11 Awst 2023 to 18 Mawrth 2024
	12 Llety dros dro - Sefyllfa Rheoleiddio (Yn eithriedig dan Baragraff 16)

